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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)
BEEBMERZMERQB([BRIXA]) GEMB&SE

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Main
Board. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the

decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in

reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Chong
Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (the “Company’,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report

misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TRBES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited
(formerly known as Dominate Group Holdings Company Limited)
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
hereby present the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
March 2020.

The Group is a vertically integrated jeweller based in Hong Kong
and is primarily engaged in the retail of its own products through its
network of seven retail stores under the brand name of “Chong Fai
Jewellery (EI¥EZKE )" strategically located in Kowloon and the New

Territories.

The Group’s principal products are mass jewellery products
including gem-set jewellery and pure gold products, which
are produced in-house at its production facility in Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
The Group also engages in the wholesale of its jewellery products to
other jewellery retailers, and the trading of recycled gold products

from the general public to certain customers.

Looking forward, the Group will adopt its strategy to expand the
Group’s jewellery design collection in line with customer needs
and preferences and market trends and expand its retail presence
to capture the market opportunities. We intend to execute our
development plan carefully and prudently for the purpose of
bringing a desirable return to the Shareholders and facilitating the

long-term growth of the business of the Group.

Fu Chun Keung
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 19 June 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENmE D

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Subsequent to (i) the passing of the special resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 16
December 2019; (ii) the issuance of the Certificate of Incorporation
on Change of Name by the Registrar of Companies in the Cayman
Islands, the change of the official registered English name of the
Company from “Dominate Group Holdings Company Limited”
to “Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited” and
the adoption of “BIEIKELEEIZERABM A A" as its dual foreign
name in Chinese have become effective from 9 January 2020.
With effect from 9:00 a.m. on 18 March 2020, the English stock
short name of the Company for trading in the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange has changed from “DOMINATE
GP” to “CHONG FAI JEWEL” and “El¥#¥ %" has been adopted
as the Chinese stock short name of the Company. The website
of the Company has also changed from www.dghcl.com to
www.chongfaiholdings.com with effect from 18 March 2020.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is a vertically integrated jeweller based in Hong Kong
and is primarily engaged in the retail of its own products through
its network of seven retail stores under the brand name of “Chong
Fai Jewellery (EI¥EI£E )" strategically located in Kowloon and the
New Territories. Being vertically integrated, the Group possesses
the means to control the diversity, quality and pricing of its own
jewellery designs produced in-house at its production facility in

Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The Group’s principal products are jewellery products, including
gem-set jewellery and pure gold products. The Group also engages
in the wholesale of its jewellery products to other jewellery retailers,
and the trading of recycled gold products from the general public to

certain customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWmR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue decreased by HK$55.7 million, or 31.7%, from
HK$175.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2019 to HK$119.9
million for the year ended 31 March 2020. The decrease in revenue

was mainly caused by the revenue decrease from (i) diamond,

karat gold, jade, pearl, platinum jewellery products (the “Gem-

set Jewellery Products”) by HK$42.4 million; and (i) pure gold
products by HK$17.1 million.

Revenue by Products

(a)

(b)

(c)

Gem-set Jewellery Products

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s revenue from
Gem-set Jewellery Products decreased by HK$42.4 million,
or 40.1%, as compared to that for the year ended 31 March
2019. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the combined
effect of (i) the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19")
pandemic, and (ii) the weak market performance brought by

global and local economic and social uncertainties.
Pure gold products

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s revenue
from pure gold products decreased by HK$17.1 million, or
31.5%, as compared to that for the year ended 31 March
2019. The decrease was mainly attributable to the combined
effect of (i) the COVID-19 outbreak, and (ii) the weak market
performance brought by the global and local economic and

social uncertainties.
Trading of recycled gold products

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s revenue
from trading of recycled gold products increased by HK$3.8
million, or 24.2%, as compared to that for the year ended 31
March 2019. The increase was mainly attributable to the rise
of global pure gold prices during the year ended 31 March
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBN®NE D

Revenue by Business (sales channels)
(a) Retail

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s revenue
from retail channel decreased by HK$40.4 million, or 34.1%,
as compared to that for the year ended 31 March 2019. The
decrease was mainly attributable to a decrease of the Group’s
retail revenue of Gem-set Jewellery Products and pure gold
products by HK$26.0 million or 37.8% and HK$14.4 million
or 28.8%, respectively, for the year ended 31 March 2020 as
compared to that for the year ended 31 March 2019.

(b) Wholesale

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s revenue from
wholesale channel decreased by HK$19.1 million, or 46.2%,
as compared to that for the year ended 31 March 2019. The
decrease was mainly attributable to a decrease of the Group’s
wholesale revenue of Gem-set Jewellery Products and pure
gold products by HK$16.2 million or 43.8% and HK$2.9 million
or 67.2%, respectively, for the year ended 31 March 2020 as
compared to that for the year ended 31 March 2019.

(c) Trading of recycled gold products

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s revenue
from trading of recycled gold products increased by HK$3.8
million, or 24.2%, as compared to that for the year ended 31
March 2019.

Cost of goods sold

The Group’s cost of goods sold decreased by approximately
HK$41.2 million, or 34.3%, from HK$120.2 million for the year ended
31 March 2019 to HK$79.0 million for the year ended 31 March
2020. The decrease in cost of goods sold was mainly caused
by (i) the decrease in the cost of Gem-set Jewellery Products of
approximately HK$32.9 million; (ii) the decrease in the cost of pure
gold products of approximately HK$10.7 million; (iii) the increase in
cost of trading of recycled gold products by approximately HK$3.4
million, and (iv) the decrease in factory overheads include costs
incurred for the Group’s production process by approximately
HK$1.0 million. The decrease in costs of Gem-set Jewellery

Products was mainly caused by the decrease in units of goods sold.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Overall Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit decreased by HK$14.5 million, or 26.2%,
from HK$55.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2019 to HK$40.9
million for the year ended 31 March 2020. The Group’s gross profit
margin increased from 31.5% for the year ended 31 March 2019
to approximately 34.1% for the year ended 31 March 2020 as the
gross profit margins of Gem-set Jewellery Products and pure gold
products increased during the current year. The Group’s increase in

gross profit margin was mainly caused by:

(a) Gem-set Jewellery Products: The gross profit margin of Gem-
set Jewellery Products increased from 39.3% for the year
ended 31 March 2019 to 46.4% for the year ended 31 March
2020 because less discounts were offered to the Group’s
customers during the year ended 31 March 2020 as compared
to that during the year ended 31 March 2019. There was
decrease in diamond costs for products with lower unit costs
leading to lower cost of sales and increase in average selling
price which leading to overall increase in gross margin for the

current year compared to the prior year.

(b)  Pure gold products: The Group’s gross profit margin of pure
gold products increased from 24.4% for the year ended 31
March 2019 to 28.6% for the year ended 31 March 2020.
The increase in the Group’s gross profit margin was mainly
due to the overall trend in gold price movements during the
year ended 31 March 2020 compared with the same period
in 2019, as the Group’s selling price of gold is referenced to
the market price of gold at the time of transaction. During the
year ended 31 March 2020, the average price of gold went up
while the average cost remained stable as compared to the

same period in 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBN®NE D

Other income

Other income for the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to
HK$1,326,000 (2019: HK$458,000), representing an increase of
approximately HK$868,000 as compared with last year. The increase
in other income was mainly due to (i) the increase in bank interest
income from approximately HK$140,000 during the year ended 31
March 2019 to approximately HK$559,000 during the year ended 31
March 2020, and (ii) there are new other income, dividend income
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) in
the amount of approximately HK$338,000 and Government grant in
the amount of approximately HK$184,000 incurred during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

Other gains or losses

Other gains or losses for the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted
to gains of HK$0.3 million (2019: gains of HK$1.1 million),
representing an decrease of HK$0.8 million as compared with last
year. The decrease was mainly due to the revaluation of gold loans

decrease by approximately HK$1.1 million.
Finance costs

Finance costs for the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to
HK$1.5 million (2019: HK$1.4 million).

Selling and distribution costs

Selling and distribution costs for the year ended 31 March 2020
amounted to HK$30.7 million (2019: HK$28.7 million), representing
an increase of HK$2.0 million or 6.8% as compared with last year.
The increase was mainly due to the increase in marketing and

promotion expense during the year.
General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses for the year ended 31
March 2020 amounted to HK$17.1 million (2019: HK$12.8 million),
representing an increase of HK$4.3 million or 33.3% as compared
with last year. The increase was mainly due to the increase in legal
and professional fees after the listing of the Company on GEM and

other expenses during the year ended 31 March 2020.
Listing expenses

There were no listing expenses incurred during the year ended 31
March 2020 (2019: HK$10.1 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Taxation

Income tax credit for the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$1.4 million (2019: income tax expense HK$1.7
million), representing an increase of income tax credit approximately
HK$3.1 million as compared with last year. The increase primarily
due to the decrease in profit before taxation in Hong Kong. The
particulars of the Group’s taxation are set out in note 12 to the

consolidated financial statements.
Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2020.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
TREASURY POLICY

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 March 2020, total assets of the Group amounted to HK$137.3
million (2019: HK$157.5 million), which is financed by total liabilities
and shareholders’ equity (comprising share capital and reserves) of
HK$55.7 million (2019: HK$69.7 million) and HK$81.6 million (2019:
HK$87.8 million), respectively.

The total interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31 March
2020 amounted to HK$25.6 million (2019: HK$41.4 million), and
current ratio as at 31 March 2020 was 2.3 times (2019: 2.2 times)
mainly due to the increase in cash and cash equivalents attributable

to the unutilised proceeds received from the Listing.
Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing total
debts (total debts are defined to include payables incurred not in
the ordinary course of business) by total equity as at the end of
each of the financial year, dropped from 47.1% as at 31 March 2019
to 31.4% as at 31 March 2020, primarily due to the decrease in the

level of total debts.

The Group has no available unutilised bank loan facilities (2019:
HK$8.0 million).

The Directors are of the view that as at the date hereof, the Group’s
financial resources are sufficient to support its business and

operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBN®NE D

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policy and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the reporting period. The management of the
Group regularly reviews the recoverable amount of trade receivables
by performing ongoing credit assessments and monitoring prompt
recovery and if necessary to make adequate impairment losses
for irrecoverable amounts. In order to achieve better cost control
and minimise the cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities are
centralised and cash is generally deposited with leading licensed

banks in Hong Kong and denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
Capital Structure

The Company’s shares were successfully listed on GEM on 27
March 2019. There has been no change in the Company’s capital
structure since 27 March 2019 to the date of this annual report. The
capital structure of the Group comprises of issued share capital
and reserves. The Directors review the Group’s capital structure

regularly.

At 31 March 2020, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$7,500,000 and the number of its issued ordinary shares was
750,000,000.

Pledge of Assets

The pledged bank deposit of HK$2.2 million carries fixed interest
rate of 1.55% per annum as at 31 March 2019. As at 31 March
2020, the Group did not have any pledge of assets.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and this annual report, the
Group did not have any other plans for material investment and

capital assets as at 31 March 2020.
Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk of US$
and RMB. Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial
impact on exchange difference between HK$ and US$ will be
immaterial as most US$ denominated monetary assets and liabilities

are held by group entities having HK$ as their functional currency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did not have
any hedging arrangements. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management of the
Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates and considering hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arises. The
management of the Group considers the exposure to the foreign

exchange risk fluctuation for the Group is not material.
Capital Commitments

At 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any capital commitments
(2019: nil).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group and the Company had no material contingent liabilities

as at the end of the current and last years.
Employees and Remuneration Policies

At 31 March 2020, the Group employed 101 (2019: 101) staff
(including Executive Directors). We determine the employees’
remuneration based on factors such as qualification, duty,
contributions and years of experience. At 31 March 2020, the
Group had no significant obligation apart from the defined
contributions schemes and there is no forfeited contribution arose
upon employees leaving the retirement benefit scheme and which
were avaliable to reduce contributions payable. In addition, the
Group provides comprehensive training programs to its employees
or sponsors the employees to attend various job-related training

courses.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Other than disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
any significant investments, material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and capital assets during the year ended 31 March
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENmE D

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS PLAN WITH ACTUAL
BUSINESS PROGRESS

The following is a comparison of the Group’s business plan as
set out in the Prospectus and the change in use of proceeds
in announcement of the Company dated 25 March 2020 (the
“Announcement”) with actual business progress up to 31 March
2020. As the Company’s shares were only listed on GEM on 27
March 2019 (“Listing Date”)

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds received by the Group from the Listing after
deducting the relevant one-off and non-recurring listing expenses
amounted to approximately HK$24.5 million (based on the public
offering price of HK$0.3 per share). The following sets forth a
summary of the revised allocation of the net proceeds and its
utilisation as at 31 March 2020, as compared to that envisaged in
the Prospectus and the change in use of the net proceeds as stated

e RS R E R RIS

LTARBRERMBAEENERTSE AR
AIEHA2020F3 A5 HNAE([AENNE
AT FUBRAGREEZE 202043 A31 HWER
EBEENLE - R2019F3 27 A([ LW H
1) ARRWRMHER GEM £ °
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BRI P ERESABELIME - A RSHE

in the Company's announcement dated 25 March 2020. All the THHE O EFERBEBIFRRT - UREBTRA
unutilised remaining balance have been placed in licensed banks in HETERAERRRRRFERNERA -
Hong Kong, and shall be utilised within the next 2 years according
to the intended purpose as set out in the table below.
Unutilised
Revised Net Proceeds
Original Utilised allocation of ~ from 25 March
allocation of Net Proceeds Unutilised 2020 to 31
Net Proceeds 25 March 2020 Net Proceeds March 2020
Business strategies E 3 (approximately)  (approximately) (approximately) (approximately)
202053 H25H
#2020 F 22020
3H25H ABH 3A31H
FERETFE 2BAN FEREFE ABAN
NREDE FEREFE NEEBTAE FERETFE
(B4) (8149) (8149) (#49)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FET FET FAET
Expand the Group’s retail presence ~ BAREEHNTERK 22,100 — 1,000 1,000
Enhance the Group's brand RAXEEMDE
recognition pHIEES 1,200 600 600 600
For the Group's working capital BIEAEENZEREER
and other general corporate Hit—REERR
purposes 1,200 100 6,100 6,100
Invest in blue-chip stocks, investment- REAEZERLREREH
grade bonds and debentures — — 16,100 16,100
24,500 700 23,800 23,800
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks and uncertainties involved in the Group’s
current operations, some of which are beyond the Group’s control.
The most significant risks relating to the business such as (i)
price fluctuation of jewellery raw materials of the Group’s jewellery
products could materially and adversely affect its business; (ii) the
Group may not be able to renew the leases of its retail stores which
may affect its business and operation when the relevant leases
expire or terminate ; (iii) the Group may not be able to sustain its
profitability; (iv) the Group has high gearing ratio that may expose
it to liquidity risk; and (v) challenges or continued downturn in
economic conditions may affect the demand for the products which

could adversely affect the Group’s sales or growth.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the Group will seek to expand the Group’s
jewellery design collection in line with customer needs, preferences
and market trends and expand its retail presence to capture a wider
range of market opportunities. We are exploring the possibility of
extending our marketing campaign to social media in the hope that
it will bring a desirable return to the shareholders and sustain a

long-term growth of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREERERNBERFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Fu Chun Keung (“Mr. Fu”)

Mr. Fu, aged 52, was appointed as the chairman, the chief executive
officer and an executive Director of the Company in January 2018.
Mr. Fu is the major founder of the Group which was established in
1997, and now responsible for supervising overall management and
strategy planning of the Group as well as its daily operation and

management.

Mr. Fu is the spouse of Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk, an executive Director,
and the younger brother of Ms. Fu Wan Ling, an executive Director.

Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk (“Ms. Cheung”)

Ms. Cheung, aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director in
March 2018. Ms. Cheung is the head of the Group’s procurement
department, and is responsible for formulating corporate and

business strategies.

Ms. Cheung has over 20 years’ experience in the jewellery industry
and joined the Group since 1999. Ms. Cheung was awarded by the
GIA a certificate for completing the requirements of the program
in Diamond Essentials in November 2014, and a certificate for
completing the requirements of the program in Diamonds and
Diamond Grading as well as a diploma certificate for completing
the diploma program in Graduate Diamonds respectively in January
2015.

Ms. Cheung is the spouse of Mr. Fu and a sister-in-law of Ms. Fu

Wan Ling, an executive Director.
Ms. Fu Wan Ling (“Ms. Fu”)

Ms. Fu, aged 59, was appointed as an executive Director in March
2018.

Ms. Fu is responsible for formulating the overall strategy,
supervising the administration and overseeing the inventory of the

Group.

Ms. Fu has over 20 years of experience in the jewellery industry and

joined the Group since August 1997.

Ms. Fu is the elder sister of Mr. Fu and the sister-in-law of Ms.
Cheung.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREERBNBERFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (“Mr. Chan”)

Mr. Chan, aged 70, is an independent non-executive Director since
September 2018. Mr. Chan is responsible for supervising and

providing independent judgment to the Board.

Mr. Chan has over 32 years of working experience in the Inland
Revenue Department. He was an assistant commissioner

responsible for tax compliance before he retired in 2005.

Mr. Chan is the sole director of a tax consultancy company,
C T Tax Consultants Limited since 2006. Further, Mr. Chan is an
independent non-executive director of Guangdong Tannery Limited
(stock code: 1058) since 2006; an independent non-executive
director of Medicskin Holdings Limited (stock code: 8307) since
2014; and an independent non-executive director of Hyfusin Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8512) since 2018, an independent
non-executive director of Accel Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1283), since February 2020, an independent non-executive
director of Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1941) since
February 2020, and a non-executive director of Alpha Financial
Group Limited since September 2019. He was also an independent
non-executive director of Man Sang International Limited (stock
code: 938) from 2015 to 2016.

Mr. Chan graduated from Central Queensland University of Australia
with a master degree in financial management in 1995. He has also
been an associate of The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators)
(U.K.) since 1974 and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries since 1994. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (formerly known
as the Hong Kong Society of Accountants) since 1986; a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since
1983; and a fellow member of the Australian Society of Certified

Practising Accountants since 1990.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREERNBEFE

Mr. Chan Chi Ming, Tony (“Mr. Tony Chan”)

Mr. Tony Chan, aged 52, is an independent non-executive Director
since September 2018. Mr. Tony Chan is responsible for supervising

and providing independent judgment to the Board.

Mr. Tony Chan possesses over 20 years of experience in the field of

business advisory, accounting and auditing.

Mr. Tony Chan obtained a bachelor’s degree in Commerce (major in
Accounting) from the Australian National University in 1990. He is a
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since 2012 and a member of the CPA Australia (formerly known as

Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants) since 1993.

Currently, Mr. Tony Chan is an independent non-executive director
of Theme International Holdings Limited (stock code: 990) since
2015. Mr. Tony Chan was as a non-executive director of Good
Fellow Healthcare Holdings Limited (stock code: 8143) from 2016
to 2018 and re-designated as an executive director in 2018 and
resigned from the position in 2019. Mr. Tony Chan also served as an
executive director of Wan Kei Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
1718) from 2016 to 2018.

Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick (“Mr. Wong”)

Mr. Wong, aged 62, is an independent non-executive Director since
September 2018. Mr. Wong is responsible for supervising and

providing independent judgment to the Board.
Mr. Wong is currently practising as a barrister-at-law in Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong obtained his Bachelor of Laws from The University of
London in 1987. Mr. Wong was called to the degree of utter barrister
of the Honourable Society of Gray’s Inn in 1989 and obtained Master
of Laws in international economic law in The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 2009 and Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate
Governance and Directorship jointly issued by Hong Kong Baptist
University and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors in 2011.
Mr. Wong obtained a degree in Master of Science in Corporate
Governance and Directorship (Distinction) issued by Hong Kong
Baptist University in 2011. Mr. Wong is also a Chartered Engineer,
a member of Institute of Energy, Institution of Mechanical Engineers

and Institution of Engineering and Technology.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Yung Kam Keung (“Mr. Yung”)
Head of Wholesales and Retail Department

Mr. Yung, aged 52, is the head of the Group’s wholesales and retail
department. Mr. Yung is responsible for overseeing the wholesaling
and retailing functions of the Group. Mr. Yung joined the Group in
2012.

Mr. Yung possesses over 20 years of experience in the jewellery
industry.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERABE

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining the
highest standards of corporate governance consistent with the
needs and requirements of the business and its shareholders, and
consistent with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The
Group has considered the CG Code and has put in place corporate
governance practices to meet the code provisions. Since the listing
of the shares of the Company on GEM, the Company has adopted
and complied with, where applicable, the CG Code during the year
ended 31 March 2020 up to the date of this Annual Report, except
for code provision A.2.1. Please refer to the paragraph headed

“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the role of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the

same individual.

Mr. Fu Chun Keung, the major founder of the Group, is chairman of
the Board and the chief executive officer. With extensive experience
in the jewelry industry, Mr. Fu is responsible for the overall
management, decision-making and strategy planning of the Group
and is instrumental to the Group’s growth and business expansion.
Since Mr. Fu is the key person for the Group’s development and
he will not undermine the Group’s interests in any way under
any circumstances, the Board considers that vesting the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer in Mr. Fu, is in the best interest
of the Group and beneficial to the management of the Group. In
addition, the senior management and the Board, which comprise
of experienced individuals, could effectively check and balance
the power and authority of Mr. Fu. Therefore, the Board considers
that deviation from CG provision A.2.1 is appropriate in such

circumstances.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and internal control
of the Company. It oversees the Group’s businesses, lays down
strategies and monitors the Group’s operational and financial
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
The Board has general powers to manage and conduct the
Company’s business. The day-to-day operations and management
are delegated by the Board to the senior management of the
Company, who will implement the strategy and direction as laid
down by the Board.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses
for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.

Composition of the Board of Directors
The Board currently comprises six members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Chun Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk

Ms. Fu Wan Ling

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat

Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 16 to 19 of
this annual report.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company and each of independent non-executive Directors
has signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years since 27 March 2019 (the “Listing Date”) and is subject
to retirement by rotation at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years.

These service contracts and letters of appointment are subject
to termination in accordance with their respective terms. The
term of the service contracts and the letters of appointment may
be renewed in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), the Listing Rules and other applicable

laws.
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At all times during the year ended, the independent non-executive
Directors represent more than one-third of the Board. Each of the
executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial term of three years which shall continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by not less than three months’

notice in writing served by either party on the other.

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board at all times complied with Rule 5.05A of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors, representing more than one-
third of the Board, of whom Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony is the Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or

related financial management expertise.

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, and considers them to be

independent.

The Directors have access to the services of the company secretary
of the Company to ensure that the Board procedures are followed.
The company secretary of the Company is Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty (“Ms
So”).

Continuous Professional Development of Directors and

Company Secretary

In compliance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Ms. So has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 March 2020. Ms. So is the vice president
of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited. Ms. So
has the necessary qualifications and experience as required under
Rule 5.14 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary contact person of
Ms. So is Mr. Wai Kiu Hon, the finance director of the Company.

All Directors attended various trainings during the year ended 31
March 2020, including trainings regarding the updating of the GEM
Listing Rules, the responsibilities and continuous obligations of
Directors and the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide. The Company had arranged suitable trainings for all
Directors in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills

as part of their continuous professional development.
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Training record of each Director received for the year ended 31

March 2020 is summarised below:

Name of Directors

BEspg

Mr. Fu Chun Keung AR ST A
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk REEZT
Ms. Fu Wan Ling BEEBRZL
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat PREFESAE
Mr. Chan Chi Ming, Tony PRFEALE A
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick F KR EAE

The Company is committed to continuously reviewing and improving
its internal systems, including those in relation to internal supervision

and control, and risk management.
Indemnity of the Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
Liability Insurance for its Directors and officers covering the legal

action against the Directors and officers.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 March 2020 to the date of this annual
report, the Company complied with Rules 5.05(1), 5.05(2) and 5.05A
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of
the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate qualifications

or accounting or related financial expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective
corporate governance framework. The Board considers that each
independent non-executive Director is independent in character
and judgment and that they all meet the specific independence
criteria as required by the GEM Listing Rules. The independent
non-executive Directors are explicitly identified in all corporate

communications of the Company.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and
timely information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In
compliance with code provision A.1.2 of the CG Code, at least 14
days’ notice has been given for a regular Board meeting to give
all Directors an opportunity to attend. Notice, agenda and board
papers of regular Board meetings are sent to all Directors within
reasonable time and at least 3 days prior to the meetings. Directors
are free to contribute and share their views at meetings and major
decisions will only be taken after deliberation at Board meetings.
Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or material
interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from
voting on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are prepared after
the meetings and the draft minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comments before the final version of which are endorsed in the

subsequent Board meeting.

Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, Audit Committee
meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings, Nomination
Committee meetings and general meetings of the Company held

during the year ended 31 March 2020 are summarized as follows:
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Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Fu Chun Keung EEREs M 404 212 i 17
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk RBERT M 404 212 n n
Ms. Fu Wan Ling BERLT n 4/4 2/2 1n N

Independent Non-executive BUFHTES

Directors

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat REERA n 404 2/ N i
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick R G- I 414 212 n n
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony BTk E i 414 22 1 11
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established three Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. All Board committees are established with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority
and duties. The terms of reference for each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee have been
published on the websites of GEM (www.hkgem.com) and the
Company (www.chongfaiholdings.com). Each committee deals
with matters in accordance with its terms of reference so that they
could perform their functions properly, including but not limited to
reporting back to the Board on their decisions or recommendations.
All committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform
their duties and have access to independent professional advice
at the Company’s expense if so reasonably required. The list of the
chairman, members and duties of each of the committees are as

follows:
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent non-executive
Directors. The Board is satisfied that the current mix of experience
of the committee members facilitates an effective functioning of their

roles. The members of the Audit Committee are:

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony (chairman)
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less

exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review, and
provide an independent view of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, oversee the audit process, scope of audit
and appointment of external auditors and perform other duties and

responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Audit Committee shall hold at least two meetings a year. The Audit
Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31 March 2020
to review and approve the Group’s quarterly, interim and annual

reports before submission to the Board for approval.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Directors, two of
whom are Independent non-executive Directors.

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony (chairman)
Mr. Fu Chun Keung
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to establish
and review the policy and structure of the remuneration for the
Directors and senior management and make recommendations to
the Board on remuneration packages of executive Directors and
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet not less than once every
year. The Remuneration Committee has held two meetings during
the year ended 31 March 2020. Meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held on 20 June 2019 and 31 March 2020 to review
the policy and structure of the remuneration for the Directors and
senior management and make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of executive Directors and the senior
management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three Directors, two of whom
are independent non-executive Directors and one is executive
Director.

Mr. Fu Chun Keung (chairman)
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing and
assessing the composition of the Board and the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment and removal of
Directors. In recommending candidates for appointment to the
Board, the Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit
against objective criteria and with due regards to the benefits of
diversity on the Board in accordance with the board diversity policy
adopted by the Company. Diversity of the Board will be considered
from a number of perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, industry experience,
technical and professional skills and/or qualifications, knowledge,
length of services and time to be devoted as a Director.
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The Company will also take into account factors relating to its own
business model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee has held one meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2020. A meeting of the Nomination Committee
was held on 20 June 2019 to review composition of the Board and
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and to adopt a nomination policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

Nomination Policy

According to the Nomination Policy, in evaluating and selecting
any candidate for directorship, the Nomination Committee would
consider the criteria, including, among other things, character
and integrity, qualifications (cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience and
diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy), any potential
contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in terms of
qualifications, skills, experience, independence and diversity, and
willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s).

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon receipt of
the proposal on appointment of new director and the biographical
information (or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship. The Nomination
Committee should then recommend to the Board to appoint
the appropriate candidate for directorship with a ranking of the
candidates (if applicable) by order of preference based on the
needs of the Company and reference check of each candidate.

Board Diversity Policy

In designing the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee
has considered Board diversity from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, race, language, cultural background,
educational background, industry experience and professional
experience. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

ARAIN T REBEAR G RHRA R TR EE
FTREMOAER - FRREBUABAEST RIR
Al WERAIENAERKHEEGELNE
B o

HZE2020F3A31HIEFERN » B8BIT—IXNIRE
HEEEEE  REBREEEEN2019F6 A 20
ART—REE  URFNESSMHAEAKRTHE
SMIFHITEERBYM  RERMNRERBRRRES
KBS ITEBUR -

REBE

REBRBER  RAFHERBEEAMEFREA
K RAZEBSKEENEERE(EFEE) M
BERBIE BROULERHEEES  HEERK
e AERER UREFSKNEZ TILR
RETHETERER)  REANERER &
B RR BYUMKESTIEITHEAREEEHRK
BEMEBEEER  ARREREREREHRM
RANEBEITESE R LEEFZEIRENR

=

=

REZBENR REFERERIZENERN
EHLEEANEEE N (RHEBHB)EZ  RIE
PR EZEEA - UEEZREARETS
BRETEZERG - REZEERREEZES
BREBEARANFTELRZREANEERS @ &
REBANBEAFZERBAERETEE(N
) °

EEERESTILEE

REFESENERE  REZESRZETE
EREZEENEZ LI BREETRRVIER - &
REE XIEBR HEER TEEREE
& - MEEZEENZEARBEABRENR
Al ERNEBIEEENEZTLWNERR -
BETEREZEREA

2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT &%k

27



28

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERABE

We believe the Board has a well-balance of cultural background,
educational background, industry experience and professional
experience where members of the Board have diversified branch of

learning and working experience in different countries and regions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

According to code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, the Board
is responsible for performing the duties relating to corporate
governance functions. The Board has the following responsibilities
in performing the corporate governance duties of the Company
as follows: (i) developing and reviewing the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making recommendations;
(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management
of the Group; (iii) reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and (v) reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclose in the corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings (the
“Required Standard of Dealing”) as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiries of all the Directors, each of them have confirmed that they
have complied with the Required Standard of Dealings during the
year ended 31 March 2020. No incident of non-compliance was

noted by the Company during such period.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the fees paid/payable to the
external auditor in respect of audit is approximately HK$500,000.
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results and cash flow during the reporting period. A statement from
the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements is set out on pages 96 to 99 of this annual
report. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2020, the Directors of the Company
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimated that are prudent, fair
and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going

concern basis.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the

Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control and risk management systems. Such
internal control and risk management systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable but not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board with the supported of the Audit Committee as well as the
management, had conducted a review on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control and risk management systems during the
year ended 31 March 2020 which covered financial, operational,
compliance procedural and risk management functions and had
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s

accounting and financial reporting function.

In light of the size and scale of the Group’s business, the Group
does not have an internal audit function as the Board has reviewed
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
internal audit function within the Group. The Board will continue to
review and consider to establish such department as and when it

thinks necessary.
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The Group believes that good corporate governance practices are
very important for maintaining and promoting investor confidence
and for the sustainable growth of the Group. The Group has
therefore made continued efforts to uplift its quality of corporate
governance. It has established an effective system of internal
controls and adopted a series of measures to ensure its safety and
effectiveness. As a result, the Group is able to safeguard its assets
and protect the interests of the Shareholders. The Board is of the
view that the systems of internal control and risk management are
effective and there are no irregularities, improprieties, fraud or other
deficiencies that suggest material deficiency in the effectiveness of

the Group’s internal control system.
Internal Control System

The Company has maintained an internal control system and its
implementation has been considered by the Audit Committee and
the Board as effective. Meanwhile, the Group strives for continual
improvement through efforts to enhance controls by providing
ongoing employee training and development, talent retention, and
other measures. The Group follows a disciplined and balanced
compensation framework with strong internal governance and
independent Board oversight. The impact of risk and control issues
are carefully considered in the Group’s performance evaluation and

incentive compensation processes.

The Group’s internal control system and procedures are designed to
meet its specific business needs and to minimise its risk exposure.
The Group has adopted different internal guidelines, along with
written policies and procedures to monitor and lessen the impact
of risks which are relevant to the Group’s business and control
the Group’s daily business operations. In order to ensure sound
implementation of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, the Group has also adopted various on-going measures as

set out below:

—  the Group has engaged an internal control adviser to perform
an internal control review on the Group and has adopted
a revised operations and procedures manual which has

included recommendations from the internal control adviser;

—  the Group has improved its existing internal control framework
by adopting a set of internal control manual and policies,
which cover corporate governance, risk management,

operations and legal matters;
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— the Group will assess and monitor the implementation of
its internal control manual and policies by the relevant
departments and companies in the Group through regular
audits and inspections; and

—  the Group will provide internal training to staff as appropriate
in order to enable them to follow the internal control

procedures.

With reference to the internal control manual and policies of the
Group, the risk management and internal control systems are
reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis by the Board with
the support of the Audit Committee and the management and will
be further reviewed and assessed at least once each year by the

Board. These systems were considered effective and adequate.

The Group will continuously monitor and improve the Group’s
management procedures to ensure that effective operation of those
internal controls are in line with the growth of the Group’s business

and good corporate governance practice.

Finance Director is responsible for overseeing the Company’s
internal control measures in relation to anti-money laundering and

cash management.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Group has one main IT platform that supports its business
operations, namely POS system. The IT platform was developed
by an independent third party contractors to suit the Group’s
requirements and it is continually refined and upgraded to meet the

Group’s business needs.

The Group’s POS system records sales and inventory movements as
it is linked to every retail store. The Group’s management is able to
manage effectively the retail stores through the POS system which
provides them with the performance of each retail store and its
inventory status. With the ability of the Group’s POS system to track
the inventory movements in each retail store, the Directors are in a
better position to assess what type of products are more popular in
each retail store, which in turn enables the Group to respond more

swiftly to market demands.
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As detailed in the Company’s announcement dated 2 April 2019,
the Group discovered an unauthorised access to its IT system
and its POS system, while certain financial records and data have
been lost as a result of the unauthorised access (the “Issue”). The
Group has commenced a thorough investigation regarding the
Issue and has conducted a comprehensive check on its IT system.
Upon completion of such investigation, the Group has implemented
appropriate upgrades of its IT system to defend against any
further unauthorised access or attacks. The Group will continue to

strengthen the security of its IT system from time to time.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The dividend policy of the Company is set out as follows:

Payment of dividends by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company. The
Board will review the dividend policy as appropriate from time to
time. The declaration and payment of dividends shall be determined
at the sole discretion of the Board. The Board shall also take into
account the following factors when considering whether to propose

dividends and determining the dividend amount:
1. the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company

and each of the members of the Group;

3. the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure

requirements and future expansion plans;
4. the Group’s liquidity position;

5. contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by
the Company to the Shareholders or by the Company’s

subsidiaries to the Company;
6. taxation considerations;

7. general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and

position of the Group; and

8. other factors that the Board deems relevant.

AR RQE B H A2019F4 A2H 0 A& BT
o AEBEBRERCEBEALEMBERS
REPOSE#FZ  METEBLHEKEBERK
B AMER([ZBH]) - AERTFHERAEZ
FHITHEARERFETEZERSE - REHEH
BEEKE  AEBHHEANBREREREE

& VETRy LEAE AT E fth R AR B ME A SHEE © X
SEBEETRINEEEAMRERNETS ©

IR B BUR
AABRBBEHIMAT :

ARARREBNXNNZHASEEARERAR
ABERXERARARS - EEERTRE
i R BEE - EIRMEKNREHHEES
RERBEE - RERBEDEFRIRMN RS REEK
SoEN  BEESNEERTIRAE:

el

=l

Hp B

1. AKRENERRESRMEERER

2. ARARAREZKEARNRE BN R
A IR

3. AEEMZEELER BEAMXERR
RIRIERATE

4. AEEHRBESANN

5. HARRRMBRFARBNNE QR AR
RAXAB T ERE KR

6. WHEE:

7. —REBERN  AEBERBOHEEEHR
AREHARENRB AP BRI LM E
REENEMABRINBEE Rk

0

8. EFERAREHENEMEE-

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED 2B £ EZERERAF



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
% B A

SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Pursuant to
the Articles, general meetings shall also be convened on the written
requisition of any one or more members of the Company deposited
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event
the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. Such meeting should be held within two

months after the deposit of such requisition.

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Directors. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each

general meeting.

Under Article 12.3 of the Articles, any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company may at all
times have the right, by a written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company, to require the convening of
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. If, within
21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The Board is not aware of any provisions allowing the shareholders
of the Company to put forward proposals at general meetings of the
Company under the Articles and the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at general
meetings may refer to the preceding paragraph to make a written
requisition to require the convening of an extraordinary general

meeting of the Company.
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Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company are published on the

Company’s website.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company as follows:

Address:  No. 6-13, Faerie Court, 80 Ko Shan Road, Hung Hom,

Kowloon, Hong Kong
Attention: Company Secretary

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous

enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there have been no
significant changes to the constitutional documents of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty is the company secretary of the Company. She
has complied with Rule 5.15 of GEM Listing Rules by taking no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update her skills

and knowledge.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2020.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 11 January 2018.
Pursuant to a reorganisation in preparation for the Listing, the
Company became the holding company of the Group. Details of the
reorganisation are set out in the Prospectus. The Company’s shares
were listed on the GEM on 27 March 2019 by way of share offer.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group
is principally engaged engaged in the retail of its own products
through its network of seven retail stores under the brand name of
“Chong Fai Jewellery (BI#EZKE )" strategically located in Kowloon
and the New Territories. The Group also engages in the wholesale
of its jewellery products to other jewellery retailers, and the trading
of recycled gold products from the general public to customers who

purchase recycled gold products from the Group.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set

out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The financial results of the Group for 2019/20 are set out on pages
100 to 191 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, and assets and liabilities of the Group
announced in the past 4 years are set out on page 192 of this

annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

The fair review of the Group’s business is detailed in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 15 of this
annual report. The discussion constitutes a part of this Directors’
Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks faced by the Group are set out in page 15
of this annual report. As it is a non-exhaustive list, there may be
other risks and uncertainties further to the disclosure. Besides, this
annual report does not constitute a recommendation or an advice
for anyone to invest in the securities of the Company. Investors
are advised to make their own judgement or consult professionals

before making any investment in the securities of the Company.
Important Events

The Board has not identified any important events affecting the

Group that have occurred since the end of this financial year.
Key Performance Indicators

The key performance indicators are detailed in the financial review
set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to
15 of this annual report. This discussion constitutes a part of this

Report of Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income of this annual report.

No final dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2020, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2019: nil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 24% of the Group’s total revenue.
The five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 64% of
the Group’s total purchases. In addition, the largest customer
accounted for approximately 16% of the Group’s total revenue while
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 30% of the Group’s
total purchases. None of the Directors, their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet its
immediate and long-term business goals. During the year ended 31
March 2020, there were no material and significant dispute between
the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial performance of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2020 and the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2020 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 100 and 191 respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the share capital and share options of
the Company are set out in notes 25 and 26 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive right under the Articles
of Association of the Company and the Cayman lIslands law, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 103 and in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the Company had distributable reserve of
approximately HK$17,163,000, calculated under the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. Such amount includes share premium which
may be distributable provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts or when they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company and its
subsidiaries made charitable donations of approximately HK$5,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DIRECTORS

The members of the Board during the year ended 31 March 2020

and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Chun Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk

Ms. Fu Wan Ling
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Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat

Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of

Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

In accordance with article 16.19 of the Articles, at every annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall retire
from office by rotation, provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Accordingly, Ms. Fu
Wan Ling and Mr. Chan Cheong Tat will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which shall continue thereafter
unless and until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in

writing served by either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which shall continue thereafter
unless and until terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other. Save as disclosed
above, none of the Directors, including those to be re-elected at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

There was no transactions, arrangement or contract of significance
connected to the business of the Group to which the Company, its
subsidiaries, or its holding company or any of its fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which any Director and the Director’s connected
party had a direct or indirect material interest, subsisting at the end
of the year or at any time during that year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has in force
indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant statutes for
the benefits of the Directors. The permitted indemnity provisions are
provided for in the Company’s Articles of Association in respect of
potential losses and liability associated with legal proceedings that
may be brought against such Directors and the payment of any sum
primarily due from the Company that may be liable by the Directors.

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for the

benefit of the Directors is currently in force.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or exited during the year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

In compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15
of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has established a
Remuneration Committee to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for all the Directors’
remuneration. The Directors’ remuneration is determined by the
Board with reference to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities,
the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee and the
performance and results of the Group. Details of the remuneration
of the Directors are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial

statements of this annual report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules from each of the
Independent non-executive Directors and considers that all the
Independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Chan Cheong Tat,
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick and Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

At 31 March 2020, interests and short positions of the Directors in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company and
the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing

Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Name Capacity
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Mr. Fu? Interest in controlled corporation
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Ms. Fu® Interest in controlled corporation
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Ms. Cheung®®
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Interest in controlled corporation,
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Notes:
1. All interests stated are long positions.
2. Mr. Fu, Ms. Fu and Ms. Cheung collectively are interested in the entire

issued share capital of Mythe Group Holdings Company Limited (“MGH
Limited”) and they are therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by MGH Limited by virtue of the SFO.

3. Ms. Cheung is the spouse of Mr. Fu and she is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Mr. Fu by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed herein, neither the Directors nor any of their
associates had any interests or short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 March 2020 as defined in Section 352 of
the SFO. In addition, at no time during the year had the Directors
and chief executive of the Company (including their spouses and
children under 18 years of age) any interest in, or been granted,
or exercised any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or
debentures, if applicable) of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO). Save as disclosed
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 March 2020, the interests or short positions of person in the
shares and underlying shares and debentures of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who
is, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other members of the
Group, or any other substantial shareholders whose interests or
short positions were recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Name Capacity
=L =37
MGH Limited® Beneficial Interest
EnEn
Notes:
1. All interests stated are long positions.
2. The entire issued share capital of MGH Limited is legally and

beneficially owned by Mr. Fu, Ms. Fu and Ms. Cheung who are deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by MGH Limited by virtue of the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and
chief executives of the Company) who had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who is, directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other members of the Group, or any other
substantial Shareholders whose interests or short positions were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme as set out below, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into by the Group, or existed during the
year ended 31 March 2020.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the written resolutions of
the sole Shareholder passed on 6 March 2019 (the “Share Option
Scheme”). The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in compliance
with the provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Since the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme to the 31
March 2020, no share option was granted, exercised, outstanding,

cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

Summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as

follow:
(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
the Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b) below)
have had or may have made to the Group. The Share Option
Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants an opportunity
to have a personal stake in the Company with the view to

achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivating the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group;

and

(i)  attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining
on-going business relationships with the Eligible
Participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial

to the long term growth of the Group.
(b) Participant of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance with
paragraph (c) below to the following persons (the “Eligible
Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or

officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any Directors (including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company

or any of its subsidiaries;
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(iiiy any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and

agents to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(iv) such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group,
the assessment criteria of which are:

(a) contribution to the development and performance
of the Group;

(b)  quality of work performed for the Group;

(c) initiative and commitment in performing his/her
duties; and

(d) length of service or contribution to the Group.

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities;

(i)  the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and

(iii)  the nominal value of a Share.
Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
twenty-one days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to the
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option
is HK$1.

Maximum number of Shares of the Company available for
issue

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 75,000,000 Shares, represent 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.
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(f) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted to any participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed

1% of the Shares in issue.
(g) Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years from
the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination

thereof.
(h) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of ten years commencing on 6 March 2019, subject to early

termination provisions contained in the Share Option Scheme.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, there is sufficient public float
of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued share as required
under the GEM Listing Rules.

CHANGE OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

The Company and Grand Moore Capital Limited have mutually
agreed to terminate the compliance adviser agreement dated 27
March 2018 and the supplemental deed dated 2 May 2019 with
effect from 1 January 2020 due to the consideration of fee levels.
Ample Capital Limited (“Ample Capital”’) has been appointed as the
replacement compliance adviser to the Company pursuant to Rule
6A.27 of the GEM Listing Rules with effect from 1 January 2020. For
further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 31 December 2019.
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INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed Ample Capital Limited (“Ample Capital”)
to be the compliance adviser. As informed by Ample Capital, neither
Ample Capital nor any of its directors or employees or associates,
has or may have, any interest in the share capital of the Company or
any member of the Group (including options or rights to subscribe
for such securities), which is required to be notified to the Company
pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules, except for the
compliance adviser agreement entered into between the Company
and Ample Capital dated 1 January 2020.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions which were undertaken in the normal
course of business are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements. For those related party transactions that
constitutes connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions (as the case may be) under the GEM Listing Rules,
these transactions are exempt from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions with related
parties which are required to be disclosed in this annual report in
accordance with the requirements of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing

Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, none of the Directors or
their respective close associates (as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules) had any business or interests in a business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to protect the Group’s interest in its business activities,
on 6 March 2019, each of Mr. Fu, Ms. Cheung, Ms. Fu and
MGH Limited, the controlling shareholders of the Company (the
“Controlling Shareholders”) as covenantors executed the deed
of non-competition in favour of the Company (the “Deed of Non-
Competition”).

In accordance with the Deed of Non-Competition, the Controlling
Shareholders jointly and severally agreed, whether as principal
or agent and whether undertaken directly or indirectly (including
through any close associate, subsidiary, partnership, joint venture
or other contractual arrangement of theirs), not to do the following
from the Listing Date and ending on the occurrence of the earlier of
(i) the date on which the shares of the Company cease to be listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange; or (ii) the date of which (a) the
Controlling Shareholders, individually or collectively cease to own,
directly or indirectly, 30% or more of the then issued share capital
of the Company and (b) the Controlling Shareholders, cease to

control the composition of a majority of the Board:

(a) directly or indirectly, either on their own account, in
conjunction with, on behalf of, or through any person, firm
or company, among other things, in any form carry on,
participate or be interested, engage or otherwise be involved
in or acquire or hold shares or interests in (in each case
whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and
whether for profit, reward or otherwise) or assist or support
a third party to engage in or participate in the current and
potential business engaged or to be engaged by the Group
referred to in the Prospectus including but not limited to
design, production, retail and wholesale of jewellery products
(the “Restricted Business”) and where they become aware of
such engagement of the Restricted Business they shall notify

the Company forthwith;
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(b) solicit or procure any of the suppliers and/or the customers
of the Group from time to time to terminate their business
relationships or otherwise reduce the amount of business with
the Group;

(c) solicit or procure any of the Directors, senior management or
other employees of the Group from time to time to resign or

otherwise cease providing services to the Group; and/or

(d) unless with the prior written consent of the Company, disclose
any confidential information of the Group to any other third

parties.

The Company has received a confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders on their compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition
during for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Details of the undertaking has been set out in the section headed

“Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

BANK BORROWING

Particulars of bank borrowing of the Group as at 31 March 2020 are

set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of contributions to the retirement benefits schemes of the
Group are set out in notes 9 and 29 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on
27 March 2019 and the net proceeds raised from the issue of new
shares of the Company, after deduction of the professional fees,
underwriting commissions and other fees payable by the Company

in connection with the listing, were estimated to be HK$24.5 million.

For details, please refer to the paragraph headed “Use of Proceeds”
in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual

report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with terms of
reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee include
the review and supervision of the financial reporting process, the
internal monitoring system and risk management system of the
Group. As at the date of this annual report, the audit committee has
three members comprising Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, Mr. Wong Wing
Keung Meyrick and Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony (chairman), the three

independent non-executive Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, except for the deviation from
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Group has no material deviation
from the CG Code as set forth in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules throughout the accounting period covered by this annual
report. Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Fu is both the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. In view that Mr.
Fu has been assuming day-to-day responsibilities in operating and
managing the Group, the Board believes that with the support of
Mr. Fu’'s extensive experience and knowledge in the business of
the Group, vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in Mr. Fu strengthens the solid and
consistent leadership and thereby allows for efficient business

planning and decision which is in the best interest to the Group.
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The Directors consider that the deviation from provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code is appropriate in such circumstances. Notwithstanding
the above, the Board is of the view that this management structure
is effective for the Group’s operations, and sufficient checks and

balances are in place.

The Directors are committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance with a view to safeguarding the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole. The principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the section headed

“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to enhancing environmental protection to
minimize the impact of its activities on the environment. It is the
policy of the Group to promote clean operation and strives to making
the most efficient use of resources in its operations, and minimizing
wastes and emission. Details are set out in Environmental, Social

and Governance Report on pages 53 to 91 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s operations are
mainly carried out by the subsidiaries of the Company in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group. There was no material breach
of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations

committed by the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19") and the
subsequent quarantine measures and travel restrictions imposed
in worldwide countries in 2020 may have impact on the Group’s
sales in the jewellery business. As at the date of issuance of this
annual result announcement, the directors of the Company are still
assessing the impact that the COVID-19 will have on the Group’s

operations.
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AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as auditor of the Company on 4
February 2020. On 4 February 2020, the Company appointed Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited. The consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 have been audited by Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited, who will retire at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) and offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company to re-appoint Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as

the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited

Fu Chun Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2020
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE -HERERB®RSE

INTRODUCTION, ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES

Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (formerly
known as Dominate Group Holdings Company Limited) (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “we”)
is a vertically integrated jeweller based in Hong Kong. The Group
is primarily engaged in the retail of its own products through its
network of seven retail stores under the brand name of “Chong
Fai Jewellery (BI}EZKE )" strategically located in Kowloon and the
New Territories. Being vertically integrated, the Group possesses
the means to control the diversity, quality and pricing of its own
jewellery designs produced in-house at its production facility in
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). The Group’s principal products are jewellery products,

including gem-set jewellery and pure gold products.

This is the Group’s second Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “ESG Report’) summarises the environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) initiatives, plans and performances
of the Group and demonstrates its commitment to sustainable

development.

The Group adheres to the management policies of sustainable ESG
development. We are also committed to handling the Group’s ESG
affairs effectively and responsibly, which is integrated as one of the
core components of our business strategy as we believe this is the

key to our continuous success in the future.
The ESG Governance Structure

The Group has established the ESG Taskforce (the “Taskforce”).
The Taskforce comprises core members from different departments
and is responsible for collecting relevant information on our ESG
aspects for preparing the ESG Report. The Taskforce reports
to the Board of Directors (the “Board”), assists in identifying
and evaluating the Group’s ESG risks and the effectiveness of
the internal control mechanisms. The Taskforce also examines
and evaluates our performances in different aspects such as
environment, health and safety, labour standards and product
responsibilities in the ESG aspects. The Board sets up a general
direction for the Group’s ESG strategies, ensuring the effectiveness

in the control of its risks and internal control mechanisms.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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SCOPE OF REPORTING

Unless specified otherwise, the ESG Report covers the Group’s
operating segments, including seven retail stores under the brand
name of “Chong Fai Jewellery” which are strategically located
in Kowloon and the New Territories in Hong Kong, office located
in Hung Hum and the production facility in Shenzhen. The ESG
Report covers the Group’s policies, compliance issues as well as
key performance indicators (“KPI”) in two subject areas, namely,
environmental and social of the above segments under the Group’s
operation from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020. We will continue
to expand the scope of disclosure in the future as the Group’s
data collection system and sustainable development work further

develop.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with all
applicable provisions set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”)
contained in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

For the Group’s corporate governance practices, please refer
to pages 20 to pages 34 for the section “Corporate Governance

Report” contained in the Group’s 2019/20 Annual Report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and
measures taken by the Group during the year ended 31 March
2020.

HREEE
BRTHRERIBIBALASN - AREHREBEREAE
EHEBESI  BECEMRESNERITAR
BEth B ELABDBIRE |MIE T EE - (R ALH
WM AZERRIITREERE - NREBRER
2019 4 A1 B £ 20203 A31 AR £&
AEEZETHOPERERMENEEZHE
ZHERREREEURERESEE([EREXN
BED #SAEEZAHKERFEBRA - U
RABEBRETIEREZE BB RRER
BEABZRGE -

i}

ARERRBEBHAIZ AR R FGEMEH

(TR5% - 4 EREABREESIDARERES -

EAASEMNTEELRESR HEARELEE
2019/20 FRE20E 4 BN EEARENR »

WEH™E
AREFMAEBREEZ2020F3 A31HIEF
ERBMIEREE (e RERAFEANEE - B
HEVOHEHE -

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED RIiE3% 2 &£ BIERERAT]



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE -HERERB®RSE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their views related to its
business and ESG issues. In order to understand and address
stakeholders’ concerns, we communicate with our key stakeholders,
including but not limited to shareholders and investors, customers
and business partners, employees, suppliers, regulatory bodies
and government authorities, and media and the public through
different channels such as conferences and electronic platforms.
In formulating operational strategies and ESG measures, the Group
takes into account stakeholders’ expectations and strives to improve
our performance through mutual cooperation to create greater value

for society.
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Stakeholders Expectations and Concerns

Communication Channels

& HEREE BERE
Shareholders and o Return on investment o General meeting and other shareholder
investors . BB H meetings
IR KIS EE . Corporate governance D BAFRXEMEMBRERS
. TEER . Financial reports
. Business compliance o Mg mE
. By aogsiRid . Announcements and circulars
. NERIBHE
o Website
. Rk

Customers and business o High quality products and

Customer satisfaction survey

environment
. ERZ2HITIERR

partners services . EPREERAE
EPREEEH . = o E 8 2 o AN AR TS e Customer service team
. Protect the rights of . B P RS E K
customers . Customer support hotline and email
s REZXP#ZR . BPEARME T
Employees o Employees’ compensation o Trainings, seminars and briefing
8T and benefits sessions
. B TH# B AsE R . gl - e NS RE
o Career development o Regular performance reviews
. Bx#ER . E BB
° Health and safety working
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Stakeholders

Expectations and Concerns

Communication Channels

o TAIFEMERE

KOE HMEREE BERE
Suppliers o Fair and open procurement o Supplier management meetings and
AR . N RAFAEFRE events

. Sustainable sourcing . HEBEESHRNEH

o Supplier audit
U HEEEZR

s  RRERER

° Procurement manager
o IREBKIE
Regulatory bodies and . Compliance with laws and . Compliance manager
government authorities regulations U AR
EEE S RIBUT S J B EEER . On-site inspections
. Support economic . RS@mE
development o Project manager of regulatory bodies
s XRKEER o  EEMBBALE
Media and the public o Involvement in communities o Community activities and partner
HESE AR . G ! programs
. Business compliance . tEEBMA ER TS
s XBARM e Media
. Environmental protection . s
awareness . ESG reports
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and staff of the Group’s respective major
operations have participated in the preparation of the ESG Report to
assist the Group in reviewing our operations and identifying relevant
ESG issues and assess the importance of related matters to our
businesses and stakeholders. Based on the assessed significant
ESG issues, a data collection questionnaire was prepared to collect
information from relevant departments and business units of the
Group.

The following is a matrix showing the Group’s material ESG topics in
the ESG Report:
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HIHEHERRENTRIZE
LEVEL OF INFLUENCE ON STAKEHOLDERS’ ASSESSMENTS AND DECISIONS

BEREREIERARARNEZ EER
Materiality Matrix of Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited

Low

& WO BEIGRNBEEEE
LEVEL OF SIGNIFICANCE OF ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS
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MATERIAL ESG TOPICS

R - HEREREEERE

1. Emission management 2. Waste management
PR ER EEYE R
8. Water management 4. Energy management
KERE R BEIRE R
5. Use of packaging materials 6. Working environment
BEMEER THERE
7. Remuneration and benefits 8. Recruitment, promotion and dismissal
B A A B - B KRR
9. Equal opportunities 10. Internal health and safety management
FEKE WNEREE R 2B
11.  Safety production 12.  Training management
TEEE ElE s
13.  Supply chain management 14. Quality assurance
HEEER BERE
15.  Protection of intellectual property (“IP") Rights 16. Customer services
R ([ MBMERE ) RE BF R
17. Advertising and labelling 18. Protection of privacy
B RIS FhBS (R &
19. Anti-corruption 20. Corporate social responsibility
R&S rEHEEME

The Group confirmed that it has established appropriate and
effective management policies and internal control systems for ESG
issues and confirmed that the disclosed contents are in compliance

with the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.

CONTACT US

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions and
suggestions. You can provide valuable advice in respect of the ESG
Report or our performances in sustainable development by email:

info@chongfaijewellery.com.

AEEEREHRE  HEREREERIAE
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ABESHEARBEEETANRERHRESRE
R - WEEH = info@chongfaijewellery.com.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Al.

Emissions

The Group adheres to the strategy of sustainable
development in its operations. With the aim to
reduce energy consumption and greenhouse gas
("GHG”) emissions, the Group has always been
exploring protection operating models of less impact
to the environment, recognising the importance of
environmental management, and striving to protect the
environment in order to fulfil the Group’s commitment to
social responsibility.

The Group’s mission is to minimise the pollution to
the environment, make continuous improvement,
and comply with relevant environmental laws and
regulations. To achieve so, we have identified the
opportunities to reduce exhaust gas emissions,
wastewater discharge, water use, waste generation and
disposal, as well as energy consumption by analysing
the environmental risks within our operations, and
conducted regular monitoring to ensure the issues were
well managed.

The Group closely follows the latest national and
regional environmental protection laws and regulations,
thereby focusing on strengthening environmental
protection measures to comply with related local laws
and regulations and fully implement environmental
policies. The Group complies with applicable laws
and regulations, including “Environmental Protection
Law of the PRC”, “Law of the PRC on Environmental
Impact Assessment”, “Administrative Regulations
on the Environmental Protection of Construction
Projects”, “Category-based Administration Catalogue
for Environmental Impact Assessment of Construction
Projects”, “Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution”, “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC”, “Law of
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Noise Pollution”, “Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste”, “Work Safety Law of the PRC”, “Regulations
on Administration of Precursor Chemicals” and Hong

Kong’s “Waste Disposal Ordinance” etc.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did
not have any violation of relevant local environmental
laws and regulations in relation to exhaust gas and
GHG emissions, water and land discharge, and the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes that

have a significant impact on the Group.
Emission Management
Exhaust Gas Emissions

The Group has generated limited amount of exhaust
gas emissions in its production facility. To mitigate
the exhaust gas emissions, the Group has engaged
independent qualified inspector to monitor and test the
water, air, soil, and other environmental conditions of its
production facility. It has also implemented its emission
control guidelines for cleaner production, for example,
dust filtering system, filtering system with activated
carbon absorbent and exhaust scrubber system were
installed to treat air pollutants which were mainly the
fugitive dust emissions and volatile organic compounds,
and met the legal emission standard before releasing
to the atmosphere. The installed systems, not only,
effectively reduce the exhaust gas emissions, but also

protect its workers’ health.
GHG Emissions

The major sources of the Group’s GHG emissions are
direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) from combustion
of petrol for transportation and energy indirect GHG

emissions (Scope 2) from purchased electricity.

The Group actively adopts electricity conservation and
energy saving measures to reduce GHG emissions,

including:

o Adopts environmental conservation and energy
saving measures. Relevant measures are
described under “Energy Management” in Aspect
A2;

o Conducts monthly vehicle maintenance to reduce
fuel consumption effectively, thereby reducing

carbon and exhaust gas emissions;
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RE - #HE8RE

a S

Conducts annual inspections to ensure the

compliance with national emission standards; and

Reduces the number of business trips through
utilising electronic communication such as video

conferences and WeChat meetings.

The employee’s awareness of reducing GHG emissions

has been increased through these GHG mitigation

measures.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s total

GHG

emissions' was approximately 181.96 tCO.e,

and its intensity® was approximately 1.80 tCO,e

per employee.® The Group’s direct GHG emissions

(Scope 1) from petrol consumption of vehicles was

approximately 10.33 tCO,e, and the energy indirect

GHG

emissions (Scope 2) from purchased electricity

was approximately 171.63 tCO,e.

Notes:

1.

GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon
dioxide equivalent and are based on, but not limited to,
“The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources
Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix II: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
latest released emission factors of China’s regional power
grid basis and CLP Power Limited, “Global Warming
Potential Values” from IPCC Fifth Assessment Report
(AR5).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 101 full-time
employees in total which includes the office, retail
shops and production facility. The data is also used for
calculating other intensity data.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s total
GHG emissions was approximately 164.05 tCO,e per
employee, and its intensity was approximately 1.63 tCO.,e

per employee.
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Waste Management
Hazardous Waste Handling Method
Production facility

The Group produces a wide range of wastes across the
operations; therefore, it has established comprehensive
procedures to manage wastes — no matter whether they
are recyclable, non-recyclable or hazardous. Hazardous
wastes such as flammable materials (such as waste
cloth, waste gloves, waste cotton swabs and waste
cotton yarn) and corrosive wastes (such as container,
hydrochloric acid, electroplating rinse-wastewater) are
generally required more efforts and clear guidance
provided for the workers to follow including wastes
segregation, labelling, storage and transportation. The
Group has established guidelines in governing the
management and disposal of hazardous wastes, all the
hazardous wastes are collected by licensed contractors
for treatment, and complied with “The Measures for the
Administration of Permit for Operation of Dangerous
Wastes”. The Group purchases any precursor chemical
should report the type and quantity in demand, prior to
the purchase, to the public security authority of the local
people’s government at the county level in compliance
with the “Administrative Regulations on Precursor
Chemicals”. To promote waste reduction and recycling
practices, the Group encourages its employees to
recycle the recyclable materials and reuse useful parts
of the waste such as jewellery pieces and packaging to

divert the waste from landfills.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s
production of related products has decreased, leading
to the amount of hazardous wastes generated was

regarded as immaterial.
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Non-hazardous Waste Handling Method

The Group adheres to the waste management principles
and strives to properly manage and dispose all
wastes produced in its business activities. The waste
management practice has been complied with related
environmental protection laws and regulations. The non-
hazardous wastes generated by the Group’s business
activities mainly consist of paper, ink cartridges and
waste battery. After collection and sorting by the Group,
such wastes will eventually be collected and processed
by general waste service providers. Recyclables (such

as paper and ink cartridges) will be recycled.

The Group regularly monitors the consumption of paper,
ink cartridge and battery, and implements various
reduction measures. The Group emphasises the waste
management principle of “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle”
to encourage employees to sort waste at source and
recycle to achieve the objectives in waste reduction in
its operations. The Group maintains a high standard
in waste reduction, educates employees about the
importance of sustainable development and provides
relevant supports in order to enhance their skills and

knowledge in sustainability.

The Group has implemented measures to handle such
non-hazardous wastes and launched different reduction

initiatives, including but not limited to:

o Educated all employees on reducing the use of

disposable items such as plastic tableware;

o Purchased microwaves in offices to encourage
employees to take lunch boxes by themselves
instead of ordering takeaway food, which could

largely reduce the waste of food packages;
° Advocated the reusing of office stationeries; and

o Provided glass cups to clients and guests instead

of disposable ones.
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Paper Management
Office

One of the main natural resources consumed by the
Group is paper from its office printing machines. To
minimise the use of paper, the Group has put great

efforts into the implementation of following initiatives:

o Chosen suppliers with more environmentally
friendly paper source, so as to indirectly reduce
the amount of tree losses while consuming the

same amount of paper;

o Promoted paperless office, and disseminate
information by electronic means (i.e. via email or

e-bulletin boards) as much as possible;

o Set duplex printing as the default mode for most

network printers when printouts are needed;

o Disseminated the idea of “Think before print” by
using posters and stickers in offices to remind the

staff of avoiding unnecessary printings;

° Reconsidered boxes and trays as containers
beside photocopier to collect single-sided paper

for reuse and recycling;

° Used the back of old single-sided documents for

printing or as draft paper;
° Recycled used stationery whenever possible; and
. Used as less as paper whenever possible.
Retail shops

The Group’s retail shops has also consumed paper,
which are mainly the sales receipt notes. To minimise
the use of paper, the Group has put great efforts into

the implementation of following measures:

° Tried to minimise printing excessive sales receipts

notes whenever possible;

° Effectively distributed the sales receipts notes
to each retail shops according to their sales

performance; and
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° Used as less as sales receipts notes whenever

possible.

Through the above non-hazardous waste reduction
measures, the employee’s awareness in waste reduction
has been enhanced. For the year ended 31 March
2020, the Group’s total non-hazardous waste amount
was approximately 3.39 tonnes, its intensity was
approximately 0.03 tonnes per employee; in which
approximately 0.44 tonnes were paper, approximately
2.67 tonnes were ink cartridge and approximately 0.28

tonnes were waste batteries.*
Note:

4. For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s total
non-hazardous waste were approximately 0.49 tonnes
of paper, approximately 40 pieces of ink cartridge and
approximately 0.40 tonnes of waste battery.

Wastewater

The Group’s major use of water occurs at its production
facility in the course of jewellery processing. The
wastewater may contain acids, alkali, various chemicals
and heavy metals. At the production facility in Shenzhen,
there is an onsite facility for neutralization, deionization
and sedimentation of the wastewater. The treated water
is certified safe to discharge into the municipal network,
and the slag is properly handled by licensed operators.
The Group’s operation complies with the laws and
regulations, including but not limited to “Water Pollution
Control Ordinance” of Hong Kong, “the Law of PRC on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”.

Since the office and retail shops’ wastewater discharged
by the Group will be disposed through the municipal
sewage pipe network to the regional water purification
plant, its water consumption amount is considered as
the amount of sewage discharged. The data on the
discharge of sewage will be described in the section

“Water Management” in Aspect A2.
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A2.

Use of Resources

The Group upholds and promotes the principle of
effective use of resources so as to monitor the potential
environmental impacts in our business operations.
Through the 3Rs principles, namely, “reduce, reuse
and recycle”, we promote green office and operation
environment, and minimise the environmental impacts of

the Group.

As mentioned in Aspect A1, the Group has set out
related environmental management policies and
procedures on resource usages such as water,
electricity and petrol. Monthly usage statistics are
used for focused management of the main energy
consumption equipment and regulation of equipment

operation for effective resource usage.
Energy Management

The major energy consumption of the Group in daily
operation are electricity consumption in the operation

and petrol consumption via transportation.

The Group has formulated rules and regulations to
achieve the goal of electricity saving and efficient
consumption. The relevant specific measures are as

follows:

o Selects energy-efficient equipment and electrical
appliances for production facility, office and shops

electricity use;

o Forbids the use of large-power electrical
appliances such as heaters, kettles, refrigerators,
etc., to avoid electricity overload. Employees
should turn off all electrical appliances that come

with them when they leave office;

. Turns off all unnecessary lights, air conditioners,
computers and other office equipment in office
areas, conference rooms and corridors when they

are not in use to avoid waste of electricity;

o Standardises office, production facility and even
retail shop lighting (when feasible) with energy

saving lights and LED lights;

A2.
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o Maintains indoor temperature at an optimal,

comfortable level to conserve energy;

o Switches off shop lightings by 11 p.m. as a
commitment to the “Charter on External Lighting”
organised by the Hong Kong Government;

o Regulates the use of air conditioners strictly to

prevent waste of electricity;

° Turns off computers (host and monitor) when
employees go out for a long time, and switch
computers to standby or sleep mode when

employees go out for lunch; and

o Enhances the maintenance and overhaul of
equipment, maintain the best condition of
all electronic equipment for effective use of

electricity.

As a result, the employee’s awareness was increased
by implementing these electricity and energy mitigation

measures.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the total energy
consumption of the Group was approximately
371,918.43 kWh and its intensity was approximately
3,682.36 kWh per employee.” Petrol consumption from
vehicles was equivalent to approximately 37,622.43
kWh®, and electricity consumption was approximately
334,296.00 kWh.

Notes:

5. For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s total
energy consumption was approximately 316,864.34 kWh,
and its intensity was approximately 3,137.27 kWh per

employee.

6. For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s petrol
consumption was approximately 3,882.06 litres.
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Water Management

The Group’s major water consumption is from the
production facility, office and retail shops’ fresh-water
consumption. The Group encourages all employees
and customers to develop the habit of conscious water
conservation. The Group has been enhancing its water
conservation promotion. Environmental messages are
posted on pantry and washrooms to remind employees
to save water. The employees’ water conservation
awareness has been increased with the above water-

saving measures.

Due to the Group’s business nature and its operations
are mainly in the cities, while the mining and
alchemy processes are performed by subcontracted
organisations, the procurement of suitable water sources

is not relevant to the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the total water
consumption of the Group was approximately 1,554.84
cubic meters, and its intensity was approximately 15.39

cubic meters per employee.’
Note:

7. For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s total
water consumption was approximately 1,602.35 cubic
meters, and its intensity was approximately 15.86 cubic
meters per employee.

Use of Packaging Materials

Since the Group has retail business, it uses packaging
materials including paper box, paper bag and jewellery
pouch. The Group is actively promoting the packaging

reduction measures, including:

. Tried to minimise excessive packaging when

customers make a purchase;

o Encouraged the use of reusable shopping bags
and offered customers an incentive for using
a reusable shopping bag instead of plastic or

paper; and

. Promoted buy-back programs or upcycling
programs to encourage new sales with a trade-in

of old gold that can be recycled and reused.
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A3.

a S

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
consumed approximately 0.40 tonnes of packaging
materials, which is approximate 0.004 tonnes per
employee. There were no paper boxes being consumed,
the consumption packaging materials consisted
of approximately 0.22 tonnes of paper bags and
approximately 0.18 tonnes of pouch bags. ®

Notes:

8. For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group's
packaging material consumption were approximately
10,780.00 boxes of paper boxes, approximately 5,000.00
pieces of paper bags and approximately 5,190.00 pieces
of pouch bags.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s operations generate limited impact on its
environment due to its business nature. The Group still
pursues the best practice for environmental protection.
In addition to complying with related environmental laws
and regulations and international standards for proper
natural environment preservation, it has integrated
the concept of environmental protection and natural
resource conservation into its internal management
and daily operations in order to achieve the aim of

environmental sustainability.
Working Environment

The Group strives to provide employees with a
comfortable working environment to enhance working
efficiency. The Group maintains production facility,
office and retail shops discipline and environmental
hygiene, and ensures personal area and common areas
are neat and tidy. Employees monitor the conditions of
the community and workplace from time to time, set up
emergency plans in advance for risk mitigation, adopt
preventive and control measures for problem and risk
identification, and deal with the identified problems
and potential risks in time to maintain a sound working

environment.
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On the other hand, the Group regularly monitors
and measures indoor air quality of the workplace. It
maintains indoor air quality and filters pollutants and
dust via air purification equipment and regular cleansing

of the air conditioning system.

B. SOCIAL

B1.

Employment

Employees are the greatest and most valuable asset
of the Group and its core competitive advantage.
Therefore, its success highly depends on the ability
to attract, cultivate and retain employees. The Group
adheres to a people-oriented approach, standardises
labour employment management to respect and protect
the legitimate interests of every employee. At the
same time, the Group strives to ensure its employees’
occupational health and safety for protecting labour
rights, stimulating employee’s enthusiasm, initiatives

and creativity to build a harmonious staff relationship.

The Group actively complies with labour laws and
regulations, including but not limited to, the “Labour
Law of the PRC”, “Labour Contract Law of the PRC”,
“Regulations on the Implementation of the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC”, “Social Insurance Law of the
PRC”, “Interim Regulations on Levying Social Insurance
Premiums”, “Provisional Measures on Maternity
Insurance of Enterprise Employees”, “Regulation on
Unemployment Insurance”, “Regulation on Work-Related
Injury Insurances” and Hong Kong’'s “Employment
Ordinance”. The Group has accordingly formulated a
series of related personnel management policy to guide
employees to actively integrate personal pursuits into

the long-term of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did not
aware of any material non-compliance of laws and
regulations in respect of employment related issues
including but not limited to recruitment and dismissal,
remuneration and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination and

benefits and welfares.
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As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 101 full-time
employees in total, the following shows the details of the

Group’s human resources information:

EMRIEID B TAE BEREDETAH
Employee distribution by gender Employee distribution by age group
14% —__
34%
38%
62%
52%

W 30574 T Below 30 years old
W 3% Male W 30-505% 30-50 years old
M %% Female 518k A 51 years old or above

Remuneration and Benefits

The Group has established a fair, reasonable and
competitive remuneration system, and paid employees
based on the principles of fairness, competitiveness,
motivation, reasonableness and legitimacy. The
remuneration package of employees includes salary,
bonuses, allowances and commission. Salespersons are
entitled to guaranteed commission based on retail sales
amount, and will also be entitled to further commissions
subject to whether they can meet the sales target laid
out by the Group. Generally, employee salaries are
determined based on the employees’ qualification,
experience, position and seniority. The Group believes
that its remuneration package is competitive in the

market.

The Group has signed and executed the labour
contracts with employees in accordance with the
“Labour Contract Law of the PRC”, and Hong
Kong’s “Employment Ordinance”. The signing rate
of labour contracts is 100%. In accordance with
the law and ordinance, the Group pays “five social
insurance and one housing fund” for its employees,
namely, endowment insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, employment injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund, to

ensure employees are covered by social insurance.
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The Group earnestly safeguards the legitimate interests
of labour in accordance with the requirement of the
national and local laws and regulations of the “Labour
Law of the PRC”. The Group respects the rights of
employees to rest and leave and the Group believes that
sufficient rest is good for employees to work efficiently
and so as increase productivity. The Staff Regulations
has issued to the employees to regulate the procedure
applying annual leave. The Group has also followed
the “Regulation on Paid Annual Leave for Employees”
and other relevant regulations, regarding the policies
about working hours, working overtimes and wages,
and paid annual leave. The Group puts emphasis on the

employees’ rights of rest periods and holidays.
Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

The Group has continuously established and improved
its recruitment system. In the recruitment process, the
Group has standardised the hiring procedures and
recruitment principles, adhering to the hiring principles
of morality, knowledge, ability, experience and physique
applicable to the job positions. In such ways to
continuously attract talents by upholding principles of

justice, fairness and openness.

The Group has implemented a fair and open assessment
system to evaluate employees’ working performance and
internal assessment results. The results would be the
basis for employee promotion. The Group also creates
opportunities for their promotion and development as

well as explore their potential at work.

The Group specifies the basis and procedures for
staff promotion, transfer and demotion management,
and regulations for departure process to protect the
interests of both employees and the Group and reduce

the conflicts in between.
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B2.

Equal Opportunities

The Group strictly complies with national and local
standards by adopting a fair, equitable and open
requirement process and develop relevant system files
to eliminate discrimination in the recruitment processes.
Employees face no discrimination regardless of race,
sex, colour, age, family background, ethnic tradition,
religion, physical fitness and nationality and thus
allowing them to enjoy fair treatment in every aspect
including recruitment, remuneration, training and

promotion.
Health and Safety

The Group highly recognises the importance of health
and safety of the employees. The Group commits to
provide employees with a healthy, safe and comfortable
working environment and strives to eliminate potential
health and safety hazards at the workplace. The Group
strictly enforces relevant laws and regulations such as
the “Labour Law of the PRC”, “Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Treatment of Occupational Diseases”,
“Measures for Declaration of Project with Occupational
Hazards of the PRC”, “Work Safety Law of the PRC” and
“Fire Protection Law of the PRC”, “Occupational Safety

and Health Ordinance” in Hong Kong, etc.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did
not aware of any accidents that resulted in death
or significant physical injury and no claims or
compensation were paid to its employees due to
such events. No material non-compliance of laws and
regulations relevant to health and safety of employees

were found.
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Internal Health and Safety Management

The Group maintains an internal audit and inspection
system to ensure the health and safety of customers
and employees during its operation in compliance with
“Measures for Declaration of Project with Occupational
Hazards of the PRC”. The review processes are
designed to ensure the workplace is under constant
monitoring, so as to identify and correct the deficiencies
that do not meet the standards. The Group regularly
inspects and reviews the safety issues of production
facility, offices and retail shops and actively encourages
employees to report health and safety incidents and

risks.

On the other hand, the Group provides staff with health
and safety notifications to provide related information
and increase their awareness. The Group also arranges
body checks for employees, particularly pay attention
to those who have abnormal examination result and

provide treatment advice.
Safety Production

The safety issue is highly concerned by the Group. The
Group has also cooperated with independent consulting
firm to ensure the production safety by establishing
GB/T 33000-2016 “Guideline of China Occupational
Safety and Health Management System”, and AQ/T9006-
2010 “Basic Norms for Work Safety Standardization
of enterprises” which in compliance with “Work Safety
Law of the PRC”. The mishandling of machinery in the
jewellery production may cause injuries. To safeguard
the workers, inspection on production facilities would
take place on regular basis to prevent the safety hazard.
The inspection includes the proper usage of safety
equipment aligning with safety production procedures,
and the cleanliness of the production facility. Any
hidden safety danger would be immediately treated by
the technical staff to protect the personal safety of the

workers.
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B3.

Fire Safety

The Group has also formulated fire safety system in
accordance with the “Fire Protection Law of the PRC”
and “Provisions on the Supervision and Administration
of Fire Protection of Construction Projects”. To raise
employees’ fire prevention awareness, fire drills are
conducted regularly and staff are instructed to the
correct use of fire extinguishers and the Group’s
fire evacuation plans are improved. In response to
emergencies, different places of the Group’s workplaces
are also equipped and clearly located with first aid kits

and fire extinguishers.
Other Health and Safety Measures

With the outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus
("COVID-19"), the Group is highly aware of its potential
health and safety impacts on employees. The Group
has strengthened its operating environmental hygiene
to ensure a healthy and safe working environment.
We have also taken precautionary measures, such as
performing temperature checks before entering retail
stores, offices and production facilities, and ensuring
that adequate disinfection supplies such as masks
and hand sanitiser are provided in our operations.
In addition, the production facility in Shenzhen has
followed the instructions of the government to resume
work gradually and implemented flexible working

arrangements.
Development and Training

The Group aims to build a strong sense of community
and a positive environment for its employees to enhance
employee loyalty and work dedication. The Group
believes that its ability to recruit and retain experienced
and skilled labour is key to growth and development.
The Group provides employee orientation to its new
employees to explain the Group’s internal rules and to
enhance employees’ safety awareness. The Group also

provides various types of employee training regularly.
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B4.

Training Management

The management formulates the Group’s annual
training proposal and conducts regular reviews on
the effectiveness of the training courses to improve
the quality of the training system. The Group provides
relevant on-the-job training for each employee to
facilitate their business abilities. For examples, the
salespersons in the retail shops would be trained
with the sales skills and etiquette with facing the
customers; the workers in the production facility would
be trained with the advanced skills. Through various
trainings, employees are able to strengthen related
professional knowledge, professions and management
skills. It benefits the Group by enhancing employees’
professional skills and attracting more talents. The
Group also provides subsidies, remuneration and
promotion incentives to encourage employees to

participate in external training courses.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, all employees of the
Group have attended trainings. The average training
hours for male and female were approximately 14 hours
and 15 hours respectively, in which employees with
managerial grade or above attained approximately 12
hours of trainings on average, while employees with
managerial grade or below attained approximately 15

hours of trainings on average.

The Group also recognises the importance of
occupational safety training to ensure employees’
personal safety. The relevant policies have been

described in details in Aspect B2 “Health and Safety”.
Labour Standards
Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group complies with the “Labour Law of the PRC”,
“Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour” of

PRC, and Hong Kong’s “Employment Ordinance”.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with any laws
and regulations in relation to the prevention of child or

forced labour.
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The Group strictly prohibits the use of any child and
forced labour in the PRC and Hong Kong operations.
The Group demands all new employees to provide true
and accurate personal information when they join the
Group. The recruitment staff will stringently verify their
information, including body check results, academic
certificates, identity card and hometown information.
Regular reviews and checking are conducted to guard
against child or forced labour in the operations. The
Group also avoids using the supplies and services of
those suppliers and contractors with records of using
child or forced labour. Furthermore, employees work
overtime on a voluntary basis, and the Group promises
not to force employees to work overtime to prevent any
breach of labour standards. The Group also prohibits
any punishments, management methods and behaviours
involving verbal abuse, physical punishment, physical
abuse, oppression, sexual harassment, etc. against its

employees for any reason.
Supply Chain Management

The Group highly values the importance of potential
environmental and social risks management in its supply
chain. For the effective monitoring of procurement
procedures and cost control, increasing management
transparency in procurement, the Group has established
a stringent and standardised procurement system and a
systematic selection process for suppliers. For the year
ended 31 March 2020, the Group had approximately 20

suppliers, all of them were from the PRC.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group expects suppliers to fulfil the standards
in terms of environment, society and corporate
governance, commercial ethics and quality. The Group
selects suppliers that create positive influences on
environmental and social matters, the scopes of which
mainly includes operational compliance, employees’
safety and health, social responsibility, business ethics
and environmental protection. Since the Group does
not enter into long-term contracts with suppliers, it can
switch the suppliers flexibly. The Group will terminate
cooperation at instant with those suppliers who may
cause severe contamination or seriously social harms or
have caused material environmental or social incidents.
With the above assessment processes, the Group can
minimise potential environmental and social risks of

supply chain.
Fair and Open Procurement

The Group’s procurement procedures strictly abide by
the “Bidding Law of the PRC” and related regulations.
The Group makes procurement on an open, fair and
impartial basis without any discrimination against
any particular supplier nor corruption and bribery.
The Group sources the raw materials of diamonds,
gemstones and precious metals from suppliers at stable
and competitive market prices. The Group believes it
does not rely on any single supplier for sourcing any
raw material to material extent. In addition, the Group
forbids employees and any parties who are related
to the relevant supplier to take part in the subject
procurement. The Group stresses the integrity of its
suppliers, it only selects those with good business track
records and no material non-compliances or unethical

behaviours.
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Product Responsibility

The Group actively safeguards the quality of the
products with its internal control process. The Group
also maintains on-going communication with the
customers to ensure understanding and satisfaction
of their demands and expectations, and to improve its
service quality by learning their satisfactory rates. The
Group earnestly complies with laws and regulations
in relation to consumers’ rights such as the “General
Principles of the Civil Law of the PRC”, “Product Quality
Law of the PRC”, “Law of the PRC on Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests”, “Tort Law of the PRC”,
“Law of PRC on Imported and Exported Commodity
Inspection”, “Advertising Law of the PRC”, “Patent Law
of the PRC”, and Hong Kong’s “Personal Data (Privacy)

Ordinance” and “Trade Descriptions Ordinance”.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group was
not aware of any material non-compliance with any
laws and regulations in relation to privacy issues
and compensation regarding health and safety,
advertisement and labelling on products and service
provided. For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
was not aware of any products sold or shipped subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons, nor receiving

material complaints related to products and service.
Quality Assurance

The quality of the jewellery is one of the key factors
that customers highly concern. The Group has a quality
monitoring requirement and quality control inspection
before the delivery of the products. The Group has
set up a centralized Quality Control Team, which is
responsible for monitoring the entire production process.
The Group performs quality control in each stage,
ensuring the products are with satisfactory quality. We
would have overall inspection in the last stage to ensure
the product is made according to the specification
stated. The Group would also conduct random sample
checking by the experienced professionals on the
finished jewellery products to ensure that it is up to

standard.
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The quality of products is reliable and has been ensured
by different organisations. Hong Kong Jewellers’ and
Goldsmiths’ Association and The Kowloon Pearls,
Precious stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament
Merchants Association have recognised the quality of
our gold products with the “Quality Gold Mark”. Besides,
the Group is also recognized by the Quality Tourism
Services (“QTS”) Scheme of Hong Kong Tourism Board,
as the reliable retail store in Hong Kong. The products
are highly qualified to ensure customers would not
receive products that are substandard to safeguard the

consumers’ right.
Protection of IP Rights

The Group focuses on pioneer innovation in its own
jewellery design. The Group has sufficient and all-
rounded management system for IP. The Group
continuously strengthens the management of
trademark, domain right, designs and trade secrets
in the product development processes. The external
graphic designers, who outsourced for certain product
development stages, would be required to sign an
agreement to acknowledge that the designs produced
during the engagement are the IP of the Group. For
new employees, the Group focuses on training their
awareness of conserving trade secrets. The IP, which
mainly related to the trademark and designs, are well
protected by the Group and it values the intellectual

properties as the important assets of the Group.
Customer Services

The Group would provide after-sales service like
resizing of rings and complimentary cleaning services
to maintain a good relationship with customers. The
Group reviews all complaints from customers, suppliers
and partners in accordance with internal procedures
and guidelines, and appropriate follow-up measures
will be taken. If applicable, the Group will conduct
relevant investigations and generate case reports and
correcting action plans to resolve complaints and make
improvements accordingly. The Group believes that
complaints are good opportunities to get feedback
from the community and customers, so as to assure the

necessity of improving the services and policies.
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Advertising and Labelling

The Group has adopted a multi-channel advertising
strategy to promote the brand and improve the brand
image. The Group takes care of the advertisement and
labelling issues to ensure that only accurate products’
information would be published. Any misleading
message is prohibited for publishing after the strict

monitoring of the teams of professionals.
Protection of Privacy

The Group recognises the protection of customers’
and partners’ privacy is the key for success. Therefore,
protecting and maintaining customers’ privacy always
remain in the first priority of the Group. Security
measures have established to provide adequate
protection and encryption for all data and information
upon operation. At the same time, the Group has
implemented policies and procedures to the collection

and use of personal data.
Anti-corruption

The Group believes that a clean corporate culture is
the key to its continuous success. Therefore, the Group
stressed on anti-corruption work and system building,
devoted in creating a clean and transparent corporate
culture. It has already developed adequate codes to
ensure all employees (including directors) adhered to
the highest standards of business, professional and
ethical practices. The Group strictly complies with
the requirements under laws and regulations such as
the “Company Law of the PRC”, “The Tendering and
Bidding Law of the PRC”, “Interim Provisions on Banning
Commercial Bribery”, and Hong Kong’s “Prevention of

Bribery Ordinance”.

The Group’s major operation formulated such policies
on the control and prevention of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering between shareholders and
related parties in each business operation and trade

activity.
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B8.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did not
aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering.
Anti-corruption

The Group has an anti-bribery function, which is
responsible for developing the overall framework of anti-
bribery, fraud and corruption policies and procedures.
It also guides and monitors the implementation of such
policies and procedures in different aspects of the
Group’s operation. Each of the Group’s subsidiaries
will immediately report any suspected bribery, fraud
and corruption to the person in charge of the Group’s
internal control. The internal control advisor was
engaged to perform internal control review on the Group
and determine the appropriate course of actions if

necessary.

The Group fully complies with relevant anti-money
laundering laws. The Group minimises the risk
of establishing relationships with individuals or
organisations involved in money laundering or terrorist
activities through “understanding customers” and

assessment procedures.
Community Investment

The Group believes in shouldering the responsibility
of contributing society. As a responsible corporate
citizen, the Group has fulfilled our social responsibilities
by being committed to supporting various charitable
and community activities. The Group hopes to
foster employees’ sense of social responsibility,
thus encouraging them to participate in charitable
activities during their work and spare time to make
greater contributions to the community. The Group
has also encouraged its employees to participate in
environmental and charitable activities, make donations
to assist underprivileged students and engage in social
services. The Group believes that the participation in
activities that repay society can increase its employees’

civic awareness and establish their correct values.
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Corporate Social Responsibility TEMEEF

The Group has also joined different chambers of REBEMATTRNESE  UX
commerce to support the charity activities. The Group BEEIFH AEBCOKANER
has become the members of Kowloon Chamber of Hehkfemenes  YTHX
Commerce and New Territory Chamber of Commerce EEEABIRAE o BN ANEE
and has supported many of the charity activities to NAtEANHhTEZTIRR
repay the community. Besides, the Group has also U HEFFINEIREORE &R
donated to the Youth Outreach’s “YO! Let’'s Walk the EZENFTLE - REFB =k
Road” to support the service provided by the Youth @ ZRFZA5ENER AR
Outreach on rescuing the teenagers who are in needs. MIBIBEL BB BR{EEL S
The Group will seek opportunities to identify more & o

suitable projects and contribute to the community and

environment to bring positive progress to society.
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

BERBEXSMERQIAN(RE - g
AMEESDRBRLIR

RE

Subject Areas, Aspects,

5 AERBERRYNELSH

(a) BE K

(b) BTHETABEAZENHERER
BB DI E R -

General Disclosures and KPls Description Section/Declaration
BH - —REERBARERIEE gt B89N
Aspect A1: Emissions
EBEA1: XY
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to Exhaust Gas and GHG
emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
— MR ER BREROREREYN - MK ERLE | HRY

KPI'A1.1 (“comply or explain”)

BREBIEIR AL ([ ESFRLERE )

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

PEm B MARB Y AR

Emissions — Emission Management,
Waste Management
R — B ER - BEYER

KPI A1.2 (“comply or explain”)

B ERIEIEAL.2 ([ NETREARE])

GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and
intensity.
BERBEYME(UNETHE) RNEE -

Emissions — Emission Management

e — BRI E

KPI A1.3 (“comply or explain”)

R AR IR A1 3 ([ NESTRLAREE )

Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.

FELEAERENRE B E) REE -

Emission — Waste Management
(not applicable — explained)
P — BEEDEE(TER — EME)

KPI' A1.4 (“*comply or explain”)

BREBIEIR A4 ([ NESFRLERE )

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.
FEEEEFEEYHEE (AEFE)REE -

Emissions — Waste Management

BERY) — BEERYERE

KPI' A1.5 (“comply or explain”)

RS EMIEIEAL.E ([ NETRLARE D)

Description of reduction initiatives and
results achieved.

i dURE BE R BV b R RIS AR

Emissions — Emission Management,
Waste Management

HER — BERmE IR - BEEDER

KPI A1.6 (“comply or explain”)

FligE SRR AL 6 ([ NETRLARE])

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.

R IR A E REEEEMN L ORIEE
FENEERTISKR -

Emissions — Waste Management

P — BEERYE R
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPlIs

BE - —REERBREERIER

Description

E:pud

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EBEA2: ERER

General Disclosure

—RRIBE

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BREAER(BIEER - KREMEME)
HIERER

Use of Resources

BIRER

KPI A2.1 (“comply or explain”)

BREBIER A2 ([ NEFRLERE )

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type in total and
intensity.

RERE M EERSHEEEREREE R

Use of Resources — Energy
Management

BREM — gEREE

KPI'A2.2 (“comply or explain”)
RREZUEIRA2.2 ([ NEFRIERE])

Water consumption in total and intensity.
HREKRBREE o

Use of Resources — Water Management

BRER — KERER

KPI A2.3 (“comply or explain”)

BSE MR A2.3 ([ NESTRLARE ])

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

ol BE R e a5t B RIS AR -

Use of Resources — Energy
Management

ERER — gelRER

KPI A2.4 (“comply or explain”)

FlRERIER A2 4 ([ NESTRLAREE )

Description of whether there is any issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

el SREUE AR LRI B AR - PAKER
FHRKB A E RPISKER

Use of Resources — Water Management

BERER — KERERE

KPI A2.5 (“comply or explain”)

BREBIEZRA2.5 ([ TEFRLERRE )

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and with
reference to per unit produced.
ERmPrAeEMHERE (CANETE) kT
EEBMLE -

Use of Resources — Use of Packaging
Materials

BRER — BEMEER
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPlIs

BHE - —REERBEREERIER

Description

E:pud

Section/Declaration

i1

EHEA3 : RERRARER

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s
significant impact on the environment
and natural resources.
WRBETAHRBELRAERERNEATE
HIERER

The Environment and Natural Resources

RIERANER

KPI A3.1 (“comply or explain”)

FIRERIER A ([ NETRLARE )

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

MG EHHRFERRARERNEATE
NERDEREHETENTE -

The Environment and Natural Resources

— Working Environment

RFENRARER — TERE

Aspect B1: Employment
E@EB1 : EfE

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, antidiscrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

ERAFE L RE  BEREA  TERE

BRE - 2ok - FERE - REEARHEA

Fris RAg A -

(a) HE: Rk

(b) EITHETABEAZENMEBER
KR PIENERL -

Employment

KPI B1.1
(“recommended disclosure”)

BAREMIERE B1.1 ([2ERED)

Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical
region.

RIER - BEER - FiRERN KRS HE
EEEE -

Employment

(=
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPlIs

BE - —REERBREERIER

Description

E:pud

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: #EEZE

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  Anti-corruption compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

Health and Safety

— MR ERRHULZE2THERERREEERRBE | BRELTS
MHEER
(a) EK: R
(b) BEFTHETABEATENHEBEE
KR I ERS -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related Health and Safety

(“recommended disclosure”)

RARAERIEIR B2 ([2ERE]D)

fatalities.
ATEEMTTHAZBRLE -

f2pis 2

KPI B2.2

(“recommended disclosure”)

BB RIEIE B2.2 ([R#EED)

Lost days due to work injury.

RIEERATERR -

Health and Safety

[EE e

KPI B2.3

(“recommended disclosure”)

BB MIEIE B2.3 ([ZFRE]D

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.

R FTER MBI E ERE 2150 - AR
BABTT MBI TTE -

Health and Safety
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o 42z : = 34
RRE -##B8RERHRSE
Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
BE - —REERBREVNER it 5589

fEH B3 : /R KE

Aspect B3: Development and Training

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging duties

at work. Description of training activities.

Development and Training

(“recommended disclosure”)

RASRAE BT B3.1 ([ 2 HE D)

by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle
management).
REFIREEEN (W REERE  PRE
BEZ)SONTIEEBRDL

—MRHEE ERRAREEIT IIEBENABRRAEEN | BREEE
SR o B FES o
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained Development and Training

B fr B

KPI B3.2

(“recommended disclosure”)

BREBIEIE B2 ([EHEKE])

The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee
category.

RUEFIREEERE D - FEEETREI
KT EL -

Development and Training

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[BEB4 : & T2

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced

Labour Standards

(“recommended disclosure”)

BARENIERE B4 ([RERED

employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

ot A ST R AE 18 (I B0 e DA 2 BB T R 5R il
BT o

labour.
—RRIEE BRADT IEE T oksahlss T - BT AR
(a) HE: Rk
(b) BEFHBETABEATENERER
KR DI ERS -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Labour Standards

AT R

KPI B4.2
(“recommended disclosure”)

BRERIEE B4.2 ([BHEKE]D)

Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.
i A 7E 25 IR R AR IS B SERR A RIS 50 BT ERER

Labour Standards

S TR
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m 42z : = 3
RRE -#d#E8RERHRS
Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
BE - —REERBREVER i 5 B9

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EmBS : frEEEE

General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and

social risks of the supply chain.

Supply Chain Management

— AR ER ERHERENEIE R G RRBE - HrERER
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical Supply Chain Management

(“recommended disclosure”)

RASE NIRRT Bo1 ([ 2ERE]D)

region.

R E D HEREE o

HRE s g

KPI B5.2

(“recommended disclosure”)

RS IENIEIR BE.2 ([ @& WE D)

Description of practices relating

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored.

H A RHEENEN  mERTER
B HEEREE - URBBENNHTR

.
EERR A o

Supply Chain Management

i g
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RE - -dHEBRERARE

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPlIs

BHE - —REERBEREERIER

Description

E:pud

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and
methods of redress.
FEMRHERTRBORERLZSE - &
& BEELBEE AR ED
(a) EK: R
(b) BEFHETABE
KR I ERS -

FEMBRER

Product Responsibility

mt
=l
hur
m

KPI B6.1

(“recommended disclosure”)

MRERIEE B6.1 ([2HRE]D)

Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.
EESEEXEMEHMT AR HERIER
mAaBKNBED T -

Product Responsibility

EmEE

KPI B6.2

(“recommended disclosure”)

RSB REIT B6.2 ([ RE D)

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with.

EEMNEm ARG B AR EH T
VA e

Product Responsibility

EmAE

KPI B6.3

(“recommended disclosure”)

RS EMIEIT B6.3 ([ 2ERE])

Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

it B4R N RIS AN ERE S A RVIE D) -

Product Responsibility

EmaE

KPI B6.4
(“recommended disclosure”)
BRAEBUES B6.4 ([ EHEE ]

Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures.
HEERTREREMBUIRT °

Product Responsibility

EmEE

KPI B6.5

(“recommended disclosure”)

BB ISR B6.5 ([ RKE D)

Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.

HUE B B RHRE RALBECR - U RIEH
AT MBI TTE

Product Responsibility
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RE - #HE8RE

a8 ¥R E

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPlIs

BE - —REERBREERIER

Description

E:pud

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EBEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering.

Anti-corruption

— AR R BRMIEFRRE - 9% - MEFROEBER - REsF
(a) HBE: &
(b) BETFTHETABEATZENHEMEE
KARPIEERS -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases Anti-corruption

(“recommended disclosure”)

RASRAERIEIR B7.1 ([2ERED

regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERHANEHETALEESRET D EE
EBESR AR A MFRBER

KPI B7.2

(“recommended disclosure”)

BERIEE B7.2 ([ EKED)

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

A i R BRIR T - U RABBE TR
BERFIE ©

Anti-corruption

REF

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EHBS : HERE

General Disclosure

—RIEE

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

BRI RS2 R RSB ERERN
BREEBLDHEE BLRNEHBE -

Community Investment

HEE
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Grant Thornton

2 [E]

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP
HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

(Formerly known as Dominate Group Holdings Company Limited)

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chong
Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (formerly known
as Dominate Group Holdings Company Limited) (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 100 to 191, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2020 and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

B2 B AR S

e ESREEEEZERER AT

(7% Dominate Group Holdings Company Limited)
(RFEERSEMAIHERRAR)

2HBR

SEESHREI0E11HEAEBKEEE
&Hxﬁﬁﬁ 7] (B8 Dominate Group Holdings
Company Limited) ([ £ 2 7] ) REW B R 7 (£
WMIEEEDOEEHBRE - BN 202053
A3 AMEREMBARRBREBEZBILFE

MizeBmRAMEEKER ZﬁAT’éE%@%
RiraBeReaR RS RERME
RERSTHBRME -

BERR  HAMBRRCREFTESINAE
(I&Ee ;HrEfﬁ“/‘ ) IR BB SR R
([FAEMBHRELENDEEMAFHRKRT &

E£BR2020F 3 A31 BNGE T BT RER
ZHIEFENGEYBRRRKGEAESRE 1T
O BBRES N RN Z AkE -

<N



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
V% SR R

BASIS FOR OPINION SRNVER

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards EEEREBEREE ‘I‘Eﬂi’“AﬁEWﬁEﬁ%ﬁ%%u‘f—EﬂlJ
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities ([FBEED ) ETES ZE 2R
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's T%?Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁifﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁg FTARE B
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial BHRERAENET IR D P IEE— LR - RIF

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group EEetii e B REEeTamEEsa([sF

in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional a1 BEBIR %%@ W E BT RIREY
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical HmEEBEER T?E *ET:L  BEFTESRE
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the FHRERETS R *“‘iﬂ;?% VE:E RIREE
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to e °©

provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS BREISEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FAEETEERBEETENEEAE - ZAHEK
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated R e BRI ETHAREENTIE - BLF
financial statements of the current period. These matters were Her TSR BB AV BRERRHAZRR
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial EITRER - EE I SUWEEFHEHREENE
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 8o

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BERENSE EENETNMEEEEER

Valuation of inventories FEE

We identified valuation of inventories as a key audit Our procedures in relation to the valuation of inventories
matter due to the significance of the balance to the included:

consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined = R A R BT

with the judgements associated with determining the
amount of allowances on inventories. e understanding the Group’s internal controls over

valuation of inventories;

EEELEGERINA—BRRENSEE  ERARSYHE
AR AT F SRS EN AN MES T BREASBZHTEEE

e e understanding how management identifies slow-
moving inventories and the amount of allowances
required, and management’s process in monitoring
the quality of the work of the independent professional

gemmologist appointed;

TREEBMAZRITHEFERBEEARELE  URE
EEERREZEBYEXELE M TIFERNER

2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT 3R 93



94

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

M 1% BAD ] &

Key audit matter

Valuation of inventories

As disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, in estimating the amount of allowances
on inventories, it is the Group’s policy to review the
net realisable values of inventories periodically with
reference to current market condition and the historical
experience in selling goods of similar nature. The Group’s
management reviewed, on a regular basis, the suitability
of its inventory allowance policy and has applied the
policy consistently. The Group’s management also
reviewed, on a regular basis, the inventory age listing
to identify any slow-moving inventories and estimated
the amount of allowances primarily based on the pricing
policy and strategies and the historical experience in
selling goods of similar nature. The Group also engaged
an independent professional gemologist to perform
valuation and assess the conditions of certain items
based on gemstone testing for gem-set jewellery with
reference to international diamond prices, its expertise

and the current market situation.

HINREMBRERMEA4TEE  MEAFERENS -
BEEENBRARZRABTANHEELERUNERNBE
KEBEATHRNFEISERTE - BEEETEETHRS
HEEREHRENAEE  YEKBERBMEX - =
SEEEENENRMERFE  HEMFEESE L
ERTEEHREREBALBEHEEERLE ROERMAT
BESE - 1o %%lﬁ%ﬁm§%j§¥ﬁkﬁfﬁbmﬁﬂiuiﬁ
TihE - A2REREBLER  EFENBRBERETR - B
KESEREHNEOQRGHETHEANEE :Fﬁ%’iﬁ’\]ﬂﬁﬁ €

At 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of inventories
was HK$61,526,000 (net of allowance for inventories of
HK$2,090,000).

M2020F 3 A31H ' TEMEREEEA61,526,0007% 7t($
17 E %45 2,090,000 8 7T) °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEMETNAEEEHESEE
FEEE

assessing the appropriateness of allowances on
inventories made by the management and the
accuracy of the net realisable values by comparing
the subsequent selling prices of similar products less
estimated completion and disposal cost to be incurred,

to their carrying amounts on a sample basis;

AHMEEREMFFERENSENE - WEBBEREE
7 o B0 $H B B AR (G AT SE R R EE AR 0 H B AR AN B ELBR
EEEL LB - R G AT E 3R R E A R

evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent professional gemmologist and
obtaining an understanding of the scope of work and

their terms of engagement;

FEBTELERETHNEE &
RE T 8l RSB

HWEEHME - X7
E5

evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
prepared by the independent professional
gemmologist with reference to international diamond
price references for selected gem-set jewellery
products and market research reports on jewellery

industry, on a sample basis;

MR ELBYEXRENETMSERTE L ERIKE
EmWBEREAERREATRNOMSMEREIRE
MEENEEE

attending the annual physical inventory count at
year end date with assistance of an independent
professional gemmologist engaged by us to compare
the net realisable values of certain jewellery items held
by the Group with their cost;

EHEMEZENBYEXELERNHET - RFEHER
SEFEEYFERY  LMEAKERANE THE
B i R AT B IR A B AR AR LA o

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED {83k 8 £ @ = RER AT
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V% SR R

Key audit matter

REEHE

Valuation of inventories

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BENEHNARBENEE
FEIEE

checking the accuracy of the inventory age listing, on
a sample basis, by tracing to the invoices and delivery
documents;

BRBERRERINXM - MEBRET B KRR
M

assessing the reasonableness of the allowances on
identified slow-moving non-diamond gem-set jewellery
products by checking the aging profile, historical sales

pattern and the subsequent sales of these inventories;
FERRERPEY  BEHEEARERZEFENH
& AEEABIAFHENFELEAERRIKREER

evaluating the historical accuracy of allowances

on inventories assessed by the management by

comparing the actual loss to historical allowances

recognised
FEHEREFBLRERGERED BRABERE - A
FHE TS B R S AERE N o

checking the accuracy of the inventory age listing, on
a sample basis, by tracing to the invoices and delivery

documents;

BMEBRRRRA M - BERET EERO LR
e

assessing the reasonableness of the allowances on
identified slow-moving non-diamond gem-set jewellery
products by checking the aging profile, historical sales
pattern and the subsequent sales of these inventories;
and

BRRTARAR  BEHERARERZSTEENH
& FHECHBIARHENFECELRRREER &

evaluating the historical accuracy of allowances
on inventories assessed by the management by
comparing the actual loss to historical allowances

recognised

FEREEEEBLRERERECHERBERE A
AHETF SRR E 2 R
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the 2019/2020 annual report, but does not include the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,

or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for

overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

ERAEETHEMERES - EMERBES
BN 2019/2020 F F M ER - BETBIE
AR T ENIZEEIRE -

EEHEANBRENERL TRELMER
EENTHZSH AN EREATROEEE

EEH R A MBERENETS fEE
AEHMER - FLBRET %ﬁﬁ@éﬂ
A? BUBERELE E%ﬁ@&#%?%%%
AEHEEREELEUT R IMFESAHERR A
HER - EREFERITHIE  REFRR
HERFEEAHRRL  EEFEREZE
BE-fETH BEREEAERE -

BERRIEFAARRERAESTMASRMNET
BUBHREEIRBBRARIINKEREEE
NP B AR S M B®RER - UHERRRERS
MBHERNEE T FEAR ﬁiﬁ&ﬁ 24
B RBR A %m%ﬁ%%% c

ERBFAMBEHREE  EFaENE S5H
FERKZENEE N  YHBERBR M RERSERL
LEMNEE URERFELERSER
RIEFAER BEEEBBRUEFEILEL  HF
BHMERNERTSR

EEZZESWPNESAETEE B£EMNY
BHREBRIZ



Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability

to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

BEENER  RYRAMBERRBBESIAHFHE
BREFFERMERNEREREULRS AR
tReE - WIRIRE FATIHE MR IS R E R 2 88X
%ﬁiﬁ?%i%im@%%ﬁi BRIt BASN
FSNHmE DA RIEEMAR - TFL TR
%ZWSﬂEﬁE@AiELQQ%EEO

AEFRERBKIHRE - ETERELRREE
BT ERETNES  EX -—BEAERRATHE
A RE TR o SRRRMRIM AT A B BRFF S B AR 51 -

MREEFARHCMEBRELERA LT ERS
MEHRERERBERA M BBRRAELOLE
RTE - BB B RBRABAREE K ©

EREEAETEUEITETNERT BFE
AT EEHE - RIF T ERIBREE

n"w
el
=

o BRIFHABRNIRFERERMESRA M
BHRRFEEAHRBANER - Rt R
%ﬁ%ﬁ%fﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ'uﬁﬁﬂ
%Eﬂm*m B EREFERN

o B =FEI EFRER - BE R
ELE F&ﬁﬂ HEBERABESZ
£ FpRaEHIREMRF M G R E A
AR R By [ i = A R BE B 3R R AR T B B
B EE K BH AR R L e L

o THRERFTHBAOAMES - URFTEE
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o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

s HMEFRASELESTERNBE LA
Hsem - WRBAMERNBREE  BE
ERFERFAEXBEABEANEANTETE
- MR ERY BERENFELE
RRNELEBEARRE - MRESHERABRT
EEATHEEN AL EERBEBE
TIRFEREIBEAMBERRTNAH
BRE IBEFREETR  RIESEE
ERER  EENEHEERNXBM®RE
BHIEATESBRETERRE - A - RKFE
BRI EY BERETRERELE -

s TESAUBRROERIRSN - EE
MAR(BRERBE)ARGEMBERRES

RFRRIBEARZHFEE

e i EEERERBAXRBEADNYBKEFR
ERFTREENENEE  UHESUE
BRERER -FF8E EEEFY
A BEEMT  BERBIBRAR

2HEE -

PREMEIRS  BEREXZESRBETERD
FiTEHE - BE  EAFENRRS  BHEF
BT AP Al R ER I I B (A B R ERFA -

EEENEZZESRIEH  FHAFTFENA
BRBELENABEERERER  YERER
BrRRAEMNAREYEET B IENMEH
BEANEL A TR DA N (fid 38 R ) AR B O B S8 45 568



From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

19 June 2020

Ng Ka Kong
Practising Certificate No.: P06919
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

%:—FA:.\/

Hitt 2 H W& &

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZ= 202043 A 31 HILtF[E

2020 2019
2020 & 20194
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Htat FET FAET
Revenue Iy & ) 119,869 175,589
Cost of goods sold B E R mA A (79,005) (120,248)
Gross profit ER 40,864 55,341
Other income H bl A 6 1,326 458
Other gains or losses Hth 25 K g8 7 255 1,125
Selling and distribution costs $HE Ko A A (30,693) (28,726)
General and administrative —RRATERA X
expenses (17,115) (12,843)
Listing expenses il e — (10,082)
Finance costs IR N 8 (1,491) (1,365)
(Loss)/Profit before tax BRBLAT (E518) BRI 9 (6,854) 3,908
Income tax credit/(expense) FrieRiiEe,/ (Fx) 12 1,370 (1,685)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(EE),TEF (5,484) 2,223
Other comprehensive expense FREMZEMAX
for the year
Item that may be reclassified HIZFBEE D IEZ B i
subsequently to profit or loss: HE :
Exchange differences arising on BME NS TS EERIE R
translation of a foreign operation =R (690) (1,569)
Other comprehensive expense for FREMEAREZ
the year, net of income tax (BRFF1EHIE) (690) (1,569)
Total comprehensive (expense)/ FRNE2EBAS WA EE
income for the year (6,174) 654
(Loss)/Earnings per share SR (E5E) BF 10
Basic (HK cents) AR BN (0.73) 0.39

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019, using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative

information is not restated. See Note 2.

The notes on pages 106 to 191 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

AEBFEACERENER2019F4 818
REREBMBHREERE165 - BRI
N EERREEY - FRWE2 -

F106 2191 BT AZSHRAMEHRERNAE

R

=
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B B E R R

As at 31 March 2020 7 202043 A 31 H

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FET FETL
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - B Rk 14 15,443 540
Financial asset at fair value BRAFER ARG
through profit or loss WEemMEE
(“FVTPL") 15 5,195 -
Deferred tax assets EER B & = 16 2,701 1,491
Rental deposits Heke 18 2,886 2,057
26,225 4,088
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 17 61,526 63,991
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H b e R IE 18 5,918 10,978
Tax recoverable AT = R IE 237 241
Pledged bank deposit B PRITER 19 — 2,200
Bank balances and cash RITHEHREIES 19 43,429 75,973
111,110 153,383
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A ER FRIE 20 8,394 20,809
Contract liabilities AHEaRE 21 6,074 5,775
Refund liabilities RRAE 22 477 651
Lease liabilities fHeal 23 8,189 —
Tax payable FERREIE — 1,080
Bank borrowings RITIERK 24 25,621 41,377
48,755 69,692
Net current assets REBEEFE 62,355 83,691
Total assets less current liabilities EEZABRABHEE 88,580 87,779
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 6,975 —
Net assets EEFE 81,605 87,779
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BB 0 R

As at 31 March 2020 7 202043 A 31 H

2020 2019
2020 & 20194

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M et FET FAET
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital &7 25 7,500 7,500
Reserves Tt 74,105 80,279
Total equity R 81,605 87,779

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019, using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative

information is not restated. See Note 2.

The notes on pages 106 to 191 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 100 to 191 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 June 2020 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Fu Chun Keung
BER
DIRECTOR
BE

REBE R2019F 4 A1 HRABKIEFTBA
X EAEBSYHRELENEI65 o IRIFL S
o BB RRKEE o H2EME2 -

HNFE106 2191 AN ERZFHE M BERK
B RAI SRR —&F 7

F£100E 191 EM B 8K M 2020F 6 A 19 H
CEESHERBRESRG YA TIESRERE
=

Cheung Lai Yuk
REE
DIRECTOR
o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SRS

£/

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

Non-
Share Share Other Exchange  Retained Sub- controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve profits total interests Total
BA  REEE HitRE EXRE  REERN N OFERESR &y
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
FET FAT FHET FET FHET FET FET FHET
(Note a)
(Hiia)
At 1 April 2018 R2018F4A1H 20,030 — — 1,090 31,404 52,524 859 53,383
Profit for the year ERREF — — — = 2,223 2,223 — 2223
Exchange differences arising BENEEBESE
from translation of a foreign MERES
operation — — — (1,569) — (1,569) — (1,569)
Total comprehensive (expense)) ERZE(RX)/
income for the year ot — — — (1,569) 2,223 654 — 654
Dividend declared (Note 13) ERRE (M 13) — — = — (9,000) (9,000) = (9,000)
Effect of group reorganisation ~ £EE@ENFE
(Note a) (Hiita)) (20,030) = 20,489 = 400 859 (859) =
Capitalisation issue (Note 25(a)) ~ BAMcB17(fit25(a)) 5,625 (5,625) — — = = = =
Issue of shares upon listing EikkAET
(Note 25(b)) (Wit 25(b)) 1,875 54,375 — = = 56,250 = 56,250
Expenses incurred in connection BB E & RIA T
with the issue of shares upon EENFAX
listing (Note 25(b)) (Bi25(b) — (13,508) — — — (13,508) — (13,508)
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3A31R 7,500 35,242 20,489 (479) 25,027 87,779 — 87,779
Loss for the year ERER — = = = (5,484) (5,484) — (5,484)
Exchange differences arising BENRAEBELR
from translation of a foreign ERESE
operation — — — (690) — (690) — (690)
Total comprehensive expense FR2ERYEE
for the year — — — (690) (5,484) (6,174) — (6,174)
At 31 March 2020 R2020%3831A 7,500 35,242 20,489 (1,169) 19,543 81,605 - 81,605
Notes: BiEr -

(a) Other reserve represents the difference between paid-in capital and
issued share capital of the Company arising from group reorganisation.

(b) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019, using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 2.

The notes on pages 106 to 191 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

(a) HitREEEEEEAELEZARABREARED
TRAZEZER -

(b) AEBMER20195F4 81 BFRAKETBIENS
FERABEBHEHREERFE 1658 - RIBUL X @ L&
BRAREES - F2HMF2 -

HRE106 2191 BN AZERE VB HRE

M)Al skifk 2 — 269 ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Cash flows from operating activities RETBHREENRESRN
(Loss)/Profit before tax BBl (518 ), Fl (6,854) 3,908
Adjustments for: KEEE
Depreciation on property, plant and M - BWERRENE
equipment 7,876 577
Loss on written-off of property, plant WEEME - BEREEAEE
and equipment 1 —
Write down/(reversal) of inventories to 1S 1F SR, (B ) = r] #18
net realisable value, net FE 641 (1,316)
Impairment loss for trade receivables B 5 W IE R EEE 35 64
Fair value gain on financial assets at BEATEFABENESHEEN
FVTPL, unrealised DAY (REER) (195) -
Fair value gain on gold loans at FVTPL, 1RAFETABRHESERY
realised A ERE(BEIR) — (1,070)
Interest expenses B 1,491 1,365
Interest and dividend income AMERKREHA (897) (140)
Unrealised foreign exchange REIRE R PR
realignment (990) (1,712)
Operating cash flows before working EELESBPILERSR
capital changes 1,108 1,676
Decrease in inventories FERD 1,824 10,430
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other B S RHEAMEWRGRERD
receivables (3&n) 4,196 (670)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other B REMBEMZKEBECRD),
payables 30 (10,062) 2,578
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities A& &E#E N, CHd) 299 (45)
(Decrease)/increase in refund liabilities BRRAEBORD), 80 (174) 371
Cash (used in)/generated from operations 4%i&E(FTA) EEHIRS (2,809) 14,340
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BRI EBFFH (916) (1,075)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EET — (32)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RSN (TR EAEN
operating activities REeFEE (3,725) 13,233
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Cash flows from investing activities RETEBRERE
Purchase of property, plant and BEYH BB &H&
equipment (1,023) (67)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BERATEFAEBRNEREE (5,000) =
Withdrawal of/(Placement of) pledged RE (171 B R BRI ER
bank deposit 2,200 (2,200)
Repayment from related companies ) UNCIF e — 3,240
Interest and dividend received BUF SRR E 897 140
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEB(FTA) ELEN
investing activities e IFHE (2,926) 1,113
Cash flows from financing activities RETERERE
Proceeds from issue of shares &7 B 4T P15 5k I8 — 56,250
Issue costs paid BT A (2,045) (9,889)
Proceeds from bank loans IRITE B RIE — 15,500
Repayments of bank loans EERITER (15,756) (10,177)
Repayment of gold loans at FVTPL BEEATEFABRNESER — (12,193)
Repayment to a non-controlling interest B8 —TAFFEIRE R FR — (601)
Payment of lease liabilities HEABEMNR (6,594) —
Interests paid RN (1,491) (1,365)
Dividend paid RN ¥ — (333)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEEE(FTA)MEERSFHE
financing activities (25,886) 37,192
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRBESEEYWORD) 1B
cash equivalents FE (32,537) 51,538
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ¥R £ RESLZEY
of the year 75,973 24,463
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  4MEE R @ghg & (7) (28)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRESREASEEY
the year 43,429 75,973
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019, using the AEEDR2019F M A —AFERKERTBHE

modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative

information is not restated. See Note 2.

The notes on pages 106 to 191 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

REVAERERD ©

BREABEMBERELERE 165 - RIFLT
% HBERAREEY - BRIDE2
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited
(formerly known as Dominate Group Holdings Company
Limited) (the “Company”) is a public limited company
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 11 January 2018
and its shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of
the registered office of the Company is PO Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman lIslands and the
principal place of business of the Company is at No. 6-13
Faerie Court, 80 Ko Shan Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company of the Company is Mythe Group Holdings Company
Limited which was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI”). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Fu Chun Keung
(“Mr. Fu”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) include the production, retail and wholesale of
jewellery products and the trading of recycled gold products.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in Note 33.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional

currency of the Company.

BERESEEERER QAR B R
Dominate Group Holdings Company
Limited ([ 2 & |) K 201841 A 11 H
RASHEESEIMRIZIRARBR AR - A
BNREEBERIMAER QAR
FT1)GEM £ o KRR ER 2
3 & PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands -
AR AR =B &2 2 it BB E N
BEALM) = LB 805 = 15 BI 6-13 5% ©

RRABBEEER DG REEIEZERRRR/R
ABRExHES((RBRLHES MK
37 W) Mythe Group Holdings Company
Limited o B & A&YEHIT7 RE R EE([1H
FED -

RATAREEBAT « RAT REWHE
RA[AEEDBEELE TERMEK
EEMREERNNZSER T EMEBAQ
A E EEBE N33

=l
W
~

&
NG

AR BRENBL(ET) 27 BA
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual
periods beginning or after 1 April 2019

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new and amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
which are relevant to the Group’s operations and effective for
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual

period beginning on 1 April 2019:

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

HK (IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new and
amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how the results
and financial position for the current and prior periods have

been prepared and presented.
HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 “Leases” replaces HKAS 17 “Leases” along
with three Interpretations, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”, HK(SIC)-Int15
“Operating Leases-Incentives” and HK(SIC)-Int27 “Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of
a Lease”. HKFRS 16 has been applied using the modified
retrospective approach, with the cumulative effect of adopting
HKFRS 16 being recognised in equity as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits for the current period.

Prior periods have not been restated.

R20195F4 B1 B2 RRKNFERE
LRI R EBUBRELER

RAFEE  AEBHAEAESEMA
EAEMERAEANEEELLESSIHE
WA 2019F 4 A1 BFEHBHNEEHEN
RAEMIEHRERAERA TR REERTE
BRI A %R -

BA RS ER G
F165
BB ISR ER BERERENRE
FIFMIEET BN
BEGIIER FEIEET - R AR
F19RMEE]
BAEFER REBEDRIRAEE DR
F 28 HER] MR
BN RS 2R BT REER
BERT 2015F £ 2017
BN FE L
5 (BB KRS FTiS Rl I
REZE®) — THEE
RIEBE 235

BT Pt &SN - AT REERT BB
RS LR S ARE A TR EE
RS BRRANRBE R 2T AL EEANE

@,
BEBUBHEERE16 5[ HE

EEMBREEINFE 165K HE IMKREE
SR ERFE17RIEE | ER=ERE(E
B(ERYEREREZES) — BEF
4R EERFEERSHE]  FB(CER
REZEE) — REZ15R[KLHEE —
BEIRBB(EJREZES) — 2ER
T HRIFHE S FOEARTAHENRHHA
R - BEMBREENE16REEBL
EFTEPERR - IRME B 5 HE £
F16RNRATECN AR AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual
periods beginning or after 1 April 2019 — continued

HKFRS 16 “Leases” — continued

For contracts in place at the date of initial application, the
Group has elected to apply the definition of a lease from
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 and has not applied HKFRS 16
to arrangements that were previously not identified as lease
under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4.

As a Lessee

The Group has elected not to include initial direct costs in the
measurement of the right-of-use asset for operating leases
in existence at the date of initial application of HKFRS 16,
being 1 April 2019. At this date, the Group has also elected
to measure the right-of-use assets at an amount equal to
the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease

payments that existed at the date of transition.

Instead of performing an impairment review on the right-of-use
assets at the date of initial application, the Group has relied
on its historic assessment as to whether leases were onerous

immediately before the date of initial application of HKFRS 16.

On transition, for leases previously accounted for as operating
leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months, the
Group has applied the optional exemptions to not recognise
right-of-use assets but to account for the lease expense on a

straight-line basis over the remaining lease term.

On transition to HKFRS 16, the Group has applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics. The weighted average incremental borrowing
rate applied to lease liabilities recognised under HKFRS 16
was 3.13%.

R2019F4R1IBE R 2 ERBENFE
HEERNHAIREETEBHBERS
ER — &

BEBUBHEERE167 HE | — #&

RRBERERAHEFENESL  ~N&H
BERAEBEFERF17HERETE(E
BREMBHREREZRE) — REF4RR
THHEEEZ  AHEMELARREEZLES
AEAFI7TREER(BRPBRERE
Z88) — REBFARERRBENOR
VEERABBUHREERE 165

tERATAA

HRBEAVIEREEAFE 1658 5 X EHA
HEI(BN2019F4 1B ) BEFENKEH
B AEERERAEFEREEER T
MBEEAAR - REB - NEBITNRIZR
BEREEaENSE(BRBERRFEE
R RFEN S ETTHE TR EFEH
EEE o

AEBRBENERBERAERATEVER
SEAF 16K A MAMEEREERTSE
ERBERE - MIERERER A HE®
REEEEITREERR -

RBER - BLERTARBSTHEHAIR 12
BEAMEEHENEENS - AEECDE
RERERR I EREREEE  EHE
FXIHBEREASR TEEFIAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B 15 R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual
periods beginning or after 1 April 2019 — continued

HKFRS 16 “Leases” — continued
As a Lessee — continued

The following is a reconciliation of total operating lease
commitments at 31 March 2019 to the lease liabilities
recognised at 1 April 2019:

ERAHIREEIETBUBREE
R(TEBHBHREER]) — &

R2019F4R1BE R 2 ERBE N FE
HERERNHAIREETEBHBERS
R — &

BB BHREEREI6HHE — &
(EREABA— &

AR AR 201943 A31 AR &L HEE &
EHBEN2019F4 A1 AHRANEESR
BEREER

HK$'000
FET
Total operating lease commitments disclosed MR2019F 3 A31 HEBEMLEERE
at 31 March 2019 AL 21,488
Recognition exemption — Leases with ERHAR B THBEE12EAKATHREE
remaining lease term of 12 months or less (4,042)
Operating leases liabilities before discounting REF MG EHERE 17,446
Discounting using incremental borrowing rate FA2019F 4 A1 AMLERE
as at 1 April 2019 F=AEIR (784)
Total lease liabilities recognised under M2019F 4 A1 BREFSMBRE
HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 EHFE 16 RERNEE AFERRE 16,662
Classified as: DR
Current lease liabilities mEHEAE 10,712
Non-current lease liabilities EREBEEARE 5,950
16,662
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr B R R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) — continued

ERHMAREEIETRUBREE
A(TEBHBHREER )

V=]
=]

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual
periods beginning or after 1 April 2019 — continued

Total impact arising from transition to HKFRS 16

The following table summarises the impact of transition to
HKFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 April 2019:

Increase in right-of-use assets presented in
property, plant and equipment

Increase in lease liabilities

THE & E A8 b

R2019F4R1IBE R 2 ERBENFE
HEERNHAIREETEBHBERS

ER — &

BEEEBUBHREERIFE16 FELHT

#HE

TREMBEEESMIERELEDE 1655
HAREBPL2019F 4 A 1 B R A M5k

2IRME - BERRENERAE
BEREN

MRHFZE
HK$'000
FEIT
16,662
16,662

Issue but not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs have been
published but are not yet effective, and have not been
adopted early by the Group.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
Amendments to

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business®

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform’

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material'

and HKAS 8

SEMEERERZEBUHREZER
Rt EREMBRRIEERS  ETH

I REETBERU R

SEREEAMHE

RARERR - B ARBARERATRA

EEUBRERINEATR  RBRAD®
EHMBRELNFE0R RELZAHBENFN
REBGHEANE28E  AELAIZRENE
MiEsT EHESTE®
EEUBREENEIR  EBENEE'
BT
MRS ERE FlREEHS!
% BIEGRTERE 39
W A B RS %R
7 HOET
ERMBMEERNE 165 H2019ERBERA
BT BORESER
ERETENE1RR EANER'

BRI ERF 8RN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B 15 R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

Issue but not yet effective HKFRSs — continued
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

Effective date not yet determined

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning on or after the effective date of the pronouncement.
The application of all new, amendments to HKFRSs and new
interpretation will have no material impact on the consolidated

financial statements in the foreseeable future.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1 Basis of preparation and presentation

These annual consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.

The financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).
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%

8 R 202141 B1 B2 ERBNEEHBRE
33

3 AR ABEAREE

¢ EBAHREERENR 20201 A1z
BRI R B A F EHIRIRIA B Bk 2 B MK
B R H AR

° 720204 6 A1 Bslz % FAEFE SRR 4
ue
EETEHMALEAGRZEEL A KA H
g EENRAERARAEENS
T - ERRT AT REIEET BB
HRELAARIFTZRG TN AR KRR
e M BRFEREMNEALE -

FTESTHHER
31 mRREJEE

ZEFEEBMBBEDRERE
gt Ag((EAGMAE )R
BB HEREEA(ZRAEE
TP B 8 A BV B BB B R s
8 FEEFENRRE)REER
PesER|EEl o

A/ Al =R

MIEHR T E T B QARG E
RAEERE UYEEEEHERS
FrERARGEMES EmAR R £
mARADNERRERE °

2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT 3R

1l



IhI2

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

3.1

Basis of preparation and presentation — continued

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss that
are measured at fair values at the end of the reporting
period. The measurement bases are fully described in
the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’'s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

In preparation of initial listing of the Company on GEM of
the Stock Exchange, the companies now comprising the
Group underwent the group reorganisation as detailed in
the Prospectus of the Company. The Company became
the holding company of the companies now comprising
the Group on 12 April 2018. The Company and its
subsidiaries have been under common control of Mr.
Fu throughout the year ended 31 March 2019, or since
their respective dates of incorporations, where there is
a shorter period. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on the basis as if
the Company had always been the holding company
of the Group. Therefore, the group reorganisation is
considered as a business combination under common

control and accounted for under merger accounting.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows of the companies now comprising the Group
for the year have been prepared as if the Company
had always been the holding company of the Group
and the current group structure has been in existence
throughout the year ended 31 March 2019, or since their
respective dates of the incorporation.

3.1

mAREZFNEE — &

RAUBRRIVIRELKAEELR
o ERAFEFABRSNERE
ERRRERROQRFEE - 7
EEENTXEHERRAFL -

EHEIE WEBAVBHRREY
RAgAEARER BEXSMA
SANEREEEBHENEMFRTH
R RERRRABMEL - TR
BRERAEBINZFME -
REEHE G SEMANHBE - X
BRBRRRAFHEAMBRERE
BEAFENEBNME 4 ABEE

AREBARARBRAMGEME R £
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

3.2

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the entities comprising the

Group. Control is achieved when the Company:
o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from

its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of

control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control

the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting

policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

3.2

3.3

Basis of consolidation — continued

Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the

relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of

investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Group on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the reporting date. All dividends whether
received out of the investee’s pre or post-acquisition

profits are recognised in the Group’s profit or loss.

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came

under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are combined using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest
in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at the time
of common control combination, to the extent of the

continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of
the combining entities or businesses from the earliest
date presented or since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the common
control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the

date of the common control combination.
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3.4

3.5

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in term of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, as recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the date
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under exchange reserve.
Such exchange differences accumulated in equity are
reclassified to the profit or loss in the period in which

the foreign operation is disposed of.
Revenue recognition

Revenue arises mainly from the sales of jewellery

products.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group

follows a 5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer
2. Identifying the performance obligations
8. Determining the transaction price
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.5

Revenue recognition — continued

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations
8. Recognising revenue when/as performance

obligation(s) are satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is
allocated amongst the various performance obligations
based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The
transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts

collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over
time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or

services to its customers.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant

performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances

an asset that the customer controls as the Group

performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good

service.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

3.5

3.6

Revenue recognition — continued
Sales of jewellery products

Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
jewellery products are delivered to the customers and

the respective controls have been passed.
Provision of jewelcrafting services

The revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

jewelcrafting services are rendered.
Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the
Group estimates the amount of consideration to which it

will be entitled using the expected value method.
Refund liabilities

The Group would estimate the sales return at the time of
sale at a portfolio level (expected value method) based
on its historical experience and recognises a refund
liability if the Group expects to refund some or all of the

consideration received from customers.
Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer.
Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions. Government grants are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that the grants

are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to income is presented in
gross under other income in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost of right-of-use assets

are determined in accordance with note 3.15.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using

straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. Upon
the application of HKFRS 16, accounting policy for
depreciation of right-of-use assets is set out in note
3.16.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset

and is recognised in profit or loss.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or

sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

3.9

3.10

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable values. Cost is determined using weighted
average method for gold jewellery products and specific
identification basis for other jewellery products. Net
realisable values represent the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion

and costs necessary to make the sale.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material). All provisions are reviewed
at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the

current best estimate.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and

the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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3.11 Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or when the financial asset and substantially all of its
risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged,

cancelled or expires.
Financial assets
Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

Except for those receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component and are measured at
the transaction price in accordance with HKFRS 15, all
financial assets are initially measured at fair value, in
case of a financial asset not at FVTPL, plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVTPL are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

Financial assets are classified into amotised cost or
FVTPL.

The classification is determined by both:

—  the entity’s business model for managing the

financial asset; and

— the contractual cash flow characteristics of the

financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets
that are recognised in profit or loss are presented within

finance costs, other income or other gains and losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.11 Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Debt investments
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if
the assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

— they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and collect

its contractual cash flows; and

—  the contractual terms of the financial assets give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income
in profit or loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect

of discounting is immaterial.

The Group’s bank balances and cash, pledged bank
deposits, rental deposits, trade and other receivables

fall into this category of financial instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.11 Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment,
the Group elects to designate the investment at FVOCI
(non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in reserve in equity. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but only
be made if the investment meets the definition of equity

from the issuer’s perspective.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established. Dividends are

included in the other income in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — 3. FESIHHBEX — &

continued

3.11 €@THE —#

3.11 Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities
Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank borrowings,

lease liabilities and trade and other payables.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are
initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable,

adjusted for transaction costs.

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease
liabilities) are measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes
in an instrument’s fair value that are reported in profit or

loss are included within finance costs.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in
Note 3.15.

Bank borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

Other financial liabilities

They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

3.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED E}EEkE £ EZERER A F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.12 Impairment of financial assets

HKFRS 9’s impairment requirements use more forward-
looking information to recognise Expected credit losses
(“ECL”) — the “ECL model”. Instruments within the scope

included financial assets measured at amortised cost.

The Group considers a broader range of information
when assessing credit risk and measuring ECL,
including historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the

forecast of future conditions.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction

is made between:

— financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition or that have low credit risk (“Stage 1”)
and

— financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low
(“Stage 2”).

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have

objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

“12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1 category
while “lifetime ECL” are recognised for the Stage 2

category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life

of the financial instrument.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

3.12 Impairment of financial assets — continued

Trade receivables

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL and recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date.
These are the expected shortfalls in contractual cash
flows, considering the potential for default at any point
during the life of the financial assets. The ECL on these
assets are assessed individually for significant balances
or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
grouping based on shared credit risk characteristics by
reference to past default experience and current past

due exposure of the debtor.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been

grouped on the basis below:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s

trade receivables are assessed as a separate

group);
. Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share

similar credit risk characteristics.
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group measures the loss allowance for other
receivables equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increase in
the likelihood of risk of default occurring since initial

recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

3.12 Impairment of financial assets — continued

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost —

continued

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
assets at the reporting date with the risk of default
occurring on the financial assets at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’'s

ability to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor; and

— an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations. The Group considers a
financial asset to have low credit risk when it has
internal or external credit rating of “investment

grade” as per globally understood definition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

3.12 Impairment of financial assets — continued

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost —

continued

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
end of each reporting period. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if it has a low risk of
default, the borrower has strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and
adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a financial asset
to have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally

understood definition.

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when there is
a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty;
or information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without

taking into account any collateral held by the Group).
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

3.12

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost —

continued

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables and other financial assets measured at

amortised cost are set out in Note 32.
Impairment on non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
(including right-of-use assets) and the company’s
investments in subsidiaries to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if

any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment (including right-of-use assets) and the
Company’s investments in subsidiaries are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In addition,
the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and

consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

3.13 Impairment on non-financial assets — continued

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. The impairment loss is allocated to the assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the cash-generating units. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal, its value in use and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata
to the other assets of the cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

in profit or loss immediately.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

3.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED gIfE¥RE &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.14 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

3.14 Taxation — continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to

be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying

amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity respectively.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

3.15 Leases

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee
Policy applicable from 1 April 2019

For any new contracts entered into on or after 1 April
2019, the Group considers whether a contract is, or
contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract,
or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an
identified asset (the underlying asset) for a period
of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply this
definition, the Group assesses whether the contract

meets three key evaluations which are whether:

. the contract contains an identified asset, which
is either explicitly identified in the contract or
implicitly specified by being identified at the time

the asset is made available to the Group;

. the Group has the right to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use, considering
its rights within the defined scope of the contract;

and

o the Group has the right to direct the use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use. The
Group assess whether it has the right to direct
‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used

throughout the period of use.

For contracts that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease and non-lease component on the basis of

their relative stand-alone prices.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

3.15 Leases — continued

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee —

continued

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019 — continued

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The right-
of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of
the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial
direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset at
the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in
advance of the lease commencement date (net of any

lease incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a
straight-line basis from the lease commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-
use asset or the end of the lease term unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership at the end of
the lease term. The Group also assesses the right-of-

use asset for impairment when such indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily

determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable payments based on an index or
rate, and amounts expected to be payable under a

residual value guarantee.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

3.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED gIiE¥% 2 &£ BERERAF]

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.15 Leases — continued

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee —

continued

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019 — continued

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee —

continued

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be
reduced for lease payments made and increased for
interest cost on the lease liability. It is remeasured to
reflect any lease modification, or if there are changes
in in-substance fixed payments. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expense in the period on which the event

or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

For lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised

discount rate at the effective date of modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.15 Leases — continued

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee —

continued

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019 — continued

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee —

continued

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit
and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to

Zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases
using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising
a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in
relation to these leases are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of

12 month or less.

On the consolidated statement of financial position,
right-of-use assets have been included in “property,

plant and equipment”.
Policy applicable before 1 April 2019

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

3.15

Leases — continued

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee —

continued

Policy applicable before 1 April 2019 — continued

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to

the Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to government-managed retirement benefit
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme,
which are defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
are recognised as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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MoRERE@FELEAREE - 8
FRHAEE T BAKEHE -

EREBANKEHESEA

HMAEEARERNELEERH
MEE  IIZSFHERTHELNMN
RERNEHARERZEZEBEHH
B BRIEA H M A LR EIFE R
TEEEEERDNENERRRN
AfERlm - ERAHEBREERER
P B8 2 5 TH B 1 SR 48 BB O AR X B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRKNE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.17 Short-term employee benefits

3.18

3.19

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries) after deducting

any amount already paid.
Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity attributable
to the equity holders. The amount of the share capital
recognised is determinated using the nominal value and
any related transaction costs are deducted from the

share premium.
Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to the

Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group.

3.

FE

3.17

3.18

3.19

BHEE — &

EHEEER

7 HAE B 18 F X 18 B BR AR 75 B 1R
A TR RREIR B
ReMBREYEERRNMERRF
X ER-REAMBREENE
KAAFRBEBERNAAZEKR
EUE N
EHGRERMNEMESRR 8

BEESHNEMNPINTERFE)
HEREE -

L&

EBERRAESTA ARGETS -
ERRNRACEARERTE  ®
PR 5 (B R E [ AERASZ HAK A o

BB

RREGRAMBHREMS - MAE

ATER - RTALTEHRE RER

KB AR -

(a) MWHERTER  BIRALR
ZATHOOREAREEERE

s
ok

(i) #EHlsk RS ARE
;

(i) HAEBRFEEATE
Bk

(i) ARAEEFXAEEGA
FINEEETEERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr B R R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — 3. FEEFEX —#&
continued
3.19 Related parties — continued 3.19 @A — &
(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following (b) HFFE THIERGYE - IR E

conditions applies: BEERREE B H R

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the () ZERHEAAXSEEHER—
same group. SEHKE AT ©

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture (i) —HAEBAS—EEN
of the other entity (or an associate or joint /N A X e
venture of a member of a group of which the S—EEBRKEARN
other entity is a member). EEETKE R A A B

ERRIREERE) °

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures (i) ZEBEAEERR—
of the same third party. FE-THREDRE -

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity (iv), " HEBRFE=7TEE
and the other entity is an associate of the MeEatx MR —&
third entity. BAAZE=ZFEEN

B A A o

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan (v) ZEBAASEHHERN
for the benefit of employees of either the SEEHEBENEEE
Group or an entity related to the Group and BERMBZLOBBEZE
the sponsoring employers are also related to FIEHE - & BhiEE TR
the Group. HAREE A BE

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled (viy ZEBX(a)BF#HERIA
by a person identified in (a). Ty fl sk A o

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) i) I8 FTak BIA  ¥5Z
“ﬁi Fa8 B
B(IZEENER

TEEEERKE -

—
QO

~

=

i

il

influence over the entity or is a member of

the key management personnel of the entity

I Xy
= )ﬂﬂ}

(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of (vii) ZERBIEMBESEDN
which it is a part, provides key management ERKE AR AAREE
personnel services to the Group or to the SAEERQARMEE
parent of the Group. EERABR -

Close members of the family of a person are those —BAATHERERSEZEER
family members who may be expected to influence, or SEBHAFZEZATRZRZALT
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the FENREKE -

entity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities,

are described below.
Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
values. Net realisable values of inventories are based on
estimated selling prices less any estimation costs to be
incurred for completion and disposal. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical

experience in selling goods of similar nature.

The Group’s management reviewed, on a regular basis,
the suitability of its inventory allowance policy and has
applied the policy consistently. The Group’s management
also reviewed, on a regular basis, the inventory age listing
to identify any slow-moving inventories and estimated the
amount of allowances primarily based on the pricing policy
and strategies and the historical experience in selling goods
of similar nature. The Group also engaged an independent
professional gemologist to perform valuation and assess the
conditions of certain items based on gemstone testing for
gem-set jewellery with reference to international diamond

prices, its expertise and the current market situation.

FEFE AP FESPT Al MO AN 5% B & 5 UK
ARBESERBEELREMIREENE
ENBENREEELDHE SRR
& ZFHARABRKRIBREBELR
EBESHEENEMCRREL - BRER
A RER BN Z FhET

ZEEFFRABRREFEELER - Y
SRHAFHETERK - MERTEREET
ERTHEIME - AHERT ST AT S £ M
MR MERIFEE BRI - Al
{ERT B N R 2K BRI e RR o

T ARERREBAARREEME KA
THEEMEMNEMERRIR - HERELE
IR E E R EEK AN AR RN
BRER -

FEME
FEERAETNZHFEMETORKE
SRR - FEAEIFEDER G EER
TR R EEEMNEMMMGERAR - ZF
ANERENMARKEEEREE M
BELRAETT

AEEEEEE PR EFERERED
BEN  YER-—BRABABEK - A&
EERENENBRBEREE - HRER
WHFE W BREBEBR MR AR
BEHREBUEEEmNERBEFEE
SR MH ARENETBEBIEXRE
EEMNAETHE L2RERELE
% HERABRRFETN - HIREER
EfNEOARETHRENTIRETEE
HIARIT ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

Valuation of inventories — continued

At 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of inventories
is HK$61,526,000 (net of allowance for inventories of
HK$2,090,000) (2019: HK$63,991,000 (net of allowance for
inventories of HK$1,449,000)).

Estimation of impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group makes allowances on items subjects to ECL
including trade and other receivables based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period as
set out in note 3.12. As at 31 March 2020, the aggregate
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables amounted
to HK$5,918,000 (net of ECL allowance of HK$99,000) (2019:
HK$10,978,000 net of ECL allowance of HK$64,000).

When the actual future cash flows are different from expected,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade
receivables and other items within the scope of ECL under
HKFRS 9 and credit losses in the periods in which such

estimate has been changed.

Estimation of fair value of financial asset at FVTPL

As at 31 March 2020, financial asset at FVTPL that are
not traded in an active market including unlisted equity
investments that was carried at fair value of HK$5,195,000
(2019: Nil). The fair values are determined based on
valuations performed by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer, details
of which are set out in note 32. This involves developing
estimates and assumptions consistent with how market
participants would price the instrument. The Group bases its
assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this
is not always available. In that case the Group uses the best
information available. Estimated fair values may vary from
the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length

transaction at the reporting date.

FEMAE—#&

R2020F3A31H FEMEEMEA
61,526,000 % 7T (H1Br 17 & # & 2,090,000
771 ) (20194 : 63,991,000/ st (K15
B 1,449,00087)) °

B 5 REMEKKIRRREG

AEBERGRELNRR REHAEIEXN
BEBXZBERBHEEBHENIEE (B2F
B 5 REAMEWEIE) FH IR B o S
ES12FTE  AEBERIELZEREZRE
BHERENBARERN  @ERAEE
WBEESE  BITTMRIARERERD
A WE Mk 5T 7B 2T - 720204 3 A 31
H ZB5REMEBRFENEEESLA
5,918,000 st (¥ bR 7B B (= & 5 18 B 4
99,0007 7t ) (20194 : 10,978,000/ JT
(MRFEHEEEER%64,000%87T)) °

HERARARRESRERINTESR  FHAE
R ERBEEMBRE LR LIRS
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178 B B AR (B DA R fd 51 3 = 2 3 IR /9
EEEE -
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BEERAFEFABENESREE(RRE
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(2019 : E)JIER - AFEDERBIS
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W R IlE E TS 2 mE A T AEEM
A ET R o REEFRATREIRIE A &R
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AfF e EZIBEBRT AEEEFEAEAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B 15 R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents amounts received and receivable for the
sales of jewellery products and net of discounts and returns

during the year.

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, regularly review revenue analysis
by nature of business (including jewellery business and
trading of recycled gold products), and by jewellery products
(including gem-set jewellery products (representing diamond/
karat gold/jade/pearl/platinum jewellery products) and gold
jewellery products). The executive directors of the Company
considered the operating activities of sales of these products
as a single operating segment. The operating segment has
been identified on the basis of internal management reports
prepared in accordance with accounting policies conform to
HKFRSs, and is regularly reviewed by the executive directors
of the Company. The executive directors of the Company
review the overall results, assets and liabilities of the Group
as a whole to make decisions about resources allocation.
Accordingly, no analysis of this single operating segment is
presented.

Entity-wide information

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

Wk o HBER

Waste FRNIREEMEE N RMBRFTNE
ER 2 RS o

ARABRTER(BITEZLERRE)EH
EZHREBLE (BEREEBRAKRES
EmBS)RERBER(BREELRRK
BER(NEL K/ $BR DK A
KREEMIURESKREER)E D KR
D e ARRATESRAZFERHEL
BEHRE—REDH - REDHMEIRE
BEEMBRE LGB BEAE
EERENEEZR - YAARRNITE
EEHEM - ARAATEEEHNAEHE
ERIWERES AENBBUIELSE
AR EAIRTE - Bt - BIE25ZE

—REDEIHT

EREER
REBWREDHTAT

2020 2019
2020 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Jewellery business: REER -
Retail operation of jewellery shops KBETEER 78,221 118,608
Wholesales of jewellery products (Note) PR Em#tE (A7) 22,230 41,351
100,451 159,959
Trading of recycled gold products mpEcERES 19,418 15,630
Total #st 119,869 175,589
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION —
continued
Entity-wide information — continued

Note: Wholesales of jewellery products represent revenue from
jewellery trading and provision of jewelcrafting services to the

wholesalers.

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

hERsHBERN — &

mEMER — &

Bet : RBERLFRERABE S RAMLERHR
HIRE I T ARG PREE £ RO U2 ©

2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T

Jewellery business by product: RERSIDKREER :
— Gem-set jewellery products — BEAERKEER 63,313 105,766
— Gold jewellery products — BSHKEEM 37,138 54,193
100,451 159,959
Trading of recycled gold products BRESERES 19,418 15,630
119,869 175,589

The Group is engaged in the retail of its own products
through its retail stores in Hong Kong. Wholesales of jewellery
products represent sales to jewellery retailers with stores and
provision of jewelcrafting services to the wholesalers. The
Group also purchase recycled gold products from the general
public for sale to gold product collectors and dealers for

trading purpose.

Revenue from sales of jewellery products is recognised at a
point in time when the jewellery products and recycled gold
products are delivered to the customers and the respective
controls have been passed. When the Group receives a
deposit for jewellery order or contribution to customer reward
scheme, this will give rise to contract liability at the start of a

contract, until the revenue is recognised.

AEBEBERBENTEENEEDE

mEE REERBBEEREAMIRKE
TERHERASLEHEHKE N IR
%o AKRETA—RARBELOKRESE
mARNEEERMREBRRXSBHEER
R o

KEHERE N WENIRE Em MO E
SERERXNTEPRERZEHZEEER
RER - RARBRRKETERSHE
FRBt 8RR SNAEKNE N
MR LTt BEEREEER AL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i a B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION —

continued
Entity-wide information — continued

Revenue from provision of jewelcrafting services is recognised
at a point in time when the jewelcrafting services are

rendered.

No individual customer contributing revenue which accounted
for more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue during both

years.

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, customers have
a right to exchange/refund within a year. The Group uses its
accumulated historical experience to estimate the exchange/
refund rate. A refund liability is recognised when the Group
expects to refund some or all of the consideration received
from customers. The Group’s right to recover the product is
recognised as right of return assets included in “Trade and
other receivables” and a corresponding adjustment to cost of

sales.

All sales contracts have an original expected duration of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction

price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

All of the Group’s revenue from external customers are
generated in Hong Kong. An analysis of the Group’s non-
current assets other than financial instrument and deferred tax

assets by their physical geographical location is as follows:

ko HER — &

mEMER — &

KA R MIRE I T ARAS ) U et & FE B2 (R 3K
BN TARAG I A K — B BARERR

REZMEFER  BEFANTEALEER
Wes A EE B BN 10% ©

REASBENRESOER  TPEER
—FRRBRR - AEHEREBER
EHERMETRER RRE - EAKETR
HREMOAEHELRER - BEHER
RREE o ANEE U EE MmO R R
REEREEBRNIES ME M EWKRK
] WHRRBRCEBREA °

F 34 A 40 40 I 2 T BB R 8 — 4 oA
79 o SR I B TS TR RS 15 SRR
ok TEEBIRERERSNHRS
B -

AR SN B R ek A A
Bk o AEERAERIE RS
RBEE(SBTAREEHEEERI)
mT

2020 2019
2020 & 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Non-current assets: EMBEE -
Hong Kong B 15,440 534
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) i ARFEMB(THE]) 3 6
15,443 540
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HWA
2020 2019
2020 2019 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Bank interest income |RITH S WA 559 140
Dividend income from financial assets ZAFEFABZHNLREE
at FVTPL HY A% B 338 —
Government grant (Note) BIS B (K7 at) 184 =
Sundry income FEEWA 245 318
1,326 458
Note: BiE
Government grant was received from provincial government in the HrhEE BT ERR TR B o I EAE X S B
PRC. There were no unfulfiled conditions or contingencies relating to T R 1 S e e R = RNV JE R -

this grant and was recognised upon receipts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B 15 R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

7. OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES Hit s &8
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Net foreign exchange gain HNEE U 2 5 58 60 55
Fair value gain on gold loans, E2ERNA T ERE

realised (B#3H) — 1,070

Fair value gain on financial asset at BATEFABENEREEDN
FVTPL, unrealised NFE W (REHR) 195 —
255 1,125

8. FINANCE COSTS B # A

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Interest on bank borrowings HRITIE TS 950 1,133
Interest on gold loans = ERFE — 232
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEABRNUKER 541 —
1,491 1,365
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

(Loss)/Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging/

9. FRBIAT(EIR), EF
R BLA(BIR),E R TVE R (GEA) T

(crediting): P ZIBIEIES
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Lease charges: HEMY :
— Short term leases and leases — BHRAEREHRERES
with lease term shorter than 12 B S AE RS 16 95 - A
months as at initial application EHILR12@ANEE
of HKFRS 16 4,453 —
— Rented premises held under operating — RIELLHEFHH
leases HEMZE - 12,147
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB REENITE N T 14)
equipment (Note 14)
— Owned assets — BEEE 541 577
— Right-of-use assets — EREAE 7,335 —
Total depreciation of property, plant M - BERREOTERTE
and equipment 7,876 577
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BB REENITE AT 14)
equipment (Note 14)
— Recognised as selling and — BRRBHE R HEA
distribution costs 7,690 385
— Recognised as general and — ERR M RITHAX
administrative expenses 186 192
Total depreciation of property, M - BERRBOITE R
plant and equipment 7,876 577
Directors’ remuneration (Note 11) E%Mﬁ(ﬂ?ﬁ}*ﬁ)
— fee 3,241 1,812
— salaries and other benefits = %’ré&,\ﬁﬂmﬁ‘\‘l - —
— retirement benefit scheme — RIREFFT B
contributions 62 164
3,303 1,976
Other staff’s salaries and other benefits Ht 8 T#4 & H Mg
— Recognised as cost of goods sold — ERREEEmAAR 1,368 1,865
— Recognised as selling and — BRAHEE R HEA
distribution costs 11,295 12,015
— Recognised as general and — WERRE—MRITHHAX
administrative expenses 4,759 4,980
Other staff's retirement benefit scheme £ fth 8 TR K@ sHEI T
contributions
— Recognised as cost of goods sold = 20 198
— Recognised as selling and —
distribution costs 498 535
— Recognised as general and — BRAE—RRITBHAX
administrative expenses 407 401
Total staff costs BTRARHE 21,650 21,970
ECL allowance for trade receivables, B RN RIENEREEER
net (Note a) BEFBEMita) 35 64
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN & 500 1,050
Cost of inventories recognised as ERAFAINFEERAE
an expense 78,364 121,564
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) 117 5 R 2 ] IRE(E
of inventories to net realisable (H ﬁ%@)(ﬁ/f&b)
value, net (Note b) 641 (1,316)
Loss on written-off of property, plant WEME  BEEREZEBR
and equipment 1 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i a B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

10.

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX — continued

Notes:

(a) During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group made ECL
allowance of HK$46,000 (2019: HK$64,000) and reversal of

credit loss of HK$11,000 (2019: Nil) based on ECL.

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group recognised
write-down inventories to net realisable of certain finished goods
of HK$796,000 (2019: HK$768,000) and reversal of write-down

inventories of HK$155,000 (2019: HK$2,084,000).

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share is based

on the following data:

9.

10.

BRBLAT (B1]),HR — &

wiit -

(@)

HE202043A3BLEFE  AEEE
BEEHEEBBELBEREEHERER
46,0007 7C(20194F : 64,0008 L) RfEE
5185 [E 11,000 47T (2019 F « &) o

HZE2020F3A831BLEE " HATFE
25 T 2K m &) Al 2 3R )% E796,000% T
(20194 : 768,000 7T ) & #& O MUK 7 &
155,000 7% 7T (2019 4F : 2,084,000 7T ) E
AR EER -

ZR(ER) AR
GREKER) /BFTHRT 5 B

/=
(=1
Ean

2020 2019
2020 2019 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(Loss)/Earnings ('] &F
(Loss)/Profit for the year FRER) B (5,484) 2,223
Number of shares
KD EE
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
Numbers of shares RHHE
Weighted average number of shares B9 hIAE 5k 750,000 565,068
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

10.

11.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE — continued

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2019 was taken into account and adjusted
for retrospectively as if the Capitalisation Issue as described

more fully in Note 25 was incurred as at 1 April 2018.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is the same as basic (loss)/
earnings per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary
shares in issue during the years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and the chief’s executive’s emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the
executive directors and chief executive of the Company
and independent non-executive directors of the

Company are as follows:

10.

11.

BR(BE) B — &

FTEEE2019F3ABLEFE 2GR
ERBANHOLT R METFHHE B EEH
ST RACFAEE - MEAMT R 25 R AR ARSI
HWEBARLEITEN 2018 4 51 B3 AL -

HE2020F R 2019F3 A31HIEFE -
BRI EBETEEEEEER e
R(BE) BINEGRERN(EE) &
FIFER o

EE  BETHAEBRESHM

(a) EERESTHRASHMH
ENRENARARRTEERES
THRABRARRBBILFATES
MF BB

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
benefits contributions
H M % BIREF
Hin &l B L
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
For the year ended 31 March  EZ202053A31HR
2020: EFEE:
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Fu (Chief Executive) BEE(TTHRER) 2,049 - 26 2,075
Ms. Fu Wan Ling BERLT 47 - 18 435
Mrs. Fu (Note) BAKNHZ) 415 - 18 433
Sub-total Nt 2,881 — 62 2,943
Note: Htet -

Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk (“Mrs. Fu”) is the spouse of Mr. Fu.

RBEXL([BAK])RELENRS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i a B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND 11. EE  BETBRABRESHFH —
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS — continued F =
(a) Directors’ and the chief’s executive’s emoluments — (a) EZERBETHRASHM — &
continued
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
benefits contributions
FE R EBREF
Hi3g# HE G
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET FET FET
For the year ended 31 March  EZ202053A31H
2020: LHFEE:
Independent non-executive BUFHTES :
directors:
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat REELAE 120 - - 120
Mr. Wong Wing Keung FIXKREAE
Meyrick 120 — — 120
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony RFBALAE 120 - - 120
Sub-total NEF 360 — - 360
Total “@Et 3,241 — 62 3,303
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
M RREF
BH H i 1a 7 AR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET
For the year ended 31 March BZE2019F3A31H
2019: HFE
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Fu (Chief Executive) BRE(TRER) 1,205 — 135 1,340
Ms. Fu Wan Ling BERLL 292 — 14 306
Mrs. Fu (Note) BAKHE) 309 — 15 324
Sub-total NEE 1,806 — 164 1,970
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S R R MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND 11. E5 - BETHRAEBRESHFH —
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS — continued &
(a) Directors’ and the chief’s executive’s emoluments — (a) EZERBETHRASHMH — &
continued
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
5k RREF
ER HiiaF FHEIBt R Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET FHET FET FHET
For the year ended 31 March B Z201943A31H
2019: IEFE
Independent non-executive BAUFWTES
directors:
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat REELE 2 — — 2
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick T3 %4 2 = — 2
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony BRF A& & 2 = = 2
Sub-total et 6 — — 6
Total @t 1,812 — 164 1,976

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company. No remuneration was paid by the Group to
the directors of the Company as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office for both years. There is no arrangement under
which a director has waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration.

EXRRATESFNFMERLSA
RAEIRAEENEEEHRERNR
BEM LXFARBEIFNTES
WHEMEESARRRENIRE A
B - RMEFE - ARELERAR
RAIEFNEFHMERBSMAR
SEHRIMARE BB HAES
BimE MEARESHEXR
BHEEAFM 25 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B 15 R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND 11.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS — continued
(b) Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group include
one (2019: one) director of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2020, details of emoluments are
included above. The emoluments of the remaining four
(2019: four) highest paid employees who are neither
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

EE BETBRAERESHFH —

=]

m=

(b) HEBRSHHES

REE2020F3 831 HIEFEMTA
FERmTEERIEARARMNIRE
H(2019F :1%) - HFMFBH
REX - HER4 R (2019F : 458)&
=EHES BIERAREE NS
SITBRAB)MEMAT

follows:
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Employees ==
— salaries and allowances — & LAk 1,310 1,277
— discretionary bonus — MBIE4T 867 1,046
— retirement benefit scheme — RIREFIGT B R
contributions 71 70
2,248 2,393

The emoluments of these remaining four highest paid
individuals in the Group for the year were within the

following band:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 % 7T

RAFE  AKEZFHHKIEES
HEEANFBEEDT :

2020 2019
2020 & 20194

No. of No. of
Employees Employees
EE#E EEHA

4 4

Certain employees of the Group are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined based on a percentage
of the profit before tax of the relevant subsidiaries
during both years.

AEBETREREAEEREL 5
BATEAL & %R 1% 7% M (B F 2 A 48 B Y
BARMGHANEMEEE DL E

=)

TE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S R R MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

12. TAXATION 12. BiE
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET F&T
The tax (credit)/charge comprises: BMIE(ER) X EE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBMFH
— Current year — BRIFE - 2,788
— Overprovision in prior years — BEREFEBREEE (206) (287)
(206) 2,501
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") FRBEMSHE(BEMSH])
— Current year — EREE — 32
— Underprovision in prior years — BEFERETRE 46 —
46 32
Deferred tax credit RIEFIEE & (1,210) (848)
Total income tax (credit)/expense Fis®i (%) 5 (1,370) 1,685

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided
as the Group incurred tax loss for the year ended 31 March
2020. The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the
year ended 31 March 2019 is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for the year as the directors
of the Company considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of qualifying entities are taxed at 8.25%, and the profits
above HK$2 million are taxed at 16.5%.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiary in the PRC is
25% for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

WESBAFEBEIREE - WIARK
EENREE2020F3A31HIEFEELE
BIBRE - HE2019F3A31AILEE
BTGB BE TR F N EEER TR
16.5%:TH - RARIERRRE BT
SR MARSIFTS R @ BEARE M IERERM
EMARE - BBEANEGHMBESH - & &K
SEERE2EE BTN AEK8.25%H)
MEGH - MBR2A\ BB TR 5%
16.5% BB R BT -

RIERBEEMEFEURPEMSHE
B HEEH - B E 20204 & 20194 3 A 31
BIEFEFRBENBARMNHEAE25% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i a B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

12.

13.

TAXATION — continued

12.

The tax for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)/profit

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

BiE — &

FARRFEEE R E M2 R R ERG
AT (&R, (EFIERABENT

2020 2019
2020 2019 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
(Loss)/Profit before tax BRF AT (E51R), i F (6,854) 3,908
Tax charge at the applicable income  #&iE R 1S5 5 & 16.5% £k
tax rate at 16.5% BB IE (1,131) 645
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A FNH B X M T A& o2 &
for tax purpose 139 1,706
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBWMANTEE
tax purpose (214) (4186)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REMRTBEENHETE A | 5
Tax effect of utilisation of tax loss B)F e Al M R FERR B TH S 1R /Y
previously not recognised RIS & — (9)
Effect of different tax rate applicable REMBFEERZELHEBE AT
to a subsidiary operating in the BANTREBEZE
other jurisdiction (5) 28
Overprovision in prior years BEFEEERE (160) (287)
Others Hh (40) 13
Tax (credit) charge for the year FRBBEER R (1,370) 1,685
DIVIDENDS 13. |RE
During the year ended 31 March 2019, King Jewellery & J REE2019F3A31BILLEE EEHK

Company Limited and W-Rich Company Limited declared

a special dividend to Mr. Fu, the controlling shareholder, in

aggregate amount of HK$9,000,000.

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company

during the year ended 31 March 2020, nor has any dividend

been proposed since the end of the reporting period (2019:

Nil).

B REETRERRRE L ESIREERIR
B4 9,000,000 7T °

KARREE2020F3A31HIEFER
i AR SR ER TR E - B RS BRI
REUREMIARE (20196 « #&) ©
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

14. Y% BERKE

Furniture,
Right-of-use Leasehold fixtures and Motor
assets  improvements equipment vehicles Machinery Total
HENE HE EE
EREEE BRIEB RERRE RE e o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FEr FET FET
Cost B
At 1 April 2018 R2018F4 A 1H - 3,562 3,949 862 326 8,699
Additions NE = 6 28 25 8 67
Disposals e — - (314) — — (314)
Exchange adjustment [} % - - — — (21) (21)
At 31 March 2019 ®20196 3 A31H - 3,568 3,663 887 313 8,431
Adjustment from the RINE AN R L

adoption of HKFRS 16 £ 16% 2 55%

(Note 2) (Hit2) 16,662 — — — — 16,662
Additions NE 5,506 838 174 1 — 6,529
Written off s — (863) (329) - = (1,192)
Modification of lease term &R & #1(#z)

(Note) (410) - - - - (410)
Exchange adjustment ~ [E 3338 % — - = = (19) (19)
At 31 March 2020 202053 A31R 21,758 3,543 3,508 898 294 30,001
Depreciation E
At 1 April 2018 R2018F 4818 = 3,131 3,622 570 326 7,649
Provided for the year S RE & — 346 107 122 2 577
Eliminated on disposal 1 &% — - (314) — — (314)
Exchange adjustment [} % - - — - (21) (21)
At 31 March 2019 7201943 A31 8 - 3,477 3,415 692 307 7,891
Provided for the year FREE 4335 306 110 123 2 7,876
Eliminated on written off  #$4A5 % — (863) (328) — — (1,191)
Exchange adjustment  [E X% — — — — (18) (18)
At 31 March 2020 R202053A31H 7,335 2,920 3,197 815 291 14,558
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2020 RW2020F3831H 14,423 623 3N 83 3 15,443
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3A318H = 91 248 195 6 540

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED gIiE¥% 2 &£ BERERAF]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRKNE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT —

continued

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost less their

residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term
or 25% per annum,
whichever is the shorter

Right-of-use assets Over the lease term

Furniture, fixtures and equipment  20%

Motor vehicles 30%

Machinery 20%

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group received
rent concessions for the retail shops. As the modification
does not add the right to use one or more underlying assets,
it is not accounted for as a separate lease. Accordingly, the
Group remeasures the existing lease liabilities including the
revised monthly rental using the discount rate at date of the
modification. The difference between the carrying amount of the
modified lease liability and the lease liability immediately before
the modification of HK$410,000 as an adjustment to the right-of-
use assets.

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

As at 31 March 2020, the amount represents the unlisted
equity investment in Fai Po Global SPC — Binjiang Flower
City Property Development Fund SP (“the Fund”) of which the
Group holds 2.62% equity interest.

The Fund is a sole proprietorship registered in the Cayman
Islands on 16 May 2019 and is established primarily to focus
on alternative real-estate related investment opportunities
in the PRC. The Group is subjected to a lock up period of 3
years for holding the equity interest of the Fund. The fair value
of the Group’s investments in the Fund has been measured as

described in note 32.

14.

15.

f==

4
=

M~ BERRE

MR -« BB REENITEERERA
& BTMAEEAIERF R B AR AR
HFREE

THEMENRR TR THHARGF 25%
(UBEEABE)

EREEE AR

RE - BEEERERE20%

E 30%

Hes 20%

Hiet - BE2020F3A31BIEFENRN  A5EG
ZTEEMBESER - ARFERERINGE
A—EZEEBEENER - T EEIE
REBHHEEAR - AUt AEBEGERZE
BHMITREXENIEREHEAE(BE
KETBAES) KETNHEEFBERE
BEEEAMNEEABEZENZER410,000%
TIMEREREEENFE -

BAFEFABRSNSMEE

M2020F3 H31H ' A ¥ & & 46 N Fai
Po Global SPC — Binjiang Flower City
Property Development Fund SPHJE L
TRERE(ER]) - AEEHFFESR
TRETRE 2.62% ©

BEe ANR2019F5 816 AR EHE T
MrBERSE - HRZEFEH FRFER
BEREMEFBITERSE  KEEERST
BHENZELR - AL R
c AEERESNRENAFEEES
SR EART EE 32 T

S

fin
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

16. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 16

The movements in deferred tax assets during each of the

reporting period are as follows:

EEBIHEE
EREHMANECHABEZSHNT

Impairment Temporary

loss for difference

Provision for trade on
inventories  receivables depreciation Tax losses Total

EHEWR nER
FERE FEREESR TRER BEEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET FHET
At 1 April 2018 M2018464 A1 H 233 — 410 — 643
Credit to profit or loss ~ RE&EETA 6 — 27 815 848
At 31 March 2019 R20196 3 A31H 239 — 437 815 1,491
Credit to profit or loss ~ RIB#ETA 106 16 (106) 1,194 1,210
At 31 March 2020 7202053 A31H 345 16 331 2,009 2,701

At 31 March 2020, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$12,840,000 (2019: HK$5,357,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset of HK$2,009,000
(2019: HK$815,000) has been recognised in respect of losses
of HK$12,176,000 (2019: HK$4,943,000) as at 31 March 2020.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to
remaining tax losses of HK$664,000 (2019: HK$414,000) as
at 31 March 2020 due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

MR2020F3A31H - "&E B B K& A
i IH &5 1812,840,000% (20194 :
5,357,000/ 7T ) - A A B 88 K 2R &
Fle M202063A31H B # & 18
12,176,000% 7T(2019%F : 4,943,000
7 7T ) BE RR IR A % 15 & & 2,009,000 7% 7T
(20194F : 815,000 Jr ) © 120204 3
A 31 B30 & 3L &R T ¢ 18 518 664,000 8 7T
(20194F : 414,000 L) ERELEHIEE
E - REARNRFREETE - BEA
ER AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i a B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

17.

18.

INVENTORIES 17. FE
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET F&T
Raw materials B 6,210 5,960
Work in progress E&m 861 206
Finished goods BIRK 54,455 57,825
61,526 63,991

At 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of inventories
included provision of HK$2,090,000 (2019: HK$1,449,000),
which determined with reference to the net realisable value

of the inventory items. Additional provision of HK$796,000
(2019: HK$768,000) and reversal of HK$155,000 (2019:
HK$2,084,000) upon realisation of sales was made during the

year ended 31 March 2020.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

MR2020F3A31H FENEREERKE
& #2,090,000 7 7T (2019 £ : 1,449,000
BIL) HD2EGFEHEENA SR F
EMET 8 2202063318 I+ F

796,00078 7T (20194 : 768,000 7T ) &
# [8155,0007% 7T(20194F : 2,084,000

BT °

18. EZ R EMENFIE

2020 2019
2020 2019 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Trade receivables =) &S 4,070 7,461
Less: ECL allowance JB BHIEEEREE (99) (64)
Trade receivables, net B S EKKIE(FER) 3,971 7,397
Rental deposits HEZRe
— to related parties (Note 30a) — KRB MEAH (Kt 30a) 494 494
— to third parties — RBE=H 2,886 2,806
Prepayments, other deposits and TEfFRIE - HfhiRe R
other receivables H fth fE WK IE 1,213 1,853
Right of return assets REIEERER 240 485
8,804 13,035
Less: Non-current portion of rental B ERSKERB S
deposits (2,886) (2,057)
5,918 10,978
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr B R R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

18.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — continued

The directors of the Group consider that the fair values
of trade and other receivables which are expected to be
recovered within one year are not materially different from
their carrying amounts because these balances have short

maturity periods on their inception.

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables after impairment, presented based on the invoice
date which approximates the respective revenue recognition
date.

18.

ESRAEMBENRIER — &

AEEEERR  BHHAR -FAKEH
B REMEEFEN A FEREREE
YEEBAREZR  WHARZFEHBEMAN
R EE AR -

TXAREERAH(ER B RSHER BB
BE) 2IEREKE D WRERASEE S
FEYRIBAHT ©

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FHET

0 to 30 days 0ZE 30K 718 2,724
31 to 60 days 31E£60XK 1,474 1,452
61 to 90 days 61E90K 553 1,696
Over 90 days HBiB 90 K 1,226 1,525
3,971 7,397

The Group’s retail sales to customers are mainly made in
cash or through credit card payments. The trade receivables
arise from credit card sales are normally settled in one to two
business day in arrears. For the remaining customers, the
Group allows a credit period up to 90 days. A longer credit
period may be granted to large or long-established customers

with good payment history.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group will internally
assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customers. Management closely monitors the
credit quality and follow up actions will be taken if overdue
debts are noted. Credit limits attributed to customers and
credit term granted to customers are reviewed on a regular
basis. Approximately 69% of the trade receivables as at 31
March 2020 (2019: 66%) are neither past due nor impaired
and they were assessed to be of good credit rating by the

Group.

AEEUEFNTEHETENRENE
BERARNFET  FERTHEELENE
SEWFIBABEGETENEZ2ELEX P&
BB TEPME - AEBEAFEAH
REEZEIORK © K& M AR R IR ER
REFERHMETNEFRERKERS -

REZEMMELA - NEB K PTH
BEEFPHNEREXRTREFPAEERAR
BoEREERYEBRCRERTUHERR
O HAESRRRBETE - EFZEAK
ERAREURATFEENEREREE
HAME 7T B 4% - 7020204 3 A 31 H #969%
(2019%F : 66%) K E 5 FEULFNIB BT £ 460 HR
NERE  BUHEREETGEARIEE
Al e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i a B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

18.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — continued

The movement in ECL allowance for trade receivables were as

ESRAEMBENRE — &
BHRKFENBREEBREENED

follows: mr
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At beginning of the year F1 64 —
ECL allowance recognised during FARROTEREEHERE
the year 46 64
ECL allowance reversed during FREBEMTESREEEIERE
the year (11) —
At end of the year FR 99 64

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
makes reference to the historical repayment to assess the
impairment for individual debtors with significant balances
while the Group collectively assesses the impairment for its
remaining customers using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings based on share credit risk characteristics of

customers.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its customers. The following
table provides information about the exposure to credit risk
for trade receivables which are assessed based on provision
matrix as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 within lifetime ECL (not
credit-impaired).

ERAKBEEERREEN—D - K&
B2 ZERTHUNEEBERRENE
BEBARNRE MARBEEREREP
MAREERRFRENEE AN EEE
SRR T PR EFERET -

ERASEEERREEN—HBD K%
ERHEEFERAANIEETR - TRIZH
B ZRUFBEEERBRHER  Z%
&R TR % 202043 A 31 A K 20194 3
A AMFENEREEBEB(LEREE
BE) ) A P ST A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — continued 18. EZRHMENSRE — &

31 March 2020

202063 H31H

Gross Net
carrying Average Loss carrying
amount loss rate allowance amount
REAE FYEEXR =k REFEE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Low risk (0 805 1.3% 11 794
Medium risk A& 3,265 2.7% 88 3,177
4,070 99 3,971
31 March 2019 201943 H31H
Gross Net
carrying Average Loss carrying
amount loss rate allowance amount
BREAE FHEEX EBEEE BREVFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
Low risk KRR 3,419 0.1% 3 3,416
Medium risk E R R 4,042 1.5% 61 3,981
7,461 64 7,397

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical et BERTVEEEH ATERREHNBEE
ABRENRMGE  YRBAMNHBZK
AR ENA BRI E R LB -
EREEREEOE  UHEREMBERE
EBEHANERER -

observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant

information about specific debtors is updated.

In addition, the directors of the Company considered that the AN RAREERE  KEBEXRBES
BEHRANFEMHERRELER  TARH
838 90 KA Z £ B MM RRAS R HES -

presumption of default has occurred when the instrument is
more than 90 days past due would be rebutted by considering
the expected subsequent and historical repayment from the

trade debtors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B 15 R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

19. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT/BANK BALANCES 19. BEFRTER RITEHREES
AND CASH

Bank balances and cash include the following components: HRITAEER IR B IR N OIAERCER S

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FETL

Cash at bank and in hand WITFERRBE S 23,251 75,973

Short-term bank deposits HHIRTTIER 20,178 2,200

Less: Pledged bank deposit - BEIFRITER — (2,200)

Bank balances and cash WITHR RS 43,429 75,973

Included in bank balances are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies

of the respective group entities:

RITERBRETINEREEERIREE

BN EEEHEMN IR

2020 2019

2020 & 2019 4

HK$°000 HK$'000

FAET F&T

Renminbi (“RMB”) ARB(TARE]) 37 7
United States dollar (“US$”) Em([Z=rx]) 36 75
73 82

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates of
0.01% per annum as at 31 March 2020 and 2019. The short-
term bank deposit carries fixed interest rate ranging from
1.90% to 2.30% per annum as at 31 March 2020. The pledged
bank deposit carries fixed interest rate of 1.55% per annum as
at 31 March 2019. The pledged bank deposit was be released
upon settlement of relevant bank borrowing during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

The directors of the Group considered that the fair value of
the short-term bank deposits is not materially different from
their carrying amount because of the short maturity period on
their inception.

RIT4E B2 1%Z 2020 FF 2 2019F 3 A 31 A MY
BITMBMREE0.01%:T 5 o BHRTT
T 1% 202043 A31 BHWMEEF KT F
NTF1.90% £ 2.30% 515 - BIEFRTE
HIE2019F 3 A31 H M E T F £ 1.55%
A B o B E202063A31H I FE
A BEARITFERENERARARITE

FIRRRER ©

AEFEEERR  EHRTEROQTE
HEENREAELEERNNE - WHBER

BRBKENEERLRE -

2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT 3§

161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. EZRHEMEMNTE
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FHET
Trade payables B SR 5RIE 4,104 6,406
Accrued staff costs FEEH B TR 1,157 1,465
Listing expenses and issue costs ETAZ RETEA
payables FETFRIA — 8,024
Other payables and accrued charges E RN FIE K EHE B 3,133 4,914
8,394 20,809
The credit periods of trade payables is within 90 days except BESRNFENEERA0B @ EREE
for two of the major suppliers are within 1 year. The following EHEENEERRIFRN - LTARS
is an aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on REPRBREREZEAPEIAEEE S E
the invoice date at the end of each reporting period TFRTE R BRER DT
2020 2019
2020 &£ 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 to 30 days 0&30K 410 2,008
31 to 60 days 31 260X 105 1,703
61 to 90 days 61E90K 357 338
Over 90 days 8% 90 X 3,232 2,357
4,104 6,406
All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of FrEeEIREH Bt AEENE S
the Group’s trade and other payables are considered to be a MEMENFENROERRAEESED
reasonable approximation of fair values. NFEELHE -

162 CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED {83k 8 £ @ = RER AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B 15 R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

20.

21.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES — continued

Included in the Group’s trade payables are the following
amounts denominated in currency other than the functional

currencies of the respective group entities.

20. EZNEMENTE — 2
AEENESRENZFESETINERE

B ERINE R B AN BB EHERIFR ©

2019

2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

US$ ETT 3,125 5,797
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 21. EHEE

2020 2019

2020 F 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

FT FET

Customer reward scheme (Note) B F B8 (AaE) 5,849 5,503

Customer deposits BPER 225 272

6,074 5,775

Note: The Group launches a customer reward scheme in its retail
stores in Hong Kong which requires the customers to make
regular payments to the Group in return for redemption of the
Group’s products in the future.

At 31 March 2020 and 2019, the entire amount of contract

liabilities are expected to be realised within one year at the

end of the reporting period.

Contract liabilities outstanding at the beginning of the year
amounting to HK$4,364,000 (2019: HK$4,507,000) have been

recognised as revenue during the year ended 31 March 2020.

Hrit - ARERBRARREEATEERL—BE
F RS - ZA B EREFAAKEEH
NFAR AR EERER

R2020%F K& 2019F 3 A31H » BHAX
BELHSBENREHERE —FAE
H o

FHEKRERE XA E4,364,000% T
(2019 F : 4,507,0007870) B RELZE 2020
F3A3 BIEFEAEER BN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

22. REFUND LIABILITIES 22. ERARE
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET F&T
Refund liabilities arising from right of REEREALZERAE
return 477 651
23. LEASE LIABILITIES 23. HESE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities TRINRAEEEE & EHOFIRE D EH
of the Group’s lease liabilities: H:
2020 2019
2020 F 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Total minimum lease payments: SEREREEEE
Due within one year R—EREE 8,546 —
Due in the second to fifth years RE—FEERFEEH 7,088 =
15,634 —
Future finance charges on leases HEABNRKREEHR
liabilities (470) _
Present value of leases liabilities HEBBENERE 15,164 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

23. LEASE LIABILITIES — continued 23. HEEE —~&

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Present value of minimum lease SEHESENRE :
payments:
Due within one year R—F R E|H 8,189 —
Due in the second to fifth years RE_FEERFEH 6,975 —
15,164
Less: Portion due within one year A IERBBER —F AR
included under current ZE5
liabilities (8,189)
Portion due after one year included PIVEIERBBEN —FRIHZ
under non-current liabilities 2B 6,975 —
Note: Kz -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1
April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. Comparative
information as at 31 March 2019 has not been restated. Details for
transitions to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 2.

Leases are negotiated for terms of one to three years. Certain operating
leases require the Group to pay either minimum guaranteed amounts
or turnover rent that is based on prescribed rates of corresponding
sales, whichever is the higher.

As at 31 March 2020, lease liabilities amounted to HK$15,164,000 are
effectively secured by the related underlying assets as the rights to the
leased asset would be reverted to the lessor in the event of default by
repayment by the Group. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the
total cash outflows for the leases are HK$11,588,000.

AEBEFEREETEREIERERBEVBIR
EEAF16HRARKR2019F4 A1 BN
% ABRELNBRBEEEGFEREI7TRS A
RICEHE HERMNAEERE - N2019F3 A
3ITEMEBENTTEY - FABEETENBHR
HAERE 16 KT BN BN E2 -

BB EZ=FOHRAET - & THEAEERA
SEXNRERTEAIIZARHEETLRAE
MEXEEHEUABRSERE) -

M20206F 3 A31H ' 15,164,000 Tt & 1 & &
EREAMEBEEFER  LHARMEREER
REEWMBER  HELEENEFESESRTLEA
A HZE2020F3A310  HEMNBBRESRE A
11,588,000/ 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

23.

24.

LEASE LIABILITIES — continued
Details of the lease activities

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has entered into leases for

retails shops.

23. HEEE —~&

HEFBHFE

R2020%F3A31H ' KEBERTEE
ISAE -

Financial statements Range of
Types of items of right-of-use Number remaining
right-of-use assets assets included in of leases lease term Particulars
FaPN B E: Y BRTIHEHRZ
EREEENER EREEENERR HENKE HE ]
Retails shops Property, plant and 6 1 to 3 years Some of the
equipment contracts contain
additional variable
lease payments
depends on
the turnover
rent during the
contract period.
ZEE ME - BB KRB 6 1E35F MABKHEANAL
HAHEHE S RIK
BRI HHE
(NN

There is no extention option or termination option on the

leases.

BANK BORROWINGS

HEW TR I EARIEFRE -

24. HITER

2020 2019
2020 F 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FETL

Secured bank loan EEPRITER — 2,048
Unsecured bank loans EIRMIRITE R 25,621 39,329
Total bank borrowings RITEAREE 25,621 41,377
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

24. BANK BORROWINGS — continued 24.

The Group’s bank loans are repayable as follows:

WITER — &

AEBRITERNETEEEROT

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank loans are repayable (Note) RITEREE TSR AERER(fZ)
Within 1 year 16K/ 3,804 14,517
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FZE2ER 3,915 4,655
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FRASFERN 12,440 12,457
After 5 years 5% 1% 5,462 9,748
Total bank loans RITERERE 25,621 41,377
Comprising: B
Amounts due within one year shown JIANGBEERESE
under current liabilities and RERERER
containing a repayment on demand B —FREHE
clause HIE 3,804 14,517
Amounts that are not repayable BRAEREHERE
within one year from the end of the —FNERES
reporting period but containing a BRERBEFEROTIE
repayment on demand clause (shown BIARBAE)
under current liabilities) 21,817 26,860
Total bank loans RITEREE 25,621 41,377

Note: These amounts are based on the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the bank loan agreements.

The Group’s banking facility letter contains a clause which
give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand
immediate repayment at any time irrespective of whether
the Group has complied with the covenants and met the
scheduled repayment obligations.

Hiat . ZEFEUARTERBZOOEEREHAR

AEBORITRE R EE1BERR £
ERAEREEDIBHEZRIIAER
THRAKEELETRERMETHEENR
Bff-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S R R MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

24. BANK BORROWINGS — continued

The exposure of the Group’s bank loans are as follows:

24, BITER —#&

AEBRITEFRARBNOT :

2020 2019
2020 20194

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET F&T

Fixed-rate borrowings & E F EAE K — 2,048
Variable-rate borrowings FENFIEER 25,621 39,329
25,621 41,377

All bank loans bear variable-rate ranging from Hong Kong
Dollar Prime Rate minus 2.5% to Hong Kong Dollar Prime
Rate minus 2% as at 31 March 2020 (2019: Hong Kong Dollar
Prime Rate minus 2.5% to Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate minus
2%).

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal
to contracted interest rates) per annum on the Group’s bank

loans as at 31 March 2020 and 2019, is as following:

Effective interest rates: ERF=E
Fixed-rate borrowings Bl L=
Variable-rate borrowings SZENF R

LOZBFI R B2 BRITER @ FIXE
MABEATHEENER25%E T
SEEF KR 2% (2019F : FFEBETRE
BTG 2.5% BB TTHEBNER2%)

R 2020F N 2019F3 531 H » NEE R

TEFHNSFERAERERB(MERFTOF
)T :
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
— 5.84%
2.500% to 3.125% | 2.625% to 3.125%

All bank borrowings are denominated in HK$.

PR RITERIAETEHE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

25.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements of authorised and issued capital of the

Company are as follow:

25. B
ARAEERBBEITRAS B HENT

Number
of shares Share capital
BB E &S
HK$ HK$°000
ET FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ &RHEE0.01 BT E@ER
Authorised: VERE ¢
At 1 April 2018 ®2018%F4A1H 38,000,000 380,000 380
Increase on 26 September 2018 201849 A 26 BN 1,462,000,000 14,620,000 14,620
At 31 March 2019 and 2020 7201943 A 31 H &% 2020 4
3A31H 1,500,000,000 15,000,000 15,000
Issued and fully paid: BERITRER :
At 1 April 2018 MN2018F 4 A1H 1 - —
Capitalisation Issue (Note a) BRI (Mita) 562,499,999 5,625,000 5,625
Issue of shares upon listing R EMmEEITRG
(Note b) (Kiz#b) 187,500,000 1,875,000 1,875
At 31 March 2019 and 2020 20193 A31 B & 20204
3A31H 750,000,000 7,500,000 7,500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr B R R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

25.

26.

SHARE CAPITAL — continued
Notes:

(a) Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the sole
shareholder of the Company on 6 March 2019, upon completion
of the public offer and placing, the Company was authorised
to capitalise a sum of HK$5,625,000 standing to the credit of
the share premium account of the Company and applied such
amount to pay up in full at par of 562,499,999 ordinary shares of
the Company (the “Capitalisation Issue”).

(b) In connection with the listing on 27 March 2019, the Company
allotted and issued a total of 187,500,000 new shares at HK$0.3
per share by way of public offer and placing. The proceeds
of HK$1,875,000 representing the nominal value of the new
ordinary shares of the Company were credited to the Company’s
share capital. The remaining proceeds of HK$54,375,000 before
offsetting issuance costs of HK$13,508,000 were credited to the
Company’s share premium.

(c) Upon the completion of the group reorganisation on 12 April
2018, the Company became the holding company at the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on
6 March 2019. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to attract and retain or otherwise maintaining on-going
business relationships with, and to provide incentive to
eligible participant(s) including employees (full-time and part-
time), executives or officers, directors, advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers, agent, and other persons approved
by the board of directors, to optimise their performance and

efficiency for the benefit of the Group.

The board of directors may, at its absolute discretion, offer to
grant an option to eligible participant(s) to subscribe for the
shares of the Company at an exercise price and subject to
the other terms of the Share Option Scheme. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue at the time dealings in the shares of the

Company first commence on the Stock Exchange.

25.

26.

(a) REAARME—ARN2019F3 A6 H@B
MEEARZSR  RAREEREETKRE
KA REREERNCAR B ERER
©HA$£56250008 T - WEEBABR
RIREER BT AR R 562,499,999 [ &
BAR(TEAMEET])

(b) Ft MR2019F3A27H Emm s AARQ
RIEBRAAEEREEREERETAH
187,500,000 A% & A% 0.3 7 7T B9 #T IR 15 » AT
8 3K18 1,875,000 7T (HHE R AR B # ¥
BREE)GTFARRARAE o 88 FASHKIE
54,375,000 7 7T (# $5 2 175X 7 13,508,000
PSITTAT) 5F AR R BIRR(D (B

(c) MAKEN2018F4F12BTXREMA% -
ARBEBERBEEENEBR AT o

AR TS

ARB BB AESI(TRERESE ) TS
RIBEMR2019F3A6H BB RERE
R - IR B 5 RS W EH K AE
T AERFREER2EENTEXEE
% THBEER2EE(BREEBIFR
B8 =REEBIRRAER BEF &
AACER - fER TP KERES
SHUER EAA L) AAREE R R MR
THERBERME -

EEgN2ERNBERAERSEERILE
Pt - AR BES 3 B RRHRR T
RITEERBARRRRD - RIBHBBOIE
IR AKEEME M EBROHNAAR
i kB AR S TNMSEBIBARE
BOBEREBRIAEERERITRMAHK
7 10% °
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B B 15 R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME — continued 26.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of

ten years from its adoption date.

No options were granted or exercised during the year
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 and no share options were
outstanding as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

27. LEASE COMMITMENTS 27.

The reporting date, the lease commitments for short-term
leases (2019: total future minimum lease payments payable
by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases) are as

BRESE — 2

RS 8) B B B B A+ IR
DARBR °

HZE2020F & 201943 A31BILFEL
ER SR TEEMERE - B 2020 F &
20194 3 A 31 B 7 & T {a] BB A% 42 15 R 7T
f& o

HERE

REE R EAEENESEAE(2019
FAKBERBETABELLHEEmEN
HARREEEEFIRERE) AT ¢

follows:
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within one year —FR 314 10,169
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FRFERNF(PREEEMT) — 11,319
314 21,488

At 31 March 2020, no lease commitments (2019: operating
lease commitments of HK$2,964,000) was provided to an

entity controlled by a director of the Company.

R2020F3A318 * AR AIEEHHIA—
MERYEMERE (2010F : £K&HE
AYE2,964,000/870) JEREE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

28.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

28.

MEETHEENEEYHER

The table below details changes in the Group liabilities arising TRFAMAEERETBAEENBEE
from financing activities. Liabilities arising from financing B @EEHTELANA BeneE
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash ERXGERAEEZERERERAD
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement HAMEIHREERENEE -
of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
Interest Accrued Lease
payables issue costs Bank loans liabilities Total
EfFE RIS BEER HEARE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FET FEx TET TET
At 1 March and 1 April 2019 R201963A1BRK
4A18 — 2,045 41,377 — 43,422
Impact on initial application on & XERERHHRE
HKFRS 16 (Note 2) ERZ 165 MPE
(Hriz2) - - — 16,662 16,662
At 1 April 2019, as restated  #R201954A1R -
] = 2,045 41,377 16,662 60,084
Cash-flows: Bem:
Interest expense paid BRFIERX (950) — — (541) (1,491)
Issue costs paid BRETRA = (2,045) = = (2,045)
Repayments of bank loans EERTER — - (15,756) = (15,756)
Capital element of lease rentals 2RHERE AL HH
paid - . . (6,594) (6,594)
Non-cash: 3k
Entering into new leases UHRE — — — 5,506 5,506
Modification of lease term EYHES — — — (410) (410)
Interest expenses recognised  EEAMFEFR
(Note 8) (Hii£8) 950 = — 541 1,491
At 31 March 2020 12020535318 = = 25,621 15,164 40,785
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

28. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 28. RIERHELENEEHER — &
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES — continued

Amount

Accrued duetoa

Dividend Interest issue Bank Gold related
payable  payables costs loans loans  company Total

EN-H

fest L]

ENRE  EANE  BORA  BFER EEER  LAFNAE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TATL TET TET TATL TET

At 1 April 2018 H2018F4 1R — — 1,067 36,054 13,263 11,308 61,692
Cash-flows: BER:
Interest expense paid BERFERR (1,365) — = = = (1,365)
Dividend paid BERRE (333) — — — - — (333)
Issue costs paid BRBIRA = (9,889) = = — (9,889)
Proceeds from bank loan RITERFENE — - — 15,500 - = 15,500
Repayments of bank loans/gold BEHTEN/ELEH

loans - - —(0177)  (12,193) — (22370
Non-cash: E3 ok
Issue costs accrued R ETRA - — 10,867 — — — 10,867
Interest expense recognised ~ BHERFIERY — 1,365 — — — — 1,365
Dividend declared ENI 9,000 — — - — = 9,000
Settled with amounts due from  LAEREEARFELE

related companies (8,667) — — — — — (8,667)
Reclassification to amounts due JAEREEARFBER

from related companies 28 — — - — — (11,308) (11,308)
Gain on fair value changes of E&EFATPEZEMKE

Gold Loans - — — - (1,070) — (1,070)
At 31 March 2019 R2019%53A31 A - - 2,045 4,377 - - 43,422
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

29.

30.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees but subject to a maximum amount of
HK$1,500 per month for each employee to the scheme.

The employees employed by the PRC subsidiary are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated
by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiary is required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
schemes is to make the required contributions under the

schemes.

Details of the retirement benefit schemes contributions for

both years are set out in Note 9.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Other than the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had the followings transaction with related

companies during both years:

Rental expenses paid to related

the executive director of the

Company

29.

30.

MARBIITE R 5 KR
companies controlled by BARSZNNEEEA

RKEF TS

AEBERMETERERERRIMEHIME
AT E - FENEEELAKENEE
DHRRE  YHXEAEENESRKEA -
AEBERZHEFHNERRERT S
RAHE% - BEAFEFEHRR  HESH
BEBARZEHRRIETEIEE
1,500 & 7T °

P EMBLRERNES RPBEBFE
WOBREERAENTENKE - FE
MEARAREHFENETADLARK
BAFEEEHRIARBINREES -
AEBEERZFRNEFAENE—RET
RIREF BIELPAFEHRK o

% P E F E R AE A AT Bl K S I 8
KL -

L RS
(a) BREAMBRRTPEMED ST
BRENR S RERIN REBERM

BEEENE@RTREETIRS

year ended 31 March
BEZA=+—HLEE

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
2,964 2,964

Included in trade and other receivables at 31 March
2020 were rental deposits paid to related companies
controlled by the executive director of the Company of
HK$494,000 (2019: HK$494,000).

MN2020F 3 A31 HME S K EME
WHIBASZNFARABMITEEHN
225 K BABSE R B 2 T & 1 £ 494,000
70 (2019 4 : 494,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

31.

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS — continued 30. BEBARSE — £
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) EBEERE AEBFH N
The remuneration of key management personnel during FTEEBEEABRZMEERENH
both years was as follows: a0 T
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Short-term employee benefits HHEEET 4,477 2,986
Retirement benefit scheme RAEFI 5T 14
contributions 98 200
4,575 3,186
Key management personnel include directors of the FTEEREABBRERARFTNES
Company and other senior management of the Group. FAEENENSHEERE - £ B
The remuneration of key management personnel is EEEBAETMEARAAREEEZR
determined by the management of the Company having ZEAARBLETSBEEBT
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. EXxEER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will REFE

be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains

unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
includes lease liabilities and bank borrowings as set out
in Notes 23 and 24,

owners of the Group, comprising share capital and reserves

respectively and equity attributable to

as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital, and will balance
its overall capital structure through new share issues and

raising or repayment of bank borrowings.

EREEE  REEBEICER RS,
BURERERRAEE - ARERES
REFIEEERRETE -

2 H B R AR AR 7N 55 [ 4 e S A
i

AEBEARBRRERER(BREME23R

247 BIFEEE BB RRITER) RAE
EEE ARG (BREEPBRRAE
BHBRARERE)

ARREETERRAEARE - AEEE

BEARKANARERERABRR - I
BB BEITARBHELERRTE

HRFEHEBEARE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 32. €T H
Categories of financial instruments SWMIAESE
2020 2019
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REHERATTENEREE
— Pledged bank deposits — BHERRITER — 2,200
— Bank balances and cash — RITEBRIRE 43,429 75,973
— Trade and other receivables* — B 5 K& H e dRIE 7,707 11,077
Financial asset at FVTPL BAFEFABENEHEE
— Unlisted equity investment — I LETRAKRE 5,195 =
56,331 89,250
Financial liabilities SRAaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IR KA ENESHEE
— Trade and other payables** — B 5 KE fth & WK IE * 5,009 16,962
— Bank borrowings — |RITER 25,621 41,377
— Lease liabilities — HEakE 15,164 =
45,794 58,339
* Prepayment and non-refundable deposits are excluded * TEEBMNRERTIRERS

o Accruals are excluded

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and

other receivables, rental deposits, pledged bank deposits,

bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, lease

liabilities, and bank borrowings. Details of these financial

instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks

associated with these financial instruments include market

risks (foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk

and liquidity risk, and the policies on how to mitigate these

risks are set out below. The directors of the Company manage

and monitor these exposures to ensure appropriate measures

are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

* TeERTER

BREREEBERBE

FEENTECRIABREE S REME
Wia - HERE DHERRTHER R
TRHBEREAS  EHREMENFEHE
SREMRRITER  ZZERTANE
RENEENE - EZEERTAFH
B [ B2 15 T 455 R Bk (91 BEE R B e ) =K
®) - FEERRMEBESRR - MABN
AR B 5% L O R BN T X AR A
ESERERERZFTARNRERNEAR

HE A BB
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32.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Market risk
Foreign currency risk

The Group has limited currency exposure as majority of the
revenue were denominated in functional currency of the

respective group entities. The carrying amounts of the Group’s

THMIHA — &

BHEREEEEREE — &

TE g
SMNE R

HRABOWEA RSB ERNER
BEtE - AAKEMESNESERE
BB RMEHR AEEUIMNEHENE

foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities BEERARNEREAERT :
at the end of the reporting dates are as follows:
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Assets BE
US$ = 36 75
RMB AR 37 7
Liabilities afE
Us$ ET 3,125 5,797

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk of
US$ and RMB. Under the pegged exchange rate system, the
financial impact on exchange difference between HK$ and
US$ will be immaterial as most US$ denominated monetary
assets and liabilities are held by group entities having HK$ as
their functional currency, and therefore no sensitivity analysis
has been prepared. No sensitivity analysis has been prepared

for HK$ against RMB as the amount involved is insignificant.

AEEIEEBETRAREOINER
@ o RIFEXBBEIE - AREEEER
BEORMAETAEEREERBEAE
TTRETNEEEY - BT HEEIT 2 ) E X
ERNPBEERIEXR - Rt U EFER
BREDIHN - ARMPERALTEKN - #
WERBTAAREREBREDH ©

2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT 3§

77



178

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Market risk — continued
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances and variable-rate bank
borrowings (Note 24). The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation on Hong Kong
Dollar Prime Rate arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar
denominated bank borrowings. The Group currently does
not have a policy on cash flow hedges of interest rate risk.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate risk should

the need arise.
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 100 basis points and 10 basis points increase or
decrease in bank borrowings and bank balances respectively
are used which represents management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on interest bearing borrowings and bank
balances had been 100 basis points and 10 basis points
respectively higher/lower and all of other variables were held
constant, the profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 would
be decreased/increased by HK$171,000 (the profit for the
year ended 31 March 2019 would be decreased/increased by
HK$267,000).

BHEREEEERBE — &

FEER — &

AEBE RS MY BN RRITAERKLIZE
M RITEFKAOIR 2R A E E 2 (Y 5E 24)
AEBMR RN EREREBEHRAE
EETHENRITERMELNE TRE
RN R B B o 7N 5 B3R B 3 R B R K
RBRERSREIPEEK - Rif - EREEE
SHRER - W ESBEE BEIHER
M@ o

PRSI

TXNBREDIN DiRRERRETES
BTANFXRARERE - DM IIRENEK
EHMREARBENSRTARBEFE R
RBEMRE - 2 5F ARITERRIRT
A& B8 100 fiE] 2 B K 10 f&] B B ) 718 sk K
8 WEREHAN KSR L EHRT
filr o

st BB M IRTT AR IR 2 Bl hn,~
WA 100 B E 2 K 10 B E R M AT A HAbw]
BARRERTE  HZE2020F3A31H
L FEREFAE SR L 1 H0171,000%
TL(EZ= 20194 3 A 31 H L FE &)@ F) 5
A,/ HN267,0008 L) °



For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations
at the end of each reporting period in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount
of those assets stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. Given the Group’s wholesale
customers are widely spread over, management considers
that the credit risk associated is low. In addition, the Group
makes reference to the historical repayment to assess the
impairment for individual debtors with significant balances
while the Group collectively assesses the impairment for its
remaining customers using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings based on share credit risk characteristics of
customers are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit

risk is significantly reduced.

BHEREEEEREE — &

=B m B R B ETE

RS ERE ARG F I RERTRER
B AIRKEREHECHEREREEN
RREERBRAZZEHIINGS MBIRR
RAMNBENEEE - R TEEREREFE
R AEEEEECRE-—BEKAR
ETEERSE FEUAEZREMESRE
Fr o BERRBURETE NG BEES -
ERAEENUBEFPEMEZ  EEE
RREBEERRRE - tbih - AEES
ZEFCHAN M EEEANREN @G E
BARBE MAKREERERTFMH
RIEER RS HAEE DA REERESY
MR P REESERMG - it NAF]
EERRUTRBREASENERERR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

the following categories:

Internal

credit rating

REBEERR

Low risk

1K 2 B

Medium risk

R

High risk

= B

Loss

g

Write-off

3

180

Description

5

The counterparty has a low risk of default and
does not have any past-due amounts

AIREFHARRENRR - BX B EMEE
FIA

Debtor frequently repays after due dates but
usually settles after due date
BEEAKLERIARZER  HAFTRIHABRES

There have been significant increases in credit
risk since initial recognition through information
developed internally or external resources

MEDHITE & K S IR E RN E B R B VIR R
PNl

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired

BREBBRTEERRFEERE

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

ERBBRRNEBARNBEN KR  mAEE
I 3R 4 B 1% AT U B R

BHEREEEERBE — &

= EE R R AT
AEENABEER

5

Trade receivables

B 5 EWRIA

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired
2R BEEEE
— BEERE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired
2 HEHEEERE
— BEERE

Lifetime ECL — not

credit-impaired

2 HEMERER
— BEERE

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired

>HEBEEER
— EERE

Amount is written
off

WK R

.
— iE

AR S B3 T

Financial assets
other than trade
receivables

BRE 5 8 Wk IE sh
WEmMEE

12m ECL

+=EA
BEEEER

12m ECL

+=f@A
BHEEEIE

Lifetime ECL — not

credit-impaired

2 HEHEEER
— BEERE
Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired
2 HRHEEEE
— FERE

Amount is written off

i EH KR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

32.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

The table below details the credit risk exposures of

the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL

assessment:

External
credit
2020 2020 F Notes rating
hEB
Kt FEEFR

Financial assets at R# 8 R A:HEM

amortised cost SMEE

Trade receivables & 5 EWFIE 18 N/A
iE A
Other receivables  HhEUzkE 18 N/A
36 A
Bank balances IRITEEH 19 A- to AA+
A-Z AA+

32. £§@TH — &
BEEMREEEEREE — &

EERBRRBEFG — &
TERFVAEEeREENEERR (A

TIRBEEEBRNE)

Internal 12m or Gross
credit lifetime carrying
rating ECL amount

+=@A
A B A
FEMR FEBR IREAE
HK$°000
T
Low risk Lifetime ECL 805
(simplified
approach)
1 2 B % B8 A1
EEREE
(B%)
Medium risk Lifetime ECL 3,265
(simplified
approach)
SR 2 HIfa )
EEER
(FEE%)
Low risk 12m ECL 3,736
1K 2 B 12 & A T8 8
EEEE

N/A 12m ECL 42,362
TiEA +=1@A
EHEEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr B R R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

2019

Financial assets at
amortised cost

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Bank balances

Pledged bank
deposit

2019 F

EEERATHEN

EREE
B 5 WA

H Aty U IR

B MRITIE R

Notes

Hret

18

18

19

19

External
credit
rating

50
TR

N/A

A-- to AA+
A-- to AA+

AA+

AA+

32. ¢@TH — &
BEEREEEEREE — &

EEmBRBEE — &

Internal
credit
rating

Low risk

KR

Medium risk

PERER

Low risk
1K & 82

N/A
@A

12m or
lifetime
ECL
+=M@A
HEHAH
FEEBR

Lifetime ECL
(simplified
approach)

% B T8 A
EEBE
(FE1E%)

Lifetime ECL
(simplified
approach)

2 BATE A
EEEBE
(FH1E%)

12m ECL
12 {8 ATEH)
EEEE

12m ECL
+=@A
TBHEE kR

12m ECL

+=18A
HHERER

Gross
carrying

amount

BRE4AE
HK$'000
FHET

3,419

4,042

3,680

71,694

2,200
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

Financial risk management objectives and policies —
continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade and other receivables, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties.

The credit risk on other receivables is minimal as the risk of
default is low after considering the factors as set out in note
3.12. No ECL have been recognised as a result of the total
ECL of other receivables is considered as immaterial.

The Group assesses the expected losses on financial assets
and considers the probability of default upon initial recognition
of the respective asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
assets as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition and considers available forward-
looking information, including below indicators:

° internal credit rating based on historical information;

° actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of the debtors; and

o significant changes in the expected performance and
behavior of the debtors, including changes in the
payment status of debtors

The Group applies the simplified approach and assesses the
lifetime ECL for trade receivables at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

Relevant information with regard to the exposure of credit
risk and expected credit losses for trade receivables as at 31
March 2020 and 2019 are set out in Note 18.

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition. Based on
the historical default rate and repayment history, the directors
of the Company considered the expected credit loss for
pledged bank deposit and bank balances is insignificant.

BHEBREEEEREE — &

EEmBRBEE — &

R B 5 T B B R 4 A
EEBREFRS  AMARS HRSEY
F5 o

Hithfgl RENEERBER AR
RIS 12T H A EZELRBERIE -
KEBRAEMERRBBNBHREESERR
BYAEKN  WBEEHEEEBEC ER

X7
FoN

AEBEFHEREEMNBRERYEEY
THAZREERENNAREMENAREE
R B BEEARIZ N -

AFTEEERBREE ANREN - AEEL
BREHREELEEENNRR LD
REAMMENRR  HEREISHRTEMNE
B BEATEZ

o  HNBEEHMARNEETR
e BERAREXENERIBEHEAXN

28 R
. BHEAEBERRARAAMEAS
B - EEGATRERNEH

AEBRAMETE  REREHRTE

BoRURENERBHRBRERRL

R B TS HERERIREDONAIREME
[ KR 38 DT 1R 2 SRt (B8 R B o

RAR & 5 JE W 238 7 2020 FF N2 2019 3
A31BH{EER &%ﬁiﬁﬁf*‘*%aéeﬁﬁaﬁﬁ
BRI EE18 ©

HRAREERREREMS - $‘il1ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
HERFHEERR BV LHERARE
AIEEM - RAREERS ﬁ?&‘FJ_EL
MR FGEFRES - SEMRITERERT
EHRNEMEEBEETBEKX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 32. ¢RTH — &
Financial risk management objectives and policies — HRRAREEEERBR — &
continued
Liquidity risk B2

The management of the Group has built a liquidity risk
management framework for managing the Group’s short and
medium-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining banking
facilities and by continuously monitoring forecasted and actual
cash flows and the maturity profiles of its financial liabilities.
At 31 March 2020, the Group has no available unutilised bank
loan facilities (2019: HK$8,000,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up to reflect the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment
on demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights. The table includes both interest and principal

AEEEEEBEERYUNHECRARERIE
U EEBAEENPEAESRRBE
CEERRK c REBFEBIFSHRITAER
REERBARERReRENHLSHA
BEORHER  AEBRDESEAR - B
20203 A31H  AEEWEA A
AEARITEREE (20194 : 8,000,000
BIT) e
TRAVNAEERESRABHHBRELD
HR o TRBRBEAEEAHERERNR
FHBEE  URBRMBEERREER
SmE - HBME @+ TwiRITITEEER
MR SFRERERERNBITER
HWE D AT BHNEEEE - KRR
KeEMarrelane -

cash flows.
Weighted On demand Over 1 year Total
average or less than but within  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years cash flow amount
il ARER BB1E AERRE
FHNE  F-FAEE BR5ER mEBAE BREE
% HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Financial liabilities SRAE
At 31 March 2020 RW2020F3A831H
Trade and other payables &5 REfhE 5B — 5,009 — 5,009 5,009
Bank loans (Note) RITER(HEE) 2.85 25,621 - 25,621 25,621
Lease liabilities HEARE 3.13 8,546 7,088 15,634 15,164
39,176 7,088 46,264 45,794
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i a B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

32.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 32. ¢@TH — &
Financial risk management objectives and policies — MEEBREEEEREEK — &
continued
Liquidity risk — continued mBELEE — &
Weighted On demand Over 1 year Total
average or less than but within  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years cash flow amount
ntE RIRENR HBiB1F ABRR D
FHME  H—FAER BR5EX mE R HREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET T T
Financial liabilities SREE
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3A31H
Trade and other B REMERN
payables B — 16,962 — 16,962 16,962
Bank loans (Note) BITER (W) 3.07 41,377 — 41,377 41,377
58,339 — 58,339 58,339
Note: Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included HaE - RUALRIEIR 9 - LETEBIRERKER

in the “on demand or less than 1 year” time band in the above

maturity analysis. At 31 March 2020, the aggregate carrying
amount of these bank loans amounted to HK$25,621,000 (2019:

HK$41,377,000).

Taking into account the Group’s financial

position, the directors of the Company do not believe that it is

probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights

to demand immediate repayment. The directors of the Company

believe that such bank loans will be repaid in accordance with

the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements

with the principal and interest cash outflows as follows:

Aggregate principal and interest cash outflows repayable:

JL(20194F : 41,377,000/ 7T )

SENFBRR - ARAEER

ERHRITE RIS A BIRERSL—F R
(B8 | MR SRR - R 202038318 -
ZERITERRE L€ % R 25,621,000%
o fBE R
BIRITRR

AR EITRERBERERNEER - AAH

EEHRE
HHBETERAHEER
HanT -

FZERITERS IR RE RGP
e RFERER

REEAESRAERE M4 -

2020 2019

2020 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Within 1 year —FR 4,486 15,555
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMRFERN 4,485 5,412
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERAER 13,458 13,890
After 5 years hF%& 6,238 10,000
28,667 44,857
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

Financial asset measured at fair value in the consolidated
statement of financial position are grouped into three levels of
a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on
the observability of significant inputs to the measurements, as

follows:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets and liabilities

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly

— Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial
asset is categorised in its entirety is based on the lowest level

of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Level 1

HK$'000

At 31 March 2020 A 20203 A31H

Financial asset at FVTPL: B FETABEHN
SREE

Unlisted equity investment 3 A E

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year
ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

As at 31 March 2020, the Level 3 instruments represent
investment in the Fund which are stated at fair values
determined using the price to book ratios of comparable
listed companies adjusted for lack of marketability discount
25% with reference to the valuation reports of this equity
investments prepared by an external valuation experts with
recognised professional qualifications and recent experience
to perform the valuation. An increase in the discount for
lack of marketability would decrease the fair value. As at 31
March 2020, it is estimated that with all other variables held
constant, as an increase (a decrease) in discount of lack of
marketability by 5% would increase (decrease) the Group’s
loss by HK$349,000.

REZBHBMRAKTERAFEFTENSE
BEASR=—BERIAFERER =ZEERE
RABRZEABAE  EENAT :

— FE:HEREERBERERM
52 WECREHE)

— F_E:pEEXAEMERNME
EUBE28 \8B(E-RANEE
R ERIERRSN) -

— F=-E: BABBREEXRAERN
ERBRE AR -

EReRHEEEBMERE ANQFERE

AWER  BERHAFEAEBAFEX

BENREZERENBAE -

Level 2 Level 3 Total
E& E=K st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET
— 5,195 5,195

HE2020F3A3IBIEFERN S TEHE
ASEHE=E(20194F : £) o

M2020F3A31H F=EITEEEA
FEZINREEZFHERE  MZEAT
BH2ERAETHENERITNEEE
B R BB SN A E R TR R AR
B GHERSFE AR TS RB M
EO5% EHABMNAELR ETARITER
MEETE © TR=Z T %5 i 8 M5 38 6038 hn
WA RFE R202063 A31H © fHAT
BEHMESRFIE  fEtRZTSRA
MR MO D) 5% B ANEBHNEE
AR A ) 349,000 7T ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the

valuation of financial instrument:

At 31 March 2020 Valuation technique

202053 A31H fhERIS

Unlisted equity Market comparable
investment companies

A ETRARE 3% Al & LR A

The movement during the year in the balance of Level 3

instruments is as follows:

32. £§@TH — &

BT AMENEATARGARE

ARt an T

Unobservable
input

TR RWARE

Price-to-book ratio:
1:1.51

MR : 1:1.51

Discount of lack

of marketability:

25%
5B TR
25%

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
T A REABBE A FENER

An increase in the ratio will result in
an increase in the fair value of the
unlisted equity investment

PRI MG S K ERRARE A FE
12hn

An increase in the discount will result
in an decrease in the fair value of
the unlisted equity investment

MR EMRARENAFE
A

FZETALBFRNEFHOT ¢

2020
2020 F

HKD’000

FET

Opening balance ik ket —
Incremental investment WERE 5,000
Fair value change recognised in profits or loss A EzE R HERH D FEE S 195
Closing balance B R &5 64 5,195
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 33. FTEMBLATNFE
At the end of each reporting period, the Company has indirect REREHER  ARARUTNEZHEA
equity interests in the following principal subsidiaries: AR R AR

Equity interest attributable

Issued and to the Group
Place fully paid share REBEGRE
and date of capital/ At 31 March
incorporation/ Place of registered R3A31H
Name of subsidiary establishment operations capital 2019  Principal activities
SRAL R H BRTRAZRE
WEARER kEH men /ERER 2019F FEEH
SEKE (RI)BERAR  PRC PRC HK$8,000,000 100% 100% Manufacture of
Zhouhui Jewellery 18 November 2011 jewellery
SERE(RIBBRRE  HE e 8,000,000/ 7T EERE
20114511 A 184
Chuk Fung Jewellery Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Manufactory Limited 7 November 2003
SERFEEHMARAR FAR BE 10,0007 REZR
200311 A7H
W-Rich Company Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Procurement,

29 November 2011 marketing and
promotion,
distribution and
wholesale of
jewellery

BETBRRA EE B 1B RERE  THHEER
®2011411 A 298 5 piEkitE
Chong Fai Group Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Procurement,
Holdings Company 7 January 2000 marketing and
Limited promotion,
distribution of
jewellery and
trading of recycled
gold products
EEEEERAR A EE BB 10,000 7T KERE mHEER
$ 20006 1A7H B HHERENK
BEERES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

— continued

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Chong Fai Jewellery &
Gold Company Limited

EIERELTAERAF

King Jewellery & J
Company Limited

EEREIRABAT

Place

and date of
incorporation/
establishment
AL BB
RBH

Hong Kong
14 March 1997

0
1997 3 A 14 B

Hong Kong
28 May 2012

R2012%5 A28 R

Place of
operations

REghE

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Issued and

fully paid share

capital/
registered
capital

ERTRAZKRE

/EmEx

HK$20,010,000

20,010,000 7T

HK$1

1T

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year or anytime during the year.

33. FEMBRABRMNFHE — &

Equity interest attributable

to the Group

REBEGRE
At 31 March
®3A31H
2020 2019  Principal activities
2020 F 20195 EEFH
99.99% 99.99%  Procurement,
marketing and
promotion,
distribution, retail
of jewellery
RERE  HHEER
B8 5% TE
100% 100% Procurement,

marketing and
promotion,
distribution and
wholesale of
jewellery

KERE  THEHRER
B HERME

1B B B 1 B TR B AR Bl AN R [ A AT B
BITEREBES °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 202043 31 HItFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34. XRATMBMRRE

COMPANY
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FEL
Non-current asset FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries (Note) RET B AR MIEE (Kat) — =
Current assets mENEE
Other receivables H e KT8 — 20
Bank balances and cash RITEHREES 1,202 45,936
Amount due from a subsidiary FEAT — R BT B8 A Bl 3RI8 37,349 —
38,551 45,956
Current liabilities REBaE
Other payables H Ath JE < 5KH 10 8,054
Amount due to a subsidiary FE AT — R BT B8 & Bl 5RT8 13,878 13,161
13,888 21,215
Net current assets REBEEFE 24,663 24,741
Net assets EEFE 24,663 24,741
Capital and reserves EXRHE
Share capital f& 7 7,500 7,500
Reserves G 17,163 17,241
Total equity AR 24,663 24,741

Note: The amount of the investments in subsidiaries are less than

HK$1,000.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED {83k 8 £ @ = RER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 202043 A 31 HItFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

35.

COMPANY

continued

34. RATMBMRR &K

o

Movement of the Company’s reserves: RAIBENEE
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
43R E Rt EE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2018 R2018F 4818
(FM/RZEE) — (8,151) (8,151)
Loss and total comprehensive ERRARZERT B
expense for the period — (9,850) (9,850)
Capitalisation Issue BEAR(ETT (5,625) — (5,625)
Issue of shares upon listing R EmRETRG 54,375 — 54,375
Expenses incurred in connection with  ARIR L& TN K
the issue of shares upon listing BEEERX (13,508) — (13,508)
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3HA31H 35,242 (18,001) 17,241
Loss and total comprehensive BEERBARNZERL B
expense for the period — (78) (78)
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3HA31H 35,242 (18,079) 17,163

As at 31 March 2020, the Company had distributable reserve
of approximately of HK$17,163,000 (2019: HK$17,241,000),
calculated under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. Such amount includes share premium which may
be distributable provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed, the Company will be in
a position to pay off its debts or when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) and
the subsequent quarantine measures and travel restrictions
imposed in worldwide countries in 2020 may have impact
on the Group’s sales in jewellery business. As at the date
of issuance of these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are still assessing the impact
that the COVID-19 will have on the Group’s operations. In
response to the market situation, the Group took immediate
actions to minimise operating costs, revise capital expenditure
plans and maintain sufficient banking facilities to fund working
capital needs.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
0 %R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &%= 20203 31 HILFE

RESULTS E4
For the year ended 31 March
HBZE3A31HLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017
2020 F 20194 20184 2017 4
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T F#r FET
Revenue U 5 119,869 175,589 173,020 203,464
(Loss)/Profit before tax BRERT(EE), &5 (6,854) 3,908 8,012 9,881
Income tax credit/(expense) FRrefiEe, () 1,370 (1,685) (8,177) (6,008)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FA(ER),&F (5,484) 2,223 4,835 3,873

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE

At 31 March
R3A31H

2020 2019 2018 2017
2020 F 20194 20184 2017 4
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F#T F#T F#T
Total assets BEMAE 137,335 157,471 138,196 144,363
Total liabilities BERE (55,730) (69,692) (84,813) (89,233)
Total equity TS A5 81,605 87,779 53,383 55,130

CHONG FAIl JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED AliEik B £ EiERER AT
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Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited
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